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I EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

Recommendation:

The National Intelligence Estimate (NIE) on the Vietnam POW/MIA disseminated

zarlier this year (the Key Judgments of which were released publicly in redacted
form in August and September, 1998') should be retractcd based on the findings of
+his critical assessment. (U)

A copy of this critical assessment is being sent to the Members of the National .
Foreign Intelligence Board (NFIB) and the Military Intelligence Board (MIB), along
with a request that those boards meet to consider and approve this request that the
NIE be retracted. A copy has also been sent to relevant Congressional leaders,
along with requests that oversight hearings concerning thns NIE be conducted at the

earliest possible date. (U)

In addition, copies of this critical assessment have been sent to officials who may
rely on the NIE, such as U.S. policy-makers with responsibility for U.S. relations
with the Government of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam (SRV) and U.S. military .
officials with responsibility for POW/MIA accounting efforts in Southeast Asia. It
is recommended that these officials not rely on the judgments in the NIE for the
reasons noted in this critical assessment. (U)

Conclusions:

! Letter from Director of Central Intelligence, George Tenet, to U.S. Senator Max Cleland,
dated August 3, 1998; Letter from Chairman of the National Intelligence Council, John Gannon,
to National Commander of The American Legion, dated August 19, 1998; News Release by the
Office of the Assistant Secretary of Defense (Public Affairs), entitled POW/MIA Document
Declassified and Released, dated August 27, 1998; and Defense POW/MIA Weekly Update,
published under the auspices of the Deputy Assistant Secretary of Defense (POW/Missing
_ Personnel Affairs), dated September 10, 1998. (U)
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Vietnamese Cooperation

* With respect to POW/MIA cooperation by the Government of the Socialist

Republic of Vietnam (SRV), the NIE judges that “Vietnam has become more
helpful in assisting US efforts to achieve the fullest possible accounting of American
personnel missing in action during the Vietnam conflict,” and that “... Vietnam’s
overall performance in dealing with the POW/MIA problem has been good in recent
years...”(U)

However, my conclusion is that the NIE fails to adequately distinguish between
improved Vietnamese assistance with U.S. field operations to recover potential
remains of U.S. personnel killed during the war, and continued Vietnamese

. stonewalling in providing full disclosure of documents from relevant Communist

Party holdings that would shed light on SRV policy and knowledge concerning the
fate or status of unaccounted for captured and missing in action personnel.
Accordingly, the NIE’s judgment of overall SRV performance on the POW/MIA

. problem as “good” is not reliable in view of the SRV stonewalling referenced

above, which is detailed in this critical assessment. Moreover, there are numerous
instances, also detailed in this critical assessment, where the analysis in support of
the NIE’s judgments of SRV cooperation is factually inaccurate, misleading,
incomplete, shallow, and seriously flawed. (U)

- The “1205” and “735” Dociiments

With respect to the so-called “735" and “1205" documents,” the NIE judges that
“many of the details of the documents are implausible or inconsistent with reliable:

evidence” and therefore does not assess the likely range of numbers of American
POWs in the spring of 19732 The NIE further judges that “[n]either document

2 The 1205/735 documents -are Soviet GRU acquisitions of alleged high-level secret wartime
reports by North Vietnamese officials who state that Hanoi was holding substantially more U.§
POWs in the 1970-1972 period than those released in 1973. (U)

¥ The NIE terms of reference were coordinated with the Senate Select Committee on
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provides a factual foundation upon which to judge Vietnamese performance on the
FOW/MIA question.” (U)

However, I conclude, for the reasons noted in this critical assessment, that the NIE’s
Jjudgment on the 1205/735 documents cannot be accepted with confidence because
it is replete with.inaccurate and misleading statements, and lacks a reasonably

" thorough and objective analytical foundation on which to base its judgment. I

further conclude, based on a review of relevant U.S. data, that many of the
statements contained in both the 1205/735 documents and the so-called 185 report
ciscussed herein are indeed supported or plausible, and have very serious
implications which should warrant an urgent review of U.S. policy toward the
Government of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam (SRV). (U)

T'he Politicizing of Intelligence

Congress and the leaders of the U.S. Intelligence Community (IC) need to examine

. what role the White House, its National Security Council, and certain US policy-

akers responsible for advancing the Administration’s normalization agenda with
Vietnam may have played in influencing or otherwise affecting the judgments of the
IC as reflected in the NIE. The evidence, which appears to warrant such an
examination, is detailed in this critical assessment under Part IV. (U).

Intelligence (SSCI), as noted in SSCI Chairman/Vice-Chairman letter dated October 27, 1997,
and OCA/CIA letter dated November 21, 1997. (U)
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i1 BACKGROUND:

In the spring of 1997, in'relation to Senate confirmation of'a-U.S. Ambassador to
Vietnam, the: Assistant to-the President for National Security Affairs, Samuel R.
Berger, directed the-U.S. Intelligence Community (IC) to undertake-a special
National Intelligence Estimate (NIE) on the Vietnam War POW/MIA issue and to
provide the IC’s updated-assessment of the so-called “1205" and “735" documents
from the Russian archives. Mr. Berger further directed the IC to consult with the
Senate Select Committee on Intelligence (SSCI) on the terms of reference for the
NIE? Mr. Berger’s directives followed personal discussions with both myself and
the Senate Majority Leader, Senator Trent Lott. (U) :

Subsequent to Mr. Berger’s pledge to have the IC conduct a special NIE, I met .
personally with the Director of Central Intelligence, George Tenet, and the Director
of the Defense Intelligence Agency, Lt: Gen. Patrick Hughes, to underscore the

- importance [-attached to the need for this NIE to be thorough and objective. (U)

In the Fall of 1997, Congress passed, and the President signed into law, the National
Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 1998 which included a provision I
authored that required the Director of Central Intelligence to “provide: analytical
support on POW/MIA matters.”” The legislative history of this provision made
clear that it was related to both the preparation of the forthcoming NIE which waould
be relied on by departments and agencies involved with POW/MIA matters, and the
need for better intelligence support for POW/MIA investigative activity — a ne=d
highlighted by the findings of a bipartisan inquiry by the SSCI in April, 1998 — an
inquiry which determined that the IC had not provided input for the President’s

certification on whether Vietnam was fully cooperating on the POW/MIA issue. (U)

® Letter to the Senate Majority Leader from the Assistant to the President for National

~ Security Affairs, dated April 10, 1998. (U)

* Public Law 105-85, Section 1067, entitled POW/MIA Intelligence Analysis. (U) ,

SECRET
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The National Intelligence Officer (NIO) for East Asia, Robert Suettinger, was
subsequently assigned the lead role by the Director of the National Intelligence
Council (NIC), John Gannon, in coordination with the Director of Central
Intelligence (DCI), George Tenet. An Asian analyst from the Directorate of
Intelligence,| -was-assigned the fole of principal author and was
instructed to draft the NIE under the guidance of Mr. Suettinger.’ (S)

In early November, 1997, I met with Mr, Suettinger, to again underscore my
concerns that the forthcoming NIE be prepared in as thorough and comprehensive a
manner as possible. The Director of the Defense Intelligence Agency, Lt. Gen.
Patrick Hughes, also continued to pledge that he would become personally engaged
in the NIE analytical effort, to ensure that it was thorough, objective, and subjected
to rigorous retvie:w.6 )

The SRV POW/MIA issue addressed in the NIE centered on two key questions, as

. stated in the NIE’s Scope Note: (1) Since 1987, to what extent has the leadership of

Vietnam demonstrated a commitment to cooperating with the United States to
achieve the fullest possible accounting of missing in action personnel, and (2) What
is the Intelligence Community’s assessment of the so-called “1205" and “735"
documents from the Russian archives? (U)

% Transcript of Briefing on National Intelligence Estimate to U.S. Side of the U.S.-Russia

(8)

¢ Letter from Director, Defense Intelligence Agency, to Sen. Smith dated December 11,
1997(U).
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As of 1998, over 2,070 U.S. personnel remain missing or otherwise unaccounted for
in Southeast Asia as a result of the Vietnam War. (9)]
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m DETAILED ASSESSMENT OF NIE S’E‘A'E‘EME&'E‘S:

Scope Note (P.1):

NIE STATEMENT: “Some of the judgments it (the NIE) reaches are based
upon assessments made by experienced American
officials rather than upon a sizable body of intelligence
reporting.” (p.1) (Sf

ASSESSMENT:

1‘
' ‘ . .

I question why any National Intelligence Estimate (NIE) would make judgments in | -

areas if there is no sizable body of intelligence reporting withia the U.S. Intelligence;

Community (IC) upon which to base such judgments, in whole or even in part. ,’
Moreover, based on a listing of documents compiled by my office, scanning ﬂnrty

~ plus years, there does, in fact, appear to be significant intelligence reporting

concerning the areas where the IC was asked to make judgments. Assessments
made by U.S. officials outside the IC can certainly be reviewed by the principal
drafter of a NIE, but they should not then be cited as the primary basis for some of
the judgments of the NIE itself, especially when relevant intelligence information is,
in fact, available. This was not done in the prior Special National Intelligence
Estimate, entitled Hanoi and the POW/MIA issue, dated September, 1987, has not
been done in NIE’s on other topics which I have reviewed (for example, see NIE |
95-19, entitled, “Emerging Missile Threats to North America During the Next 15 :
Years”) and it should not have been done here. The extent and the process by ;
which any NIE’s judgments are allowed to be predominantly based upon the wews
of individuals outside the IC, rather than upon intelligence reporting, should be = !
reviewed by Corigress and the leaders of the IC. (8} i
The National Intelligence Council (NIC) should be required to provide a listing of
the judgments in this NIE which are “based upon assessments made by experienced

SECRET-
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American officials rather than upon a sizable body of intelligence reporting™ so the
reader of the NIE can more easily distinguish between NIE judgments based on
intelligence reporting, and NIE judgments predominantly based on the views of
individuals outside the IC. - As noted above, I do not believe it was appropriate for
the NIE to make judgments in areas where there is not a sizable body of
‘ intelligence, if that, in fact, is the case. Any real collection gaps should have been
. more fully noted in this regard, and judgments that are not predominantly based on
' intelligence reportmg should also be clearly noted in the text of the NIE. (8)

? Us. decxslon-makers are qmte capable of obtaining the views of other individua's
O outside the IC with respect to Hanoi and the POW/MIA issue. Finally, it should -
also be noted that this was not a requirement noted in the terms of reference
coordinated with the SSCL” (&)

o

;f, NIE STATEMENT: “In some cases we had to consider intelligence reporting
f ‘ that is as much as 25 years old that comes from joreign

?ﬁ Co intelligence services of unknown reliability or has bezn

!i. ‘ discredited for various reasons. . For these and other

g reasons, there are important gaps in our knowledge af

b these sensitive issues, and our Judginents must therejore
!

be cautious.” PGSy
ASSESSMENT:

i . Since one of the NIC’s two main taskings with regard to this NIE was to evaluate
; Soviet GRU reports disseminated to the Soviet leadership in 1971 and 1972,
; concerning the numbers of U.S. POWs during the war and North Vietnamese policy
s " toward their release, it is bizarre that the NIE would infer so definitively up front
P that the GRU was a foreign intelligence service of “unknown reliability.” (S

; s‘ " See letters to CIA/OCA from SSCI dated May 29, 1997 and October 27, 1997, and’
3 CIA/OCA letter to SSCI dated November 21, 1997. (U)

":’!f
WT.
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Additionally, if the date of these reports was a reason for the NIE’s judgments to be
“cautious,” it strains credulity to expect the reader of the NIE to later accept the
NIE’s blunt “current assessment” of these documents as “not what they purport to

be.gﬂ (,Sa

8 See page 26 of the NIE (Part 11, IC Assessment of 1205/735 Documents, Current
Assessment). (S)
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i DETAILED ASSESSMENT OF NIE STATEMENTS:

(continued)

Key Judgments (P.5-8)

"NIE STATEMENT: “Since the early 1990s, we have seen evidence for
increased Vietnamese caaperation on the POW/MIA
issue in the sirengthened staffing, increased
responsiveness, and growing professionalism of the
Vietnamese organizations that deal with this issue.” (p.5)

o &
b 'ASSESSMENT:

i: - - Therelevant Key Question identified earlier in the Scope Note was: “Since /987,

i) (emphasis added) to what extent has the leadership (emphasis added) of the Governinent
i of the SRV demonstrated a commitment to cooperating with the United States 1o

i achieve the fullest possible accounting (emphasis added) of American personnel

i missing in action during the Vietnam Conflict.” (3}

il The Key Judgment response begins “since the early 1990s, (emphasis added) we have
£ seen evidence for increased Vietnamese cooperation on the POW/MIA issue in the
strengthened staffing, increased responsiveness, and growing professionalism cf the .
Vietnamese organizations that deal with this issue (emphasis added). (U)

- Nowhere in the NIE is there a discussion of SRV leadership imentiqns,
;performance, and capabilities on the POW/MIA issue between 1987 and the euarly
'1990s, as required by the Key Question, developed in coordination with the SSCI

SECRET
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More importantly, although the reader, by inference, can assume in the juéiément
Juoted above that leadership decisions in Harioi may account for better SRV
staffing, responsiveness, and professionalism at the working level, the NIE neglects
-0 judge the extent to which this action has resulted in the fullest possible accounting
2f American personnel missing in action from the war, as required in the Key

Question.’ (S)

Most importantly, other than the subject of working level SRV staff support
provided to U.S. officials, nowhere in this first paragraph of the Key Judgments of
the NIE is there a discussion of whether there is evidence that Vietnamese leaders
have directed, are intending to direct, have been asked to direct, or are capable of
directing the disclosure of additional records or information from official SRV
Government holdings that have a bearing on the POW/MIA accounting question,
and the extent to which such information still exists. Vietnamese leadership
intentions, capabilities and performance are central to the key question of this NIE,
yet, with the exception of inferred leadership directives for better support,
responsiveness, and professionalisi at the staff level, it is unanswered with respect
to this key accounting question (ie: leadership directives concerning disclosure of
relevant accounting records from official SRV holdings.) 87 '

Finally, in view of the fact that the previous special NIE on Hanoi and the
POW/MIA issue, dated 1987, judged that the Hanoi leadership had previously
directed the unilateral recovery and warehousing of U.S. remains, and that it still
had a large number of centrally collected and stored remains not yet repatriated, it is
incredulous that the current NIE would not address this up front in this first

® As of 1991, 798 American personnel listed by their services as missing in action in 1973 were
still unaccounted for in Vietnam, with an additional 333 for Laos, 85% of whom were lost in
areas of Laos controlled by North Vietnamese forces during the war. As of 1997 (latest available
figures), the number has dropped 57 to 739 in Vietnam and has dropped 47 to 286 for Laos.
These numbers exclude, as of 1991, 1,053 American personnel listed by their services as killed in
action/body not recovered in 1973 in the same geographic locations, down to 1,007 as of 1997,

L)
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paragraph.!” This s especxally disturbing in view of statements passed to the Under .
Secretary of Defense for Policy by the Defense POW/MIA Office earlier this yenr
indicating that Vietnam has repatriated 134. stored remains since the cutoﬁ' date for
the 1987 NIE."! (8)

NIE STATEMENT: “In our view, Hanoi judges that...normalization requires
progress on the POW/MIA issue.” (p.5) (U)

ASSESSMENT:

In view of the fact that the U. S ‘removed objections to lntematxonal ﬁnancnal
institution lending to Vietnam in 1993, lifted the U.S. trade embargo on Hanoi in
1994, established full diplomatic relahons with Vietnam in 1995, ‘Gonfirmed a Ui.S.
Ambassador to Hanoi in 1997, and the Bresident. certified Vietnam’s full and good- .
- faith-cooperation .on the POW/MIA issué in 1996,.1997, and 1998, the NIE’s

“nebulous judgment above warrants clarification. (U)

Specifically, the NIE glaringly fails to define what constitutes progress on the
POW/MIA issue from Hanoi’s standpoint ie: maintaining their current level of
lcooperation or improving their current level of cooperation -- these differences. in
how progress is defined from Hanm 5 standpomt have serious nmphcatmns for U.S.

1% The 1987 special NIE, entitled, Hanoi and the POW/MIA Issue, states “...there is
considerable evidence that the Vietnamese have detailed information on the fates of severa.
" "hundred US personnel North Vietnamese and Viet Cong forces had policies. govemmg the

* handling of US remains that included removing identifying data, burying the remains, and sending

the identification and location of the gravesite to Hanoi. We estimate that the Vietnamese have
.already recovered and are warehousing between 400 and 600 remains. Thus, Hanoi could quickly
+account for several hundred US personnel by returning warehoused remains and by provic: mg

.t material evidenice that.could aid in determining the fate of other personnel.” (U)

" See Memorandum for Under Secretary of Defense for Policy, Walter Slocombe #1-
98/ 69271.48)

SECRET

3000014

000015



C06548527

SECRET .

policy makers and are critical to judging the timing and likelihood for resolution of
key outstanding POW/MIA accounting issues. As such, the NIE’s judgment here is
inadequate and incomplete. (U)

US policy makers deserve the benefit of an IC judgment as to whether Hanoi
believes they can-just maintain the status quo without any need for improvement in
their POW/MIA cooperation as a condition for further expansion of economic
relations, to include the establishment of normal trade relations. (U)

1
:
i
l

NIE STATEMENT: “On the issue of recovering and repatriating American
remains of U.S. personnel, we rate Vietnamese i
cooperation as excellent.” (p.5) (U)

ASSESSMENT: |

The question of exactly who is rating Vietnamese cooperation on recovery and

" repatriation of US remains, as reflected above in the NIE, is germane because the
above-quoted NIE statement is repeated again in the NIE in a blue chart on page 7,
entitled Summary Evaluation: Vietnamese Cooperation with the United States on
POW/MIA Accounting. The category element is listed as Joint Field Activities;

Recovery and Repatriation of Remains, with the level of cooperation listed as
excellent. (U) ' ‘ |

The source for the chart is identified in a footnote as US afficials responsible for
carrying oul research, investigation, and joint recovery operations of American
POW/MIAs, later identified as Joint Task Force (Full Accounting) officials. (8) |

There is no distinction drawn anywhere else in either the chart or in the above- 1
quoted NIE contention between joint US-SRV recovery/repatriation of remains and
unilateral SRV recovery/repatriation of remains. Since there is no other category
element in the chart to reflect unilateral SRV activity, the reader must assume that
the term recovery and repatriation of remains refers to both unilateral and joint

SECRET
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-efforts. (U) .

This assumption is supported by a subsequent statement on page 16 that reads,
" “Vietnamese responsiveness on the recovery and repatriation issue is currently
descnbed by JTE-FA officials as excellent " 48) .

- For the NIE to then reﬂect as its own IC Judgment a position that SRV cooperal ion
" concerning joint and unilateral recovery and repatriation of US remains is excellent,
. based solely on assurances provided to the IC from one non-intelligence entity (ie:
- JTF-FA), belies comprehension, and is especially disturbing for three main reasons:
sz .
(1) there is evidence available to the Intelllgence Community concerning:
(a) Vietnamese manipulation of witnesses and material evidence af

e L _and (b) Vietnamese.-.—-— b1
!,'“ Y recovery of US remains that nWated to the United ®)1)
i . States*(@U) .. - S .

I '. (2) the Research and Analysis Directorate. of the Department of Defense
[ . Prisoner of War/Missing Personnel Office (DPMO), consisting of

; : former IC analysts, and responsible for-JTF-FA policy guidance on

: \ operations-and investigations in. Vietnam, has consistently maintained.
il ' that “our own estimates regarding the number of US remains collected
. and stored by Hanoi are well within the range of acceptable error” for
i : " - . the 400-600 rough first-hand estimate provided by a source deem:d
(.2 , _ reliable by that office and subsequently reflected in the 1987 special
L .\ .. NIE. DPMO has further stated, “our analysis indicates that in fotal,

! "2 Comprehensive Report/Case Assessments prepared by Department of Defense POW/MIA -

' Office, and sent.to Congress on November 13, 1995, and December 5, 1995, pursuant to I'ublic -
i Law (U);.and DoD Inspector General Report of Interview with Gamett “Bill”. Bell, formesr Chief;
U.S. POW/MIA Office, 1991, dated October 10, 1996, and IC reporting since 1987. (U)

i , SECRET
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Vietnam collected and stored an estimated 300 US remains.™* (Sf

At the same time, information made available by the U.S. Army
Central Identification Laboratory (CILHI) indicates that approximately
170 US remains repatriated by Hanoi since the end of the war show
evidence of storage.' (U) Based on the large discrepancy in this data
(300 stored vs. 170 returned), all of which was available to the IC, it is
extremely inaccurate for the NIE to itself judge Vietnam’s record on
unilateral repatriation of remains as excellent. (8)

(3) As the Deputy Assistant Secretary of Defense for POW/MIA Affairs
himself recently indicated, “While, in recent years, the Vietnamese
have been constructive and cooperative in facilitating the forensic .
review and repatriation of remains, since September 1990, these I.f
remains have all been jointly (emphasis added) recovered in the field or '
turned in by local citizens...Failure to repatriate these remains would be  /
a very hostile act. To call their return a sign of excellent (emphasis '
added) cooperation, however, suggests that the opposite of hostile is
excellent. This is a flag in the face of those skeptical of the
Vietnamese record or who remember the long, slow record of |
Vietnamese repatriations of stored remains.”" : /

",

In essence, the NIE chose to base an evaluation of Vietnamese cooperation in the f
area of remains recovery on assurances from one non-intelligence entity (JTF-FA),
alone, without even factoring in the positions of the non-intelligence entity that
oversees JTF-FA and evaluates Vietnamese performance and knowledge in this

¥ Memorandum for Under Secretary of Defense, Walter Slocombe, #1-98/69271.4(@{ '

" See Memorandum of CILHI statistics, distributed by Executive Director, National League
of Families of Americans Missing and Prisoner in Southeast Asia, dated September 1, 1998. (U)

¥ Memorandum for Director, Defense Intelligence Agency from Deputy Assistant Secretary of
Defense (POW/Missing Personnel Affairs), Subject: Assessment of NIE, dated June 30, 1998. (S)

SECRET
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! . patticular area (ie: DPMO). But even more disturbing is the NIO’s statement, with
| o - respect to this specific assessment, that the IC itself cannot be expected to be a

-‘ " source for such an evaluation in an NIE because “the intelligence community dces
not deal with the Vietnamese with respect to recovery.'®” This contention has
serious ramifications for the reputation of the U.S. Imelhgence Community, and
would be akin to a statemgnt that the IC cannot assess North Korean performance

on missile proliferation because the IC does not deal with North Korea on this

oy subject. (S)
NIE STATEMENT: = "We think Hanoi's decision to be more cooperative with
the United States on POW/MIA accounting has not come
. easily to the Vietnamese leaders...But our reporting
suggests that the POW/MIA issue no longer has the
political sensmvzty it once had."(p.5).(U)

ASSESSMENT:

The NIE contends that evidence for increased Vietnamese cooperation has occurred
“since the early 1990s.” Yet, inexplicably, the NIE simultaneously ignores the
obvious by minimizing the issue’s sensitivity: . It is because of the political
sensitivity of the POW/MIA issue and its perceived public linkage to normalization
of U.S.-SRV relations beginning in 1991 that Vietnam has taken the-steps at the
working level, referenced in this NIE, to give the appearance of overall progress. In
point of fact, at no time since the end of the war in 1973, was the need for
Vietnamese action on the POW/MIA issue more politically sensitive for Hanoi than
when normalization of relations with the United States period was so close at hand,
and then underway the last few years, while at the same time, the issue. 1tse1f was
under close scrutiny in Washington. 1 (U)

'8 Transcript of Briefing on Natxonal Intelligence Estimate provided to U.S. side of U.S.-
Russia Joint. Commission on POW/MlAs, U.S. Capltol S. 407, on June 17, 1998 (p.26). (S

" At the time of publication of the 1987 special NIE on this subject, the White House:

3000018
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Indeed, the surfacing of the so-called “1205" and “735" documents from Russian
archives in 1993 (discussed in Part Two of this NIE), and Hanoi’s response, proves
beyond any doubt that the issue itself has become more politically sensitive not less
as implied in the NIE. Moreover, for the NIE to directly state that “our reporting
suggests” less sensitivity mandates a full review of the IC’s holdings on this
judgment as it again strains credulity, in view of public events, to believe that the IC
has no reporting to suggest Hanoi’s continued, and even increased, sensitivity to
perceptions of its cooperation on the POW/MIA issue in recent years. (U)

NIE STATEMENT: “Incidents of outright refusal to cooperate with U.S.
investigators have decreased,...” (p.5) (U)

ASSESSMENT:

Several questions come to mind with this NIE contention above because the NIE

- provides no clear time frame of reference for the statement and no apparent

sourcing. Incidents of outright refusal have decreased compared to what previdus
period - since 1987, since the early 1990's? Who is the source for this broad
statement in the NIE — intelligence reporting, JTF-FA officials, etc...?

Is this a realistic and reliable indicator of cooperation, and is it based on a
convincing analysis of documented US requests to SRV officials which have been
flatly denied, and has the record of US requests been consistent enough over time to

appointed a Special Emissary to Hanoi on the POW/MIA Issue, General John Vessey. Four years
later, in August, 1991, the United States Senate voted unanimously to establish a Senate Select
Committee on POW/MIA Affairs, in view of continued suspicions about Hanoi’s cooperation and -

“the U.S. Government’s handling of the issue. During this same period, the Department of State

presented SRV officials with a road map to normalization of U.S.-SRYV relations, requiring
increased POW/MIA cooperation. The Department of Defense subsequently established a Joint
Task Force contingent in January, 1992, under the U.S. Pacific Command, reporting to the
Chairman of the Joirit-Chiefs of Staff. There is little doubt that Hanoi recognized that the issue
was becoming more politically sensitive for them, not less. (U)

‘&Jieﬂﬁ‘_
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accurately reflect a cooperative SRV trend? These questions warrant a fésponse:
and a further review of the evidence available to the IC. (U)

NIE STATEMENT:

ASSESSMENT:

“...there are still instances in which the Vietnamese raise
objections to POW/MIA activilies. In most cases, the
Vietnamese cite considerations of sovereignity — for
example, in refusing to make internal Politburo
documents accessible to US investigators; security, such
as not allowing US officials to enter classified locaticns
and facilities; or technical problems, such as difficulty
locating documents or records. Occasionally, the
Vietnamese state that local villagers are concerned about
the intrusive nature of investigations and recovery
operations.” (p.5-6) (U)

The NIE fails to judge, from an intelligence point of view, the credibility of the
above-referenced SRV excuses (e.g. does a Communist dictatorship really care

about the views of local villagers), and the potential implications of these objections
(ie: is this where the goods are if Hanot’s leaders had, in fact, decided to withhold
certain critical information that directly bears on the POW/MIA accounting _
question). Moreover, the reader is led to infer from the NIE statement itself that the
excuses, may, in fact, be persuasive and genuine. The failure to make a judgment in
this critical area concemning SRV intentions, capabilities, and performance, renders

NIE STATEMENT:

_its inclusion in the Key Judgments section of the NIE meaningless. (U)

“...Vietnam's performance generally has improved with
respect to the US POW/MIA issue...Vietnam's overall
performance in dealing with the POW/MIA problem has
been good in recent years...” (p.6) (U) '

SWT
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ASSESSMENT:

A Key Judgment that “performance generally has improved” and “overall
performance has been good” requires at least some attempt under this-heading to

* define what is meant by the term ¢ ‘generally” and “overall.” Information and

testimony clearly indicate that performance has not sngmﬁcant]y improved since the
early 1990s with respect to access to any relevant POW/MIA material contained in
Communist Party Politburo or Central Committee-level holdings, in addition to
better access to SRV Ministry of National Defense and General Political Dlrecmrate
wartime documentation on Amencan losses along the Ho Chi Minh trail in Laos.™®

L)

Additionally, material, such as prison records directly relevant to POW/MIA
accounting, have not been provided, and the NIE itself later acknowledges this in
another section of the estimate (see p. 20). (SY”

" And according to the Commander of the Joint Task Force (Full Accounting), the

U.S., in point of fact, no longer has a full-time presence with Vietnamese
counterparts working in North Vietnamese museums and archives, something which
was once heralded as a breakthrough in the POW/MIA accounting mission.!® (U)

All of the above information was available to the principal drafter of the NIE, who
concedes having relied on JTF-FA opinions in both defined and undefined sections
of the NIE, as opposed to intelligence reporting which is alleged not to exist. Yet,
for none of the areas outlined above to warrant iriclusion and consideration relating
to a judgment under the heading of performance generally or overall performance !

' DoD Testimony to House National Security Subcommittee on Military Personnel, dated
June 28, 1995, November 30, 1995, and June 19, 1996 (U); and Deputy Assistant Secretary of
Defense (POW/MIA Affairs) letter to U.S. Senator Hank Brown, dated April 25, 1996. (U)

' Memorandum for the Record, Meeting with JTF-FA Commander, General Terry Tucker,

WT
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~ on the POW/MIA issue implies a clear lack of knowledge of the relevant aspects to

the POW/MIA accounting effort, and is especially disturbing because the referenced
information was previously made available to the IC.2 (U)

The NIE notes earlier that performance has improved in some areas, such as
increased staffing, responsiveness, and professionalism, but this can hardly be
interpreted as the sole basis for good overall performance with respect to the US
POW/MIA issue. Because the NIE’s judgment in this area is not supported by
available evidence, it is inadequate, misleading, and cannot be accepted with any.
confidence. (U) '

NIE STATEMENT: “...we think Hanoi has not been completely forthcoming
on certain POW/MIA malters: In some instances, we
believe full disclosure would prove embarrassing to the
regime. For example, Hanoi continues to deny that US
POWs were mistreated while in captivity in the North. We
think Vietnam still has records it could make available to
US investigators but which would discredit its denials of
mistrealment. A few reports of transfers of US POWs to
Russia and other countries are unexplained, and the
books remain open.” (p.6) (U)

ASSESSMENT:

Under the heading Key Judgments above, the NIE chooses to define “certain”
POW/MIA matters where Hanoi is not completely forthcoming as (1) for example,

records which would discredit SRV denials of POW torture, and (2) a few reports of

transfer of US POWSs to Russia and other countries. (U)

? Letter ffom Chairman and Vice-Chairman, SSCI, to CIA, dated December 3, 1997 and
letters to DIA Director from Sen. Smith dated February 6, 1998 and April 15, 1998. (U)

SECRET
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With respect to (1), it remains unexplained given the gravity of key outstanding
POW/MIA questions why torture would be cited in this Key Judgments portion of
the NIE as the most important and relevant example to use, and not other more
embarrassing examples such as the holding back of any unacknowledged Amencan
POWs after Operation Homecoming in 1973. (U)

On June 17, 1998, 1 asked Robert Suettinger, the NIO for East Asia, the following
question: .

Sen, Smith: Would it not also be embarrassing to release information that they held back
American prisoners? Yes or no.

Mr. Suettinger: Yes.

Sen. Smith: ...So why wouldn 't you say just as conjecture, that if it is embarrassing for
them to provide torture information, it would be just as embarrassing for them to tell us
that they held back American POWs after the war. Wouldn't it?

Mpr. Suettinger: I suppose it would ! (3'5

The fact that the NIE does not reflect a more relevant example bearing on the
POW/MIA accounting issue under the Key Judgments heading is not only
disappointing, but very misleading to the NIE reader concerning the scope of
knowledge the SRV may still possess concerning unaccounted for POW/MIAs. (U)

It bears noting that the Office of the Secretary of Defense has also formally
expressed concern with the citing of this specific example under the Key Judgments
portion of the NIE, stating, in part: :

“...We agree with the assessment that Vietnamese coaperation on documents is
incomplete, but we canmot agree, as the NIE asseris, that this assessment is based
principally on Vietnamese reluctance to reveal instances of mistreatment...We are

! Transcript of Briefing on National Intelligence Estimate provided to U.S. side of U.S -
Russia Joint Commission on POW/MIAs, U.S. Capitol, S.407, June 17, 1998, p. 26-27. §§)’

_SECRET™
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i _ concerned that the prominence given these topics in the NIE may focus allemton o1.an
: emolive (opic that is irrelevant to the accounting effori... 2 £y

' Wlth respect to (2), on unexplained reports of possible POW transfer from Victnam
3! to Russia and other countries, the NIE judges that because a few reports are ,
unexplained, and the books remain open, then this means that Hanoi has not been
completely forthcoming, even though the NIE subsequently states in a later section
on p. 24, “...we lack good evidence that POWs were transferred to the USSR...”
Given this subsequent statement, it seems odd that the NIE can reach a Key
Judgment on p. 6 that Hanoi has net been completely forthcoming on this topic. 98)

q’ ‘ I agree that the books must definitély remain open on the transfer issue based on

' il more pressing information previously made available to the IC but inexplicably not

g % : referenced in the NIE under the heading of unresolved transfer reports on p. 23. 2
|

&

i .
' = However, these matters notwithstanding, the evidence before the IC has been much
L .- more continuous and voluminous that Hanoi did not acknowledge and return all US
g ' POWs under its control in 1973 than is has been on the transfer issue. As such, it is
o bizarre that some unexplained reports of transfer would meet the threshold for
shi inclusion in this section, yet a larger body of evidence on other unresolved subjects
bearing on continued SRV stonewalling on POW/MIA issues would not be included
ERE here. As such, the Key Judgment in this section is woefully inadequate, shallow, and
;:';,5;‘ - misleading to the NIE reader with respect to the potential scope of SRV knowledge.

5

2 Memorandum to Director, Defense Intelligence Agency, from Deputy Assistant Secretary of
Defense (POW/Missing Personnel Affairs), dated June 30, 1998, p.2.

B SeeL _|Soviet-MIG defector, Alexander Zuyev (8S), follow-up JCSD
mterv;éws with him (U), and published claims by Zuyev in Malcolm McConnell’s book, Fulcrum
(U);in addition to the report by Russian Presidential Advisor and Co-Chairman of the Joint
Commlssmn on POW/MIAs, the late Dmitri Volkogonov, discovered in early January, 1998,

_~"concerning evidence of a KGB assigned mission and plan to “transfer knowledgeable Araericans
" to the USSR” in the late 1960s, made available to the NIC by the JCSD on January 14, 1998. (U).

(b)(1 ) . :
(b)(3) NatSecAct SECRET
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“We have reviewed the so-called “1205 and 735
documents,” which purport — falsely in our view — to be
reporis 1o the party leadership containing statements that
Hanoi held large numbers of US POWs above those
acknowledged to the United States. We believe the
Jjudgments in the 1993 IC assessment released by DoD
remain valid: that the documents are probably authentic
GRU (Soviet Military Intelligence) - collected documents.

But many of the details of the documents, including dates
and other facts, are implausible or inconsistent with
reliable evidence...We believe that neither document
provides a factual foundation on which to judge
Vietnamese performance on the POW/MIA issue.” (p.8)

)

The referenced /1993 IC assessment released by DoD was actually released by DoD
on January 24, 1994. It states, in part, the following in relatxon to the 1205 and 735

1205 Document Assessment by IC/DoD released in January, 1994:

e We believe it probably is an authentic Soviet document...(it) appears to be
an authentic Russian intelligence report.

® We found portions of the “1205 Report” that were unrelated to the POW-
MIA issue to be plausible...the most credible of which is in the section about
political operations planned for South Vietnam.

e - For example, it identifies several South Vietnamese leaders who were known
opponents of the regime of President Nguyen Van Thieu and who were

SECRET
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reported to have had clandesline contacts with representatives from the
North. ' i

Itaccurately depicls the circumstances surrounding the surrender of a South
Vietnamese unit during the 1972 Easter Offensive, admitting that the North's
propaganda had misrepresented the event. -

It predicts an upsurge in terrorist attacks beginning in October, 1972, which
was indeed noted in the Mekong Delta region in November...

We cannot dismiss the 1205 Report” as a fabrication, but before we can
accepl it as what the Russian cover memo claims it is, we must have better

" evidence of its authorship and credibility.

There probably also is more information in Vieinamese party and military
archives that could shed light on this document. We continue to pursue this.
As further information becomes available, this assessment will be upclated. # .

L)

735 Documen't Assessment by fC/DoD released in January, 1994:

We have only two complete pages, 11 and 18, of a longer report, making it
difficult to analyze closely. . .
Like the “1205 Report”, it is a GRU document, transcribing and translating
the text of an oral report presented at a Vieinamese Communist Party
conclave.

We believe the report is a genuine GRU document, not a fabrication, as
craimed by Hanoi, ™

The 735 Document” is too fragmentary to permit detailed analysis...
There probably also is more information in Vietnamese party and military
archives that could shed light on this document. We continue to pur:ue
this.” (U)

u Department of Defense News Release/Memorandum for Correspondents, No. 02894, dated
January 24, 1994, (U)

2 1bid.
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Based on the above quotations from the pre\}ious assessment, it is clear that the
current NIE has not accurately represented this earlier judgment by stating “...many
of the details of the documents, including dates and other facts, are implausible or
inconsistenit with reliable evidence” and not acknowledging that portions of the .
1205 report, were, in fact, accurate or plausible based on evidence available to the
IC, and represented as such in January, 1994. (U)

Equally important, the earlier assessment specifically rejected Hanoi’s contention
that the 735 Document was a fabrication, and not a genuine GRU document, and
specifically judged that there was probably more information in Vietnamese party
and military archives that could shed light 6n both documents, and that this
information would be pursued in Hanoi. (U)

For the current NIE to say that the judgments in the prior assessment remain valid,
but then say that neither document provides a factual foundation upon which to
Judge Vietnamese performance on the POW/MIA question, is simply irreconcilable,

* especially given the undeniable fact that, as of this writing, Hanoi has yet to disclose

any relevant data from party archives that could shed light on either of these
documents. The prior judgments put a lie to Hanoi’s performance and credibility on

 this aspect of the 1205/735 documents, leaving the NIE reader with a Key Judgment

that is not supported by the prior judgments the NIE itself references. (U)

Finally, every piece of relevant data on the issue of authenticity gathered and made
available to the IC since the prior assessment was conducted in 1994 has reinforced
the contention that the documents, are, in fact, legitimate GRU acquisitions.?® For
the NIE to be timid and hesitant to remove the 1994 term “probably™ for purposes
of the current NIE Key Judgment on whether the documents are, in fact, authentic
GRU collected materials, is extremely misleading to the NIE reader. In point of

* See Record of USRIC meetings and JCSD interviews and investigations conducted between
1994-1998, maintained by.the Vietnam War Working Group, JCSD, Defense POW/MIA Office,
Department of Defense, and the Office of Senator Bob Smith. (U)

sucser
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fact, aside from Hanoi's rhetorical claims against the documents, no credible
witness or information has surfaced to suggest that these are not authentic wartine
GRU acquisitioris. Continuance of the term “probably” injects unwarranted
speculation concerning authenticity which is unsupported by the historical record
concerning the discovery and release of this information to the United States in
1993, and subsequent investigations by the Joint U.S.-Russia Commission on POWs
and MlAs. (U)

NIE STATEMENT: (With respect to the 1205/735 documents), “In particular,
the numbers of POWs allegedly held by Hanoi at the
times mentioned are inconsistent with reliable US
Government statistics and far outnumber the actual 'otal
of open cases. " (p.8) (U)

ASSESSMENT:

The NIE statement that fie number of POWs allegedly held is inconsistent with
reliable US Governmgft statistics is not proven or demonstrated anywhere in the
NIE -- it is merely assetted. -Given the priority assigned by the National Security
Adbvisor to the Presidert for an assessment of these documents, it is simply
unacceptable that a detailed analysis of the numbers is not presented in the NIE.
This is especially disturbing because the NIE’s claim on its face is, in fact,
demonstrably false as shown below. (U)

First, with réspect to the'so-ca‘ﬂed “735" Document;

According to the English translation of the 735 document, the Russian GRU reports

-a-statement by a North Vietnamese official to a North Vietnamese leadership

gathering, that “...we published the names of 368 American pilots who were shot
down and taken captive in the territory of the D.R.V. (North Vietnam)...The overall
number of American pilots imprisoned in the D.R.V. is 735. As already statzd, we
published the names of 368 pilots. This is our diplomatic move.” The time frame

SECRET
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for the report is dated “End of December, 1970/early January, 197 1,” accofdihg to
the GRU cover page to the translated text from Vietnamese to Russian. (U)

It is true and verifiable that during this time-frame, Hanoi did, in fact, publish a list
of exactly 368 names, entitled, “U.S. Pilots Captured in the Democratic Republic of
Vietnam from August 5, 1964 to November 15, 1970.” Yet, nowhere in the NIE is
the confirmation of this statement in the “735" document acknowledged. The IC

has a responsibility to share this information with the reader of the NIE. It did not.

Why?7.(8Y

"The 368 list was published by the DRV’s Ministry of National Defense, and is
dated November 15, 1970. The list was released to representatives of Senators
Kennedy and Fulbright in Paris on December 22, 1970, and provided to certain
other foreign governments as well.>” All of the names of the men on the list had
previously been unofficially provided to American peace activist Cora Weiss
between May and November, 1970.% (U)

- The 368 list itself consisted of 339 Air Force and Navy pilots and crewmembers
currently in captivity, 9 such personnel previously released, and 20 such personnel
listed as dead.”® The status of the 339 men listed as captives was already known to

* Memorandum to President Nixon from National Security Advisor, Henry A. Kissinger,
dated December 23, 1970; Joint Chiefs of Staff Memorandum for the Record of the December 22,
1970 meeting of the NSC Ad-Hoc Group on Vietnam, dated December 23, 1970; Memorandum
of Conversation of the USSR Ambassador to Vietnam with Chief of the Department of the USSR
2f the Ministry of Foreign Affairs of the Democratic Republic of Vietnam, dated December 22,
1970; AP Bulletin dated December 22, 1970, UPI Bulletin dated December 22, 1970; New York
Times News Service, dated December 25, 1972; and American Embassy Rome message, May 3,
1971. (U)

% See “Cora Weiss” lists of POWs obtained by Defense Intelligence Agency, released to Sen.
Smith in 1993 from DIA holdings previously sent to National Archives in 1984 (U),
Memorandum from Secretary of Defense to Service Secretaries, dated August, 1971. (U)

? Memorandum from Chief, Evasion and Escape Branch, Production Support and Resources
Division, Defense Intelligence Agency, dated June 21, 1972. (U)

SECRET
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the Pentagon based on the Cora Weiss lists and U.S. intelligence and casualty
information at the time, although this was the first “official” acknowledgment of
their status by Hanoi. 0 48)]

Based on Department of Defense POW/MIA lists', only 335 Air Force and Navy
pilots and crewmembers captured in North Vietnam prior to November 15, 1970
were later repatriated to the United States (one in Sept. 72, and the remainder
following the signing of the Peace Accords in 1973 (Jan-Apr). (U)

This fact essentially means only two things: Hanoi made the political decision to
release a full and complete list of ‘airmen captured in North Vietnam in December,
1970 (which was the only category of men in this category from this time period
later released in 1973) or Hanoi, as the 735 Document alleges, viewed the
December, 1970 list as a diplomatic move, whereby the.decision was made nct to
acknowledge all airmen captured by North Vietnamese forces at this point in the
war. (U)

- Incredibly, the NIE is completely silent on this vital and obvious question of

Vietnamese intentions, as described above. More importantly, the evidence is
powerful that Hanoi did not and would not have released, in 1970, a complete list of
airmen captured by North Vietnamese forces, nor did the U.S. Government believe
it to be a complete list of U.S. POWs held in North Vietnam at the time.*? Yet, the

3 Statement by Dr. Roger E. Shields, Deputy Assistant Secretary of Defense, before the
Senate Foreign Relations Committee, dated January 28, 1974, p.4. (U) -

*! Chronological List of U.S. Personnel lost, captured, missing, and repatriated from Scutheast
Asia, Defense POW/MIA Office Official Reference Document, dated May, 1997. (U)

2 U.8. Secretary of Defense Melvin Laird stated at the time, based on DoD’s review of the
1970 list, “I do not accept it as a complete list of all the prisoners held in North Vietnam.”
(Memorandum from the Secretary of Defense to the Secretaries of the Military Departments,
dated August, 1971). He reinforced that position 21 years later in testimony before the Senate
Select Committee on POW/MIA Affairs on September 21, 1992, stating “I felt those lists were
inadequate...it was not complete information, and we knew of the existence of other POWs when
those lists were delivered to us... We felt there were more... We had solid, confirmed evidence
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NIE would have its readers believe otherwise without even attemptmg to

demonstrate its unsupported contention. (U)

[n addition, according to official U.S. Government statistics, forwarded to the
Director of Central Intelligence during this period, as of December, 1970 (the same
month as the alleged “735" report), the Department of Defense officially listed 462
POWSs, 962 MIAs, and 117 Non-Hostile missing, for a total of 1,541 “missing and
captured personnel.” This statistic alone puts a lie to the NIE’s contention that.
*“735" (less than half of 1 541) is inconsistent with reliable U.S. Government

statistics. (U)

Based on an examination of these wartime statistics, to include factoring in all U.S.
air losses over both North Vietnam and North Vietnamese controlled-areas of Laos
(no airmen captured in Laos were on the disclosed 368 list), it is plausible that

Hanoi could have had a pool of 367 additional US personnel “imprisoned in the
DRV” who were not acknowledged as captive in December, 1970 (367 + 368 list =
735). Moreover, based on the actual total of open POW or MIA cases from North
Vietnam and Laos, (as of 1997 - 607, of which the majority were loss prior to ‘
January, 1971), and inherent uncertainties concerning dates of death with respect to
many of the approximately 500 remains repatriated from Southeast Asia since the
end of the war, the possibility of 367 additional personnel having been held in" -

that there were more POWs in the North at that time.” In addition, Acting Secretary of the Army,
Thaddeus Beal, wrote to the Secretary of Defense on July 10, 1970, stating, “At present, Cora -
Weiss maintains that about 334 Americans are detained by Hanoi. But the facts are that 780
Americans are listed as missing in North Vietnam, and 769 in South Vietnam and Laos. We know
with some certainty that of this number, 376 are PW in North Vietnam and 78 are PW elsewhere
in Indochina. We expec! thai among those listed as missing, substantial numbers will éventually
furn up as captives...To accept Hanoi’s admission of responsibility for less than 350 US PW-as
conduct constituting reasonable, humane, or mtematlonally respons:ble conduct is to-betray those
other forgotten Americans.” (U)

* Message for Director, Central Intelligence Agency from American Embassy Saigon, -
“following are official figures from missing and captured personnel. hsts prepared by Deputy :
Comptroller for Information, DoD...”, dated May 10, 1971. (U) : S
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captivity during this period, in point of fact, does not far outnumber the actual total
of open cases, as the NIE claims. This is a glaring and readily apparent
mathematical error in the NIE. (U)

The plausibility of the scenario in the“735" document being more historically
accurate than the NIE’s implicit contention that Hanoi chose to list all POWs it held:-
B in the North in 1970, is further demonstrated by information in another Soviet-era

: ﬁ'; report previously disclpsed to.the IC.>* In that report, originated by the Soviet

Ambassador in Hanoi during the war, I.S. Scherbakov, and entitled, “Soviet- -

R Vietnamese Negotiations in April, 1967, the Soviet Ambassador advises his North
Vietnamese counterparts, “it is not necessary to inform the Americans on the exact
number of prisoners. A half of them could be handed over and the others could be .
released later in exchange for repair.of damage inflicted by the U.S. bombarcment
of the DRV.”? It is interesting to note that the 735 Report-describes a similar -
scenario being followed by Hanoi’s leaders.. Yet, inexplicably, this evidence is not.

presented in the:NIE. (U) '

. Second. with'resgect to the so-called “1205" Document: -

According to the English translation of the 1205 document, the Russian GRU )
reports statements by a North Vietnamese oﬁ' cial to a North Vietnamese leadership
gathenng, to mclude the followmg : : :

T RS e

“the total number of Amencan POWs captured to date on- the ﬂonts of Indochma
ie: in North Vietnam, South Vietnam, Laos, and Cambodia, comprises 1205
people...624 aviators captured in North Vietnam, 143 aviators captured in South
V:etnam 47 dxversmmsts and other American servicemen captured in North . ..

e FRET
TS S esnE, TS AT

T

™ See letter from Chatrman and Vlce-Chalrman, SSCI to CIA dated December 3 1997 and
letters to DIA Director’ from Sen. Smith dated February 6, 1998 and- Apnl 15, 1998 (U)

* Extract from.report entttled “Soviet Vietnamese Negonatmns of April, 1967 and the .
Followmg WPYV Policy with: regard to a.Vietnamese Problem Settlement s dated Augurt 1967 :
from Sowet Embassy, Hanm ) = e :
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Vietnam, and 391 American éervicemen of other categories, which inclu&é’é 283
captured in South Vietnam, 65 in Cambodia, and 43 in Laos...”

“We intend to resolve the American POW issue in the following manner: The U.S.
Government must demonstrate compliance with a cedse-fire and the removal of
Nguyen Van Thieu...Nixon must compensate North Vietnam for the great damage
inflicted on it by this destructive war... For now, we have officially published the list
of the 368 POWs. The rest are not acknowledged. The U.S. Government is aware
of this, but they do not know the exact number of POWs, or they perhaps only
assume an approximate number based on their losses. That is why in accordance
with instructions from the Politburo, we are keeping the number of POWs
secret...when the American government resolves the political and military issues on
all three fronts of Indochina, we will set free all American POWs.” (U)

The time frame for the report is dated “September 15, 1972,” according to the GRU
cover page to the translated text (from Vietnamese to Russian). (U)

" As demonstrated under the previous section with-respect to the 735 document, it is

true and verifiable that Hanoi did, in fact, officially release a list of exactly 368
names of captured Americans, which is again referenced above in the 1205
document. As noted earlier, this fact is not pointed out to the reader anywhere in
the NIE. (U) : :

But more importantly, the NIE fails to offer the reader any convincing analysis of
the numbers in the 1205 report to demonstrate their accuracy or inaccuracy. This is
especially disturbing in view of U.S. statistics which listed approximately 1,800
U.S. personnel as captured or missing in Indochina as of September, 1972, thereby
on its face giving credence to an alleged North Vietnamese statistic that 1,205
Americans had actually been captured by communist forces as of that date. (U)

* Chronological List of U.S. Personnel lost, captured, missing, and repatriated from Southeast
Asia, Defense POW/MIA Office Official Reference Document, dated May, 1997. (U)
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With respect to one of the two largest categories of captured Americans noted inthe
1205 report — 624 aviators captured in North Vietnam as of September, 1972; —
U.S. statistics, based on Operation Homecoming in 1973, show that 405 awators
captured and held in North Vietnam as of September 15, 1972 returned alive, which
would leave a discrepancy of 187 U.S. awators (an adjusted high end figure which .
factors in early returnees and died in captivity airmen) if the 1205 rcport wers

} Jln view of the Tact-

that, following.Operation Homecoming, the U.S. Government still listed as captured
or mlssmg 430 airmen lost over North Vletnam prior to September, 1972, the
question is whether 187 of 430 missing men could have-been captured alive, - The
questlon is even more relevant given the fact that 1.) over 300 American airmen are
still missing in action from incidents over North Vxetnam alone; and 2.) none of
these statistics include so-called Killed in Actxon/Body Not Recovered cases
compromising men believed during the war by the U.S..side 1o have died wit hout
their bodies being recovered. (U) ..

- With respect to the second of the two largest categories of captured Americuns
‘noted in the 1205 report — 283 captured American servicemen (not avnator‘)

captured in South, Vietnam as of September, 1972 — U.S. statistics, basedcn
Operation Homecommg in 1973, show that 77 Army personnel. and 17 Marines
were returned to U.S. control, the majority of which had been captured prior to -
September, 1972. The 1205 report alleges, therefore, that approximately 190
additional U.S, ground personnel were captured by communist forces in South
Vietnam. In’ view -of the fact that, followmg Operation Homeconnng, theUS. .. .
Government, still listed as captured or missing approxxmately 400. Army and Marine .
Corps personnel lost in South Vietnam, the question is whether 190 of 400 ‘missing -
men could have been captured alive. And again, the questlon is-even more relevant -
given the fact that 1.).over 300 men in thxs category are still:missing in action from
incidents in South Vietnam; and 2.) none of thes¢ statistics include so-called Killed
in Action/Body Not Recovered cases compromising men believed durmg the war by
the U.S. snde to have died w1thout their bodies bemg recovered (U) .

I
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The numbers of captured U.S. POWs in the 1205 report are also consistent with
U.S. estimates in other smaller. categories as well. For example, with respect to
Laos, the 1205 report alleged “from other categon'es of American servicemen in
Indochina, we have captured.. forty-three in Laos.” U.S. estimates were quite close
to this figure. In January, 1973, the Military Assistant to the Secretary of Defense
told White House officials “we don’t know what we will get from Laos. We have
onlysgix known prisoners in Laos, although we hope there may be forty or forty-.
one.”" (U)

Once again, the NIE fails to offer any convincing analysis of these numbers and
possibilities, and instead, forces its reader to accept an inaccurate claim on its face
that the numbers in the 1205 document are inconsistent and far outnumber the

~ actual total of open cases. Moreover, the NIE inexplicably ignores statements by

credible Russian officials since 1993, (which were provided to the NIE principal
author in early 1998), indicating their judgment that the total number of referenced
US POWs was true or plausible. As examples — '

" o In September 1996, the Russian Chairman of the U.S.-Russia POW/MIA

Commission, General-Major Vladimir Zolotarev, stated “We consider the
number of American POWs given in that report quite plausible.”

o In August, 1995, the Chief State Archivist of the-Russian Federation, Dr. Rudol’f
Pikhoya, stated “I am absolutely certain that the numbers cited in the 1205
report are true, . I believe that data still exists in Vietnam which deals
specifically with US POWSs.”

e Also, in August, 1995, Captain 1° Rank Alexander Sivets of the Main
Intelligence Directorate (GRU) of the General Staff of the Russian Federation
stated “We consider that the Vietnamese leaders, in their desire to exploit the
POW problem for their own interests, would publicly cite a lower figure than

*7 Excerpt from transcript of the Washington Special Actions Group (WASAG) Meetmg,
White House Situation Room, January 29, 1973. (U)
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U ~ the real one. This is something that we do not doubt...we believe there were
¥ more American POWs than Vietnam was publicly admitting to” as the
1205/735 documents claim.

R e In a conversation Wlth Gen. Vessey on June 22, 1993, Russian General
Volkogonov stated “the Vietamese would naturally not keep those prisoners
T the US knew were in captivity,” thus lending credibility to the fact that, with the-

i exception of 16 individuals, all POWs captured during the Vietnam War prior to.
the date of the 1205 report, were, in fact, known to be POWs and SO hsftec by the
Pentagon pnor to their release. ¥ (U) :

Finally, the NIE ignores credlble tesumony from former U.S. officials, (also
provided to the principal NIE author in early 1998)-which would tend to corroborate
indications in 1973 that Hanoi had not acknowledged all /S POWs in the list s
turned over in Paris in January, 1973 for repatriation under the peace accords.
examples — - A

" e On September 21, 1992, former Secretary of Defense Melvin.R. Laird testified
before the. Senate Select Committee on POW/MIA Affairs, stating “Now when
you get into the lists that were finally given to the Administration on Jonuary
27, 1973...1 did not think at that time that those were full lists, Elmt was my gut

. reaction.. my: expectatmns were Iuglaer, and I was dasappmme

e On June 24 ]992 former Chalrman of the Jomt Chnefs of. Staﬂ' Adxmral Thomas
R. Moorer, stated, in response to questioning by Senator Harry Reid on the
reasons Moorer believed there were more POWs still in Southeast Asia in 1973,
“Well, because of the scope of the operations, and the number of persons ﬁmt .
were mvnlved and the number of mrcmft tliat were shot down and so ony . .
where we didn’t find immediate mformatwn about what lrappened to ihe 2 piilot
and sma on. g ﬂwugiyt wfso, in vaew of the facz tlmt me war ixad been ; gromg on

® see DoD Enclosures for the Record, Hearing of the Senate Select Commxttee on I’OW/MIA
Affairs, September24 1992, p. 838, (U) P

swfr
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Jor 9 years, you know, I certainly would expect it to be more than the 591
(acknowledged POWs returned by Hanoi in 1973). 1 that that was the
number on the initial list. I didn’t think you could clean it up that fast.”

e On September '21, 1992, former Special Assistant to Dr. Kissinger, Winston
Lord, stated “We were disappointed that the lists were not longer...we were
naturally suspicious of Hanoi after all our experience.”

e Another assistant to Dr. Kissinger, Peter Rodman, stated in his Senate deposition
in 1992 that U.S. negotiators were “stunned” that there were not more names
of POWs on the lists turned over in Paris in January, 1973, for repatriation.

¢ On September 21, 1992, former Director of the Central Intelligence Agency and
Secretary of Defense, Dr. James R. Schiesinger, stated, in response to
questioning by Senator Charles Grassley on whether Schlesinger believed men
were left behind, “I think that, as of now, I can come to no other conclusion,
Senator... Despite the Paris agreements, there was no reason, in my judgment,
to assume that the North Vietnamese would release everybody.”

o On June 24, 1992, in response to questioning by Senator John Kerry on reaction
to the lists turned over by North Vietnam in Paris in January, 1973, former
Director of Intelligence for the Pacific Command, and Director, DIA, Lt. Gen.

“Eugene Tighe, stated “My personal view was shock because I had a great deal
of faith in the approximate numbers of those lists we had compiled and the
dossiers, and my reaction was that there was something radically wrong with
the lists versus our information. They should have contained many more
names. That was my personal judgment and it was the collective judgment of
all those that had worked compiling the lists. It pertained to the personnel
aspects of casualty reporting and the intelligence reporis.”

» On September 9, 1992, former Director of the National Security Agency and

Deputy Director of Central Intelligence, Admiral Bobby Ray Inman, testified in
his Senate deposition, in response to a question on his view on whether men

SECRET
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were still alive left behind in 1973, “In ‘73, @ large number of us sharea the
view that there were, simply because we had known people had gotten o the
ground, and that there were substantial prisoners in Laos that were
unaccounted for...”

On June 5, 1992, former Military Assistant on the NSC in 1973, and
subsequently National Security Advisor in the Reagan Administration, Robert C.
“Bud” McFarlane testified in his Senate deposition *“¥ told President Reagan
that I believe there were hundreds of Americans that were alive after they
were lost in North Vietnam or Laos, and that many of them were undoubtedly
murdered, many of them were undoubtedly held...if a lot of them were alive

_ right after they went down, then it becomes a matter of did the Vietnaniese

have more of an interest in keeping them alive or keeping them dead, ivilling
them. It seems to me logical that they would have kept some alive, all of them
perhaps...” .

McFarlane subsequently stated in an mterview on October 26, 1994, “I think
that at the end of the war, there were live American prisoners, and I ‘think it’s
one of the real scandals of our history of that war...although we migh:' not

have been able to get them back, at least we ought to have held the

Viethamese publicly to account about it...I am willing to forgive as well as the
next person, but I don’t like to be had, and the Vietnamese are gettmg all of
our Ievemge given away to them Jor nothmg »

On June 30, 1993 Dr. George Carver former Specuil Assistant for Vietnamese
Affairs to three successive Directors of Central Intelhgence between 1966 and
1973, testified that “...during 1973's initial months, a number of government
ojfcmls, myself included, were convinced that the Vietnamese Communists
were not leveling and never had leveled with the United States on the matter
of American POWSs...” (U)

The NIE also i |gnores supporting ewdence for these views made avafﬂable tothe
prmmpal author of the NIE mcludmg a report prevmusly forwarded by CIA to the

smf
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National Security Council in 1973, and an analysis of POW numbers done by DIA
that same year.*’ (U)

In conclusion, it is apparent that neither the 1994 1C/DoD Assessment of the
1205/735 documents nor the current NIE demonstrates the inaccuracy of the
numbers cited in these documents. Both assessments assert the documents’
inaccuracies, but neither demonstrates it If the NIE cannot demonstrate the
inaccuracy of the numbers cited, then its judgment that neither document provides a
Jactual foundation to judge Hanoi's performance on POW/MIA issues cannot be
. accepted with any degree of confidence. (U)

“0 Central Intelligence Agency Memorandum for Dr. Henry A. Kissinger, Subject: Indication
that the Communists are Holding Previously Unlisted U.S. POWs as a Future Bargaining
Tool, dated March 20, 1973; Defense Intelligence Agency Memorandum, Subject: The Status of
U.S. Prisoners in Laos, dated March 24, 1973, “...DIA has analyzed the number we thought
should be prisoners in North Vietnam against the number the DRV has listed and found that

45% of our possibles turnéd up on the final list. A similar comparison in South Vietnam
Yyields the figure of 21%. . Since we carry 352 as possxble in Laos, nine Amencams on the
Pathet Lao list gives a ndwulousl{v low figure of 2.5%.” (U)
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11 DETAILED ASSESSMENT OF NIE STATEMENT S

(continued)

Discussion. (P.9):

Part One: The Question of Vietnamese Cooperation

“...Vietnam is a hard-line Communist state, and we make a
big mistake judging things like credibility by our standards.
They have a different set of standards. For them, world
revolution is ethical and proper... We shouldn’t try to judge
what they say or assess its credibility by any other standard
than what is in their interest and furthers their cause.”

— Rep. Henry Hyde, (R-IL) *

NIE STATEMENT: . “In some instances, Viethamese on recovery tearnis have
willingly worked beyond the terms of their controcis (o
successfully complete. operations. Cultural reasons
contribute to this record.” (p.11) }S)

“...for local officials, participation in joint field activities
can be financially profitable. People:in their viliages can
earn much nmore by working on the activity than they.
" could in their normal work, Viefnamese offi icials .
someumes have been known to expand mvestzgatmns in

i From transcnpt of Press Conference by Congress:onal deleganon to Hanm to dlSC uss .
POW/MIA i issues, datéd January 15, 1980 (press conference held in-Bangkok, Thallancl see State
cable 151820Z Jan 80, from American Embassy, Bangkok to SeécState). (U) - '
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such' a manner as to prolong an activity and théi"eby
obtain more revenue."” (p.12) (%)

ASSESSMENT:

The above two conflicting statements appear to leave an NIE reader wondering
“which is it?” Are the Vietnamese assisting U.S. efforts “for the money” and if so,
then I question why these statements are cited in the NIE as good indicators of
Vietnam’s cooperative intentions. (5}

NIE STATEMENT: “...U.S. requests to see Politburo documents pertaining
. to US POW/MIA issues have been turned
aside... Vietnamese authorities have said they will
research the records and provide relevant POW/MIA
information, but we cannot always verify the accuracy of
the information they have given us.” (p. 15) (8)

ASSESSMENT:

This is the first apparent indication to the Congress of which I am aware that
Vietnamese officials have unilaterally researched Politburo records and passed on
information on POW/MIAs obtained from those records. Based on my own review
of this particular aspect of the POW/MIA issue, I seriously question the accuracy of
this NIE statement, especially because the Defense POW/MIA Office (DPMO)

has indicated the opposite in both open testimony and written communication to

Congress. (8) ‘

NIE STATEMENT: "Vielnamese Initiative in Recovery Operations: (Two)
Recent Examples...Case 1927, Lt. Daniel Borah...In
1995, the VNSOMP (ie: Vietnam) reported that it had
located a veteran of an antiaircraft battery whose
members had found a dead American pilot named Borah,

.sggxﬂfk
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arid had buried the body. The VNSOMP located a
. witness io the burial and then provided this information
; (though not the witness) to U.S. investigators...team
subsequently excavaied the site and recovered a

i complete set of remains...subsequently identifi ed cs Lt
{ : Daniel Borah.” (p 17)(%)/

A AN L e ek vy e e ey -
RERES "

ASSESSMENT: -

1 question why the NIC would make a decision to include, in a separate blue box on
page 17, two examples of cooperation by Vietnam on MIA cases, but not also give
examples of cases where Hanoi has not been very cooperative, especially when such
evidence exists in the judgment of the same DoD analysts who have worked on and
analyzed the two referenced cases. I further question the appropriateness of
selecting these cases and pointing. the reader toward. Vietnamese cooperation on
MIA recovery operations without also. pointing out similar cases where apparent
stonewalling continues. (SY

Moreover, it is very interesting to note that with respect to Case 1927 (Lt. Eiorah)
cited above, the family of Lt. Borah continues to believe that Vietnamese officials
manipulated the crash site investigation, based on the evidence uncovered by JTF-
FA personnel (ie: including a flight suit in remarkable condition for having allegedly
been lying in acidic soil for 25. years as claimed by the Vietnamese)*?, and. ...
Vietnam’s refusal to facilitate an interview with the alleged wntnesses to the: \bunal
Moreover, declassified National Security Agency intercepts from 1972 confirm
North Vietnamese knowledge of this particular incident, including the status of the
pilot at the time of shootdown, making it difficult to believe Vietnam could not have :
resolved this case fully years earlier. As a result, I question what independent
analysis the IC conducted on this particular case before determining to include it as
an example of positive Vietnamese initiative. The NIE’s judgment with respect to
including this case as a positive highlight in an NIE appears quite naive. (§)

*2 Photographs of the recovered flight suit and othér mformatlon from DoD pertain.ng to this
case have been provnded to the Office of Senator Bob Smith. '

SECRET
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NIE STATEMENT “A 1987 Special National Intelligence Estimare .(SNIE)

stated that we had evidence that Vietnam was storing -
about 400 to 600 sets of remains. But that judgment
was retracted (by an NIO/EA assessmeng) in 1996
because it turned out to have been based on the
unsupported testimony of a single unreliable source
(emphasis added). ” (p.18) (%) :

_ASSESSMENT:

This statement represents one of the most egregious and unsupported
misrepresentations of facts in the entire NIE — a misrepresentation that was -
defended, incredulously, by the NIO for East Asia, Robert Suetfinger, during a
closed-door meeting on June 17, 1998 with myself and other members of the

U.S. side of the U.S- Russia Commission on POWs and MIAs. B (®)

The i 1ssue at hand is the phras-e. ‘unsupported teshmony ofa smgle unreli'ablev

source.” The referenced source is an ethnic Chinese former mortician who was
forced to leave Hanoi in 1979, and was subsequently located and interviewed by the
U.S. Defense Attaché Office in Hong Kong in a refugee camp later that year. Pnor
to leaving Hanoi, he worked on the préservation and, tredtment of U.S. servicemen
remains from the war which were being stored by the SRV in Hanoi, .and there is
convincing evidence attesting to his bonafides (e.g. he was photographed along with-
other SRV technicians at an official Vietnamese repatriation of U.S. remains-
ceremony attended by U.S. of’ﬁcnals in 1976 at Gia Lam axrport on the outsklrts of

Hano:)}ﬁf) _ - ‘ o N T ‘.,'

During the past 18 years, beginning.in the Carter Administfatibn_, through the

* Transcript of reférenced NIC Briefing to Joint Commission, pagies 36-38; “Sen. Smith: You '
said he is unreliable. NIO Suettinger: That is correct, and we do consider him unreliable.” (8"
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Reagan Administration to the current Administration, the Defense Intelligenc:
Agency, the Department of State, relevant Congressional committees, the Joiat
Chiefs of Staff, and most recently the Defense POW/MIA Office have all
redaffirmed and stood by the reliability of this source, thereby rejecting Vietnam’s
official rhetoric to the contrary.* Some examples of this include the following

statements before Congress and elsewhere: (S) -

* The official Vietnamese position with respect to the mortician was formally first put forth in
a letter from SRV Vice Foreign Minister Phan Hien to The Honorable Lester Wolff, Chairman,
U.S. House International Relations Subcommittee on East Asia and Pacific Affairs, dated January
18, 1980. The letter followed a visit to Hanoi on January 15, 1980 by CODEL Wolff during
which Vietnamese officials “discounted” the information from the mortician (see American
Embassy Bangkok cable; Subject: CODEL WolfT press conference transcript, dated January 15,
1980) The SRV letter read, in part, “...the information you received is a complete fabricazion...I
sincerely recommend that you not believe in fabrications of that sort because such lies disrupt
your as well as our efforts to pursue humanitarianism.” (See American Embassy Bangkol: cable,
Subject: CODEL Wolff: Visit to Hanoi, dated January 19, 1980. Vietnamese officials repeated

_ their denials in a subsequent meeting wnth a State Dept. official and the SRV UN Mission Charge

on MIAs on February 8, 1980, “indicating there was no point in discussing rumors which had
been concocted for malicious purposes. (SRV official) emphasized that reliance on rumors would
poison the atmosphere between us and that publicizing distortions and fabrications like the story
of the 400 remains would only antagonize ordinary Vietnamese who ultimately had to provide
MIA information.” (See SecState cable, Subject Meeting with Vietnamese on MIAs, daed
February 12, 1980) On February 20, 1980, in response to concerns, raised by Secretary of State
Vance, the SRV Ministry of Foreign Affaifs, through its UN Ambassador, stated that the report
of 400 remains “was completely untrue, spread with ill-intention, and aimed at creating further
complications to the relations between our two countries and to the search itself for the American
MIA...1t was a tremendous fabrication, and even opinion among American political circlzs was
also skeptical about the single source of spreading speculation. I, therefore, believe there is no
sound justification for a serious concern in the United States...” The SRV Ministry of Foreign
Affairs then published a so-called White Paper in April, 1980 in which they again dismissed the
account as having been fabricated, stating, “In this election year of 1980, some politicians in the
United States concocted the story, based on Beijing’s allegations, of Vietnam holding tte remains
of 400 US servicemen killed in Vietnam. The story was concocted for polmcal ends with familiar
political tricks and with fictional details which can confuse public opinion.’ (cppy on file: in Sen.
Smith’s office). T
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“DIA obtained information that the Socialist Republic of Viemam has in its
possession in Hanoi the remains of more than 400 U.S. military personnel who
were lost as a result of hostilities in Southeast Asia. This information was
Jurnished by a technician who reported that he had personally prepared the:
vkeletal remains of many of these U.S. personnel...The technician’s personae vita
has been cross-checked and independently verified. His polygraph examination
conducted by DIA indicated no deception. The allegation that the Socialist
Republic of Vielnam is maintaining and withholding 400 remains of U.S. personnel
is judged by the Defense Intelligence Agency to be valid.”

—  Statement of Lt. Gen. Eugene T. Tighe, Jr., USAF, Director,
Defense Intelligence Agency, before Congress on June 27. 1980

“In November, 1979, we learned that a refugee from Vietnam sléted he knew that
ihe Vietnamese were holding the remains of over 400 Americans...The refugee was

_ exhaustively debriefed and was found to be a credible source.”

—  Statement of Michael Armacost; Deputy Assistant Secretary of
State, East Asian and Pacific Affairs, Department of State,
~ before Congress on-June 27, 1980. (U)

“Since. 1975, DIA has received over 700 reporis from Indochinese reﬁtgees
From that body of i reporting came the szgmf icant testimony of a former mortician,
concerning his knowledge of over 400 remains of U.S. MIA’s being-held in Hanoi.
DIA'’s efforts resulted in providing solid information to Congress subsequently
used in making an offi cial approach to Hanoi in 1980.” . -

— " Remarks of Li. Gen. Richard Lawson, USAF, “on behalf of the
Chairman of the Joint Chiefs of Staff, Gen. David C: Jones, " as
delivered before the Natzonal League of Families on June 28,

1980.V)

. “Chairman Guyer: General, back in the June 27 hearing of this subcommittee,
SECRET
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which was a public hearing in which the Vietnamese moriician testified, he scid
that he had seen and handled 400 sets of remains in Hanoi...Does the DIA still
consider his testimony valid? Gen. Tlghe I stand by the testimony at that time. I
stand by him as a credible witness.’

—  Transcript of Hearing of the House Foreign Affairs
Subcommitiee on Asian and Pacific Affairs with Director,
Defense Intelligence Agency, Lt. Gen. Eugene Tighe, on
December 2, 1980. (U)

“Admiral Paulson: ...a Vietnamese mortician provided information, which wz
Judged to be valid, that the Vietnamese have in their possession the remains af
approximately 400 U.S. military men lost in the Vietnam War...we have spent a .
considerable effort to establish the mortician’s authenticity; he clearly was ¢
Government mortician...Chairman Solarz: Do we believe that his report is.
accurate with respect (o the remains?* Admiral Paulson: Yes.”

—  Transcript of Hearing of the House Foreign Affairs
Subcommittee on Asian and Pacific Affairs with Admiral A. G.
Paulson, Assistant Vice Director for Collection Managerent,
Defense Intelligence Agency, on March 22, 1983. (U)

“We remain convinced that the Hanoi government does have the remains of U.S.
servicemen lost in Vietnam. In November of 1979, information was received that
the Vietnamese Governmeni had in its possession the remains of more than 400
U.S. military personnel who were lost as a result of hostilities in Indochina. This
information was furnished by a mortician who observed the stored remains and
reporied that he personally prepared the skeletal remains of many of these U.S.
personnel. We know that he was a Government mortician, we have additional
evidence thai supports his contention, and he indicated no deception on a
polygraph. We consider his testimony valid in spite of our inability to determine
precisely where the remains may now be held.”

. —  Statement of Lt. Gen. James.A. Williams, Director, Defense
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Intelligence Agency, before Congress on July 14, 1 983" (U) :

“We put the mortician through every proof and cross-check that we could possibly
run, and there's no doubt in my mind that he was not only very truthful, -but also

‘what he reported was very accurate.”

—  Remarks by former DIA Director, Li. Gen. Tighe, as quoted in
“irst Heroes, p.92, publtshed 1987. (U) :

"“We have found information from this source, a Vielnamese mortuary technician,

~, reliable and have consistently maintained so. |

|aside, our own-estimates -

regarding the numbers of U.S. remams collected and stored by Hanoi are well
within the range of acceptable error for the rough firsthand estimates provided by
this source. His estimates are also consistent with information from members of
the VNOSMP regarding how many remains they collected. Moreover, they are

. backed up by other less well placed sources, mformatzon in Vretnamese records,

and U.S. forensic analysis of repatriated remains.’
— Memaranéium lo Director Defense Intelligence Agency, Signed
by Deputy Assistant Secretaty of Defense for PO WA\/HA Aﬂazrs
- on June 30 1998. (%)

Additionally, Secretary of State Cyrus Vance approached Vietnamese officials in

~writing on February 7, 1980, and it was explained to SRV officials at the time that

the mortician was “beheved to have had sufficient accessto information about
MIAs to warrant our askmg Vietnamese leaders about his allegatlons 5. (U)

Moreover relevant Congressional committees that looked into ﬂns matter as far
hack as 1980 also considered the momcxan to be a “hlghly credlble source ’ who.

s SeeState'cable,‘Subje‘ét; Meeti'pg wit-h Vietn_amese on MIAs, _dat_ed:Februafrj{ 12;"198'();

’sggaﬁr
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e “convincingly reported” information that was judged to be “significant and
A reliable.”™ (U)
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The source was also deposed at length by the bipartisan Senate Select Committee
on POW/MIA Aﬁ"airg. in December, 1991, and further determined to be reliable.?’

The record with respect to the reliability of this source could not be more clezr.
Moreover, it stood unchallenged by the Intelligence Community until I made 2
request to the Director of Central Intelligence in the spring of 1996 for the 1987
Special National Intelligence Estimate (SNIE) on Hanoi and the POW/MIA issue to
be processed for declassification, as it should have been under an Executive Order
from President Bush in July, 1992 and NSC memoranda to the DCI (done at the
urging of a Senate resolution), which'encompassed such documents. That SNIE had
contained judgments, based in part, on the mortician’s testimony.*®

* American Embassy Bangkok cable, Subject: CODEL Wolff press conference transcript,
dated January 15, 1980; and transcript of House Foreign Affairs Subcommittee on Asian and
. Pacific Affairs hearing, dated June 27, 1980. (U)

* Final Report of the Senate Select Committee on POW/MIA Affairs (Rpt.103-1), p.-!88-289,
January, 1993 Nofe: Sen. Bob Smith was present at the deposmon of the mortician, and heard his
testimony first-hand. (U)

% See letter from Sen. Smith to Director of Central Intelligence, dated June 10, 1996. Copies
of referenced Executive Order, Senate Resolution, and NSC instructions to DCI are attached to
this letter. That request was initially denied because of CIA and National Intelligence Council
concerns about the “uncertainty inherent in judgments on some of the key issues addressd in the
estimate” (1987 SNIE), as well as concerns that the release of the SNIE might jeopardiz: U.S. -
efforts to normalize relations with Hanoi (see CIA letters to Senator Smith dated September 26,
1996, and October. 29,:1996, and CIA briefing to Congressional staff, held at House Permanent
Select Committee on Intelligence, on November 20, 1996.) The reasons for these denials of my
declassification request in 1996 continue to warrant additional scrutiny in my _;udgment Jecause
of the implications they have for Congressional oversight on intelligence matters. My request
eventually resulted in the-NIO for East Asia conducting his own study, later released in October,
1996 alongside the declassified 1987 SNIE, in which he claimed that the SNIE’s judgment that
Hanoi had warehoused 400 to 600 sets of American remains was, “based on limited direct
evidence whose reliability was open to question.” That ]udgment however, did not represent-a
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Based on the testimony cited above, it is obvious that the NIE’s claim that the
w.ortician was an “unreliable source” who provided “unsupported testimony” is
demonstrably false. This judgment in the current NIE should, therefore, be
irnmediately retracted by the Intelligence Community (IC), because the IC has
already attested to the reliability of the mortician. (8)

NIE STATEMENT: “We have no evidence that the Vietnamese presently are
storing remains of American dead...The Vietnamese
Government collected and stored remains during the
Vietnam War, but we do not know how many.” (p.18) (8)

Al

ASSESSMENT:

Eooth of these sentences, which appear in the same paragraph in the NIE, would
szem to each contradict the other. If the IC has established that Vietnam collected

- U.S. remains during the war, and concedes not knowing how many, then it is logical

to assume that there is a possibility that Hanoi could still be holding remains, a -
possibilily which is enhanced in view of the Defense POW/MIA Office assessment
trovided to DIA on June 30, 1998 that “it is our analysis that in total Vietnam
collected and stored some 300 U.S. remains,” and the Army Central Identification
Lab’s estimate that approximately 170 remains repatriated by Hanoi since 1973
show forensic evidence of storage. Based on this discrepancy, and an accurate
review of evidence available to the IC, including the testimony of the mortician
discussed previously, it is extremely misleading for the NIE to state categorically
that there is “no evidence” that Vietnam is now storing remains of American dead.

formal retraction of the 1987 SNIE’s judgment because the study itself was not approved or
coordinated within the Intelligence Community under established procedures for publication of an
intelligence estimate, such as the 1987 SNIE. Indeed, the cover page to this study stated “CIA .
defers judgment on this Assessment to those Community components with expertise and
information files on the location, identification, and availability of US remains in Southeast Asia.”
* (It remains unclear which 1C components are being referred to in that statement.) (8)
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NIE STATEMENT: “As of March, 1998, 1,565 Americans were listed as

unaccounted for in Vietnam (emphasis added)...Of 1he

» 1,565, there were 825 confirmed dead at wartime by their
commanders and comrades. Subsequent, intensive
research by US Government officials has established that
half the remainder — about 370 people — are dead. =
Only 48 are considered to be priorily discrepancy cases
— that is, cases involving American personnel who were
known to be alive, not gravely wounded, and in proximity
lo the enemy at the time of their loss. Source: DPMO” (p.

19)48)

ASSESSMENT: . -

- The NIE chose to only list the number of unaccounted for Americans “in Vietnam”

thereby implying to the NIE consumer that Hanoi’s capabilities and performarice on
POW/MIA cases should be limited to those incidents of loss which took place
within the commonly recognized borders of Vietnam alone. This decision ignores
the undisputed fact that over 85 percent of American losses in Laos, and many in_
Cambodia, occurred in areas of those countries (such as the Ho.Chi Minh Trail) -
which were control!ed by communist North Vietnamese forces during the war.
Once again, the NIE has inserted a misleading statistic, demonstrating its lack of
understanding, of Hanoi’s knowledge of POW/MIA issues,-even though such
knowledge is demonstrated by Intelligence Community reporting.dating back to the
war, and has since been confirmed through countless historical documents and

~ publications availabl'eito“'the public at large. sy

When questxoned on this serious omission of nearly 500 unaccounted for U.S.
servicemen earlier this. year, the NIO for East Asia claimed that the terms of .
reference for the NIE “did not include Laos, and that was agmed -to by the Sema&e .
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Select Committee on Intelligence (SSCI).”*® There is no record, however, that the

SSCI ever indicated that Vietnamese knowledge of American losses in Laos should

not be considered under the established terms.of reference for the NIE. Moreover,

SSCI staff have confirmed to me that there was no such understandmg Indeed, any
" such understanding would have been ludicrous. (8)

This omission notwithstanding, the statistics mted in the NIE for Vietnam are
aresented in such-a way as to leave the reader to believe that there are only 48
-ossible POWs still unaccounted for, which would tend to further discredit the
numbers cited in the 1205 and 735 documents discussed earlier in this assessment.
e o .

Jowever, a careful analysis of the 1,565 statistic broken down in the NIE reveals
the following: If you have 1,565 still unaccounted for Americans in Vietnam, and
325 were confirmed dead during the war by their commianders (ie: KIA/BNR), that
leaves 740 question marks. The NIE asserts that 370 of thi$ remaining 740 number
have been established as “dead” based on further research by US-Government

- officials. That leaves 370 other question marks, of which 48 are'cases where there
is information the person was alive in proximity to the enemy. Again, these 48-are - -
part of the remaining 370. In conclusion, using the NIE’s figures, this means that
there are 370 Americans, including the 48; where there is not an- ewdentlaxy bas1s "
that the mdlwduals died, and thelr fa&e is stll] unknown (S) T

A}

The NI fails to point this fact out to the reader even though the statxstncs by whlch
such a conclusion can be logically drawn are readily apparent:- One.of the reasons
this distortion by omission is of critical concern is because when one adds to this
370 figure the large number of still unaccounted for Americans in North Vietnaniese
controlled areas of Laos, the case becomes more persuasive for the claims:about the
total number of POWSs made in the 1205 and 735 documents from Russnan archives'
discussed earlier in this assessment (S’j :

- * Transcript of Bricfing by NIG to U:S. side of Jomt U S -Russna Commlssmn on POWs andl
MIAs, p. 39-40, dated June 17;1998. (S} - ‘ .

- SECRET
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NIE STATEMENT: “We also have credible reports that US POWs were not
transferred out of Vietnam. General Volkogonov told the
U.S.-Russian Commission on POWs and MIAs that his
delegation had uncovered no evidence that US prisoners
had been transported from Vietnam to the USSR...K.F.
Katushev, former Central Committee Secretary...,told US
interviewers that he would have known if US. POWs were
transferred to the USSR. He believes no such iransfers
occurred.” (p.24) (3)

ASSESSMENT:

The NIE’s account of the information provided by the above Russian sources is
inaccurate or lacking in important detail. This view has been expressed by the: Joint
Commission Support Directorate at. DoD, and it is one with which I agree, by virtue
- of my direct involvement with these matters as US Chairman of the Vietnam War
Working Group of the Joint U.S.-Russia Commission on POWs and MIAs. (8

First, as is noted.in the NIE statement above, Russian Gen. Volkogonov said that -
“his delegation had uncovered no evidence” of a transfer (emphasis added). The
absence of evidence, however, is not proof that an event did not take place. The
NIE, therefore, is wrong to characterize Volkogonov’s statement as a “credible
report.that US POWSs were not transferred out of Vietnam.” This is especially true
in view of Gen. Volkogonov’s testimony on this specific question before the 1J.S.
Senate Select Committee on POW/MIA Affairs on November 11, 1992 in which he .
stated, ““‘Hypothetically, we cannot dismiss the possibility that several individial
.American servicemen were taken to the Soviet Union from Vietnam or Korea.” (%) .

More importantly, after Volkogonov made the above-quoted NIE statement about
having uncovered no evidence, Volkogonov received a very. serious indication that a
transfer might have taken place during the Vietnam War era, and he writes about

SECRET
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this indication in a brief autobiographical sketch dated August, 1994. This notation,
which specifically mentions the existence of a KGB plan to transfer Americans in
the late 1960s, was discovered by my Commission staff in February, 1998, and was
immediately shared with the NIE principal author. It is the subject of high-level
approaches by the US Government to the Russian Government at the. present time.
(Indeed I personally pursued this matter during my own visit to Moscow in early
1998) The existence of this notation by Volkogonov makes clear that by 1994,
Votkogonov himself had serious misgivings about the transfer issue. He referenced .
it as “a secret which I was unable to penetrate.” Yet, in view of this evidence |
shared with the NIC earlier this year, the NIE omits any reference to it, and instead, =.(
by doing so, misrepresents the views of Gen. Volkogonov. As such, the NIE
statement, on its face, is both inaccurate and seriously incomplete. 98)

With respect to K.F. Katushev, identified in the above-quoted NIE statement as |
having provided a “credible report that US POWSs were not transferred,” the record !
of this interview, which was arranged at my request in July 1997 during a visit to

Moscow, does not support the NIE statement. First, the NIE falsely cites Katushev

- as an example of testimony from a Russian “who served in Vietnam during the war, :

and would have reason fo know.” In point of fact, although he traveled to Hanoi .
just once to negotiate an agreement with the North Vietnamese, Katushev did not !
serve in Vietnam. He worked in Moscow as a CPSU Central Committee Secretary
during the Vietnam War, }S)

Second, Katushev actually stated “he would have known if US POWs were
transferred to the USSR.” Our Commission, however, has frequently heard the
claim “I would have known”, during routine interviews with former Soviet officials
displaying an inflated view of their own importance. Based on Commission
investigations to date, we continue to believe that any covert, highly sensitive GRU
or KGB operation to remove any American POWs from Southeast Asia to the
former USSR would have been known to only a handful of Soviet officials. Itis
unlikely that a Central Committee Secretary would have been one of them. In any
event, Katushev’s claim that he would have known is assuredly not a “credible
report that US POWSs were not transferred out of Vietnam.” (8)

§EQRET
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NIE PHOTOGRAPHS: The NIE contains only two photographs, both

' provided by the U.S. Army Central Identification

Laboratory (CILHI) in Hawaii, and both founc! in
. Part One under Discussion. One, onp. 25 of the -

NIE, is labeled “Having made the ultimate
sacrifice, a veteran returns home with full military
“honors.” The other, on p. 18, is labeled “A
recovery team excavates the site of a B-52 crash
Just outside Hanoi, Vietnam.” £S)

ASSESSMENT:
I question why an undated photograph of a casket draped with an American flag

being escorted across a runway at Hickain Air Force Base in Hawaii has any direct
relevance to Vietnam’s intentions, performance, or capabilities on the POW/MIA

-+ issue, thereby justifying its inclusion in a National Intelligence Estimate, especially -

since such events have transpired for nearly 25 years with respect to Vietnam..
Likewise, I question the need for a photograph of a crash site excavation. Neither
of these photographs, labeled Figure 1 and Figure 2 in the NIE, but not specifically
referenced anywhere in the text of the report, shed light on an intelligence estimate
of Hanoi and the POW/MIA issue.

If the NIE had included photographs of the alleged 1205 author, Gen. Tran Van
Quang, or the alleged 735 author, Hoang Anh, both of whom have met with US
officials, then the inclusion of such photographs would have had credible relevance
to the subject at hand. But instead, we are treated to pictures which hardly seem
directly germane to the estimate’s terms.of reference. I find such action by the NIC

" troubling, especially when there is no precedent for such action with respect to other

NIEs. (S) ..

SECRET
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11 DETAILED ASSESSMEN'E‘ OF NIE S’E‘ATEMENTS

(cantmued)
Discussion. (P.26):

PPart Two: Intelligence Commmmy Assessmemt of the “1205" and “735"
Documents :

“With respect to the Russian documents, given the serious
potential implications of these documents, I am sure you would
agree that we must accord thém the most caireful analysis in the
context of all other known mformahon In doing so, we must of
course, avoid the mindset to debumk, but we also have a
responsibility to provide our best analysis of the fac&s'.”

— William Jefferson Clinton
President of the United States™

“I assure you that I remain personally and deeply committed to
the most thorough and objective review possnbﬂe of these nmporﬁam
issues. I mtend to monitor closely the NIE process and the
Commumty’s examma&mnﬂ of the GRU (1205/735) documerits and
related issues...I will assure rigorous revnew of the final NIE draft
by the Mnhmry Intelligence Board, which 1 chmr, and the National
Foreign Hmelhgence Board, on which. sut o

L — Patncﬂc M. Hughes
" Lieutenant Genéril, US Army
Durector, Defense Imelhgence
Agency *'

50 Letter from Presxdent Clmton to Senator Smlth dated December 10 1993. (U)

*1 Letter from Lt. Gen. Hughes to Senatmr Smlth, dated December 11, 1997. (U)
| .-'~ S SEC
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NIE STATEMENT: “...we believe the assessment released by DoD remains

valid: that is, the documents were probably collected by
the military intelligence department of the former Soviet

Union (GRU), but are not what they purport to be
(emphasis added)” 3 (p.26) ;E) :

ASSESSMENT:

If the documents are “not what they purport to be” — ie: reports by North
Vietnamese officials to North Vietnam’s leadership during the Vietnam War which

is what Russian officials continue to maintain, and Western scholars and other ...
credible individuals continue to affirm — then what are they? This question \
becomes critical for one to even consider accepting the NIE’s judgment, especially|
given Vietnam’s assertions that the documents are Russian fabrications, and their \
denials that they would have themselves fabricated such a report to pass to the |
Russians during the war, in addition to the NIE’s conclusion that the documents |
were probably collected by Soviet military intelligence. The lack of any serious, in-

" depth discussion of this question reflects one of the most serious shortcomings in the

NIE itself. The NIE has failed to bridge in any meaningful way this gap in the

Russian and Vietnamese statements concerning the 1205/735 documents. By failing
to address this question, and especially in view of the many NIE inaccuracies and -
shortcomings outlined in this section, the NIE’s judgment that the documents are not

* The assessment referred to was released by DoD on January 24, 1994. The principal author
of this earlier assessment was Robert Suettinger, who at the time woiked on the National
Intelligence Council as Deputy NI1O for East Asia, (See Task Force Russia Mémorandum for
Record, Sub: Meeting on Analysis of VN-1205 Document, 24 May 93). Mr. Suettinger currently
serves as NIO for East Asia, and it was under his auspices that the current NIE was prepared, as
noted on the NIE's cover page. In a meeting with Senator Smith in November, 1997, Mr..

Suettinger had pledged that his principal deputy preparing the report, [::j

complete discretion to draw-different conclusions than Mr. Suettinger had previously drawn on

the 1205/735 documents, and that Mr. Suettinger would footnote any objections he might haveto

any conclusions drawn byl |which-differed frori M. Siitfinger’s earlier conclusionsin (b)(3) CIAAct
the previous report. No such footnotes appear in the current NIE. (8) '

sm
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whal they purport to be cannot be accepted as credible or convincing. ¢)

NIE STATEMENT:  “The work of the Intelligence Community was the basis
Jor a news release by the Assistant Secretary of Defer.se
. for Public Affairs, entitled “Recent Reports on American
POWs in Indochina: An Assessment.” (footnote-p.26) QSX

ASSESSMENT:

This statement is mcomplete mlsleadmg, and factually inaccurate.” The referenced
assessment released by DoD in 1994 hardly constituted a formal or official
Intelligence Community (IC) product by any established standard or precedent. By
stating that the work of the Intelligence Community was “the basis” for the
assessment, the NIE footnote cited above misleads the reader into believing that this
was an officially-coordinated community-wide assessment, performed by the IC
alone in 1993/94, which it most certainly was not.”® Indeed, the product was tasked

" by an Acting Deputy Assistant Secretary of Defense as a document to be prepared

Jor release to the general public in response to the controversy generated by relsase
of the 1205 document in Russia in April, 1993 Indeed, in directing the tasking, .
the Acting Deputy Assistant Secretary had also stated “there are many things wiong
with the document...goal is to produce an unclassified report which could be
released to the mass media.’? sy

The input from portions of the IC appears to have been prepared in less than 30
days and was limited to the 1205 report alone.”® The mput hardly proceeded from

The blpamsan inquiry by the Senate Select Commtttee on Intelligence (SSCI) in April, 1997
concluded that the 1205/735 documents had not been the subject of a formal Intelligence
Community review. (U) .~ : :

* Memorandum from Acting Assistant Secretary of Defense (POW/MIA Affairs), Subject: .
Single Assessment of Russian POW/MIA Document; dated May.21, 1993.(U) .

% Task Force Russxa,Memorandum for Record_! Subject. Meetmg -on Analysns of VN-1_205

SEERET.
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en objective baseline. Indeed, the input was prepared following the first meeting to
discuss preparation of the referenced tasking noted above. At this first meeting, the
then-Deputy NIO for East Asia, Robert Suettinger (under whose auspices the
current NIE was drafted) reportedly stated that the document “contained so many
inaccuracies that it could not be what it purported to be, a report by a Deputy Chnef
of the North Vietnamese General Staff to the North Vietnamese Politburo. -
According to Mr. Suettinger, the tone of the document was wrong; the Politburo .
would not be addressed in the manner of the 1205 document, Gen. Quang was not
in the position claimed. for him by that document, the numbers of US:POWs
mentioned could not be correct...”” All of Mr. Suettinger’s reported
pronouncements, made prior to any serious IC analysis, amazingly became the core
of the IC’s final mput to the 1994 DoD-released product and even the current NIE.

18)

Additionally, the portions of the referenced 1994 DoD-released product concerning
the 735 document appear to have been drafted by the Office of the Assistant
uecretary of Defense for International Security Affairs’ Defense POW/MIA Office

©in October, 1993:5" In view of the above, the very limited work performed by -

elements of the IC ‘was not “the” baSlS for the assessment (,S)

[)oeument 24 May 93, dated May 25 1993 (nole this was the ﬁrst meetmg to disciiss°
preparation of the assessment requested by Dep.:Asst. Secretary Ross);j and National Intelllgence -
Council Memorandum from Kent Harrington, National Intelligence Officer (NIO) for East Asia, .
to Ed Ross, Acting Asst. Secretary of Defense for POW/MIA Affairs, forwarding the “final
product,” Re: on Recent Reports on American POWs in Indochina, dated June 21 1993. (L) ’

”mm

57 See Oﬁice of the Ass:stant Secreta:y of Defense for Intematlonal Secunty Aﬁ‘alrs Defense X
POW/MIA Office Newsletter, Subject: Russian Provide New Document Abput us POWs in .
Vietnam, dated October, 1993, distributed to all Senators by Sen. John Kerry by letter dated
October 12,71993: (Note: the contents of the analysis about this new document — ie: the.735
teport ~— are virtually identical to the product referenced in the NIE whlch was released by DoD “

© on January 24, 1994.).

SECRET

3000059




C06548527

TENE L temeea . i, A pise YT Tty g g P Sy T o
L T i B R R e e T

000061

SECRET

Active participants in the drafting process were drawn from non-intelligence
community entities, especially OSD/ISA’s Defense POW/MIA Office and, to a
lesser extent, Army’s Task Force Russia. Only DIA, CIA, and State I&R -
participated from the IC.*® The other elements of the IC, such as NSA, FBI, and the

“intelligence elements of the four military services, did not participate. Thus, the .

assessment included input from some elements of the Intelligence Community, but
not the Community as a whole, and it was never coordinated as such, or even
presented as such to either the Military Intelligence Board, the National Foreign
Intelligence Board, or other officials within the Intelligence Community. (,S’f

NIE STATEMENT: “The 1 ,205 figure was 669 more than the higheSt number-
the US Government ever believed might be held

captive...” (p.26) (8

ASSESSMENT-

- The NIE judges that 536 American POWs (1,205 minus 669) constitutes “the

highest number the US Government gver believed might be held captive.” One:
assumes that the NIE is referring to Americans held captive as of September, 1972,
the date of the 1,205 report. In any event, the NIE statement is demonstrably
false and mrsieadm_g as shown by previous testimony by former U.S. Government
officials (see pages 36-38) and 1973 Intelhgencc Commumty reporting and
assessments (see footnotc #40) s -

Followmg, r thie returri of 591 American POWs durmg Opcratron Homecommg in
February and March, 1973, there remained 1,363 Americans listed as missing in
action. This figure did not include over 1,100 additional Americans who had bezn
declared krlled m actlon/body not recovered by their wartime commanders as-of

* Task i’orcc Russra Memorandum for. Record Subject Meeting on Analysis of VN-1205 -
Document, 24 May 93, dated May 25, 1993; and Office of Assistant Secretary of Defense (P ablic -
Affairs) release, p.1, dated January 24, 1994. (U) . R

SMT
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1973.% In May, 1973, DoD decided to maintain an official position, and so testified
to Congress, that “we do not know whether those 1,300 MIAs now unaccounted for
are alive or dead.®”” (U)

@

Moreover, in late 1972/early 1973 (prior to Operation Homecoming), there were
over 1,950 Americans who were either possibly captured or known captured in
Southeast Asia (1,363+591 returned).®! The figure 1,950 is obviously much larger
than the 536 number of US POWs ever believed to have been captured during this
time frame as asserted by the NIE. In addition to the testimony of former US
officials referenced earlier (footnote #37), the Senate Select Committee on
POW/MIA Affairs received additional testimony in 1992 that the list of “potential
POWSs” compiled by US intelligence in 1972 consisted of up to 1,000 to 1,600
names.®* Again, based on these facts, the NIE judgment — that 536 Americans was

- % See letter to the Chairman of the House Armed Services Committee from Deputy Assistant
Secretary of Defense for International Security Affairs, Dr. Roger E. Shields; dated March 31,
1975, p. 9 and 12. (Entire letter is contained as Enclosure for the Record of the Hearing of the
Senate Select Committee on POW/MIA Affairs, September 24, 1992; p. 835-849.) (U)

¢ See Memorandum for Assistant Secretary of Defense for International Security-Affairs,
Subject: Current PW/MIA Issues, signed by Dr. Roger E. Shields, dated May 24, 1973 — “I
have said that we have over 1,300 American MIAs who were unaccounted for, and. that this
meant that we had no mformanon to show conclusnvely that a man was either alive or dead. Tam
scheduled to testify on the MIA issue.. Wlﬂ‘l your concurrence, I will maintain the position that
we do riot know whether those MIAs fiow unaccounted for are alive or dead.” 'Dr. Shields
furthered testified at the referenced hearing on May 31, 1973, “As for those who are thought to
aave been captured alive, but who have not been retumed, let me say that this is-perhaps the most

agonizing and frustrating issue of all.” (U)

* On January, 28, 1974, Dr Roger E. Shields, Deputy Assistant Secretary of Defense agam
testified before the Senate Foreign Relations Committee that “At the time of the s:gnmg of the
(Paris) agreement, the United States listed over 1,900 Americans as captured or mlssmg .Whilte
we are profoundly grateful for the return of the men (at Operatlon Homecommg) our joy and
sense of accomphshment are tempered by the fact that over 1,300 others listed by our
Government as mlssmg and captured did not return.” (U)

vy s

82 See testimony arid deposmon of Col Lawrence Robson, Gen. Eugene Tlghe and Adm
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the highest number of POWs ever believed to have béen captured — is substantially
inaccurate. (8)

NIE STATEMENT: “Russian recollections are hazy on whether the “1205"
. document was allegedly written in_Vieinamese. General
Volkogonov, advisor to President Yeltsin, thought he
remembered seeing an original Vielnamese version. In
any event, no Vielnamese version of the document has
been located.” (footnote, p.26) /(8’)

ASSESSMENT:

This NIE statement is rmsleadmg, incomplete, and inaccurate. It contradicts
credible information provided fo the principal author of the NIE dlunng the
estnmate s drafting stage. Speclﬁcally :

- ® The Chief of the GRU in 1994, General Ladygm whose agency acqunred the

1205 and 735 documents in 1971 and 1972, stated in writing to me in June,
1994 that “The translation of the report was actually done by the Main
Intelligence Directorate (GRU) of the General Staff and sent to the CPSU
Central Committee in Novemiber, 1972 .The original report in the -
Viethamese language (emphasxs added) was destroyed after translation in
accordance with the document handlmg procedures estabhshed by the GRU
of the General -Staff.*” -

® This GRU authoritative statement was confirmed by the current Chief of the |
. GRU in a meeting with myself and the Chairman of the Senate Select .

Thomas Moorer as referenced on page 78 of the Final Report of the Senate Select Committee on
POW/MIA Aﬁ‘alrs dated January, 1993 (Senate Rpt 103 1), (U)

% Letter to Senator Bob Smxth from Chief, GRU of the General Staff, Russian Armed Forces,
Colonel General F. Lac.iy‘gm‘ dated June 30, 1994. (U)
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Committee on Intelligence, Senator Shelby, in Moscow on July 1, 1997.
During that meeting, General Korabelnikov cited General Ladygin’s letter,
asking us “to pay close attention to the words in his letter.” He then
amplified on that letter, in response to my questioning, stating, “The
translation was indeed performed in the GRU in Moscow in 1972. But,
unfortunately, we no longer have the Vietnamese language version.®*”

Moreover, the GRU cover pages to each of these two documents, prepared in
1971 and 1972, clearly state “translated from Vietnamese into Russian.5*”

Additionally, Russxan officials and the GRU cover sheet 1tself indicate that
the translations were done in Moscow.%

. * Memorandum for the Record, Subject: Meeting Notes: CODEL Smith/USRIC -
Cokoshin/Korabelnikov, July 1, 1997, 4:45 p.m. - 5:45 p.m,, Russiah Ministry of Defense. (U)

% See Appendix to this Assessment for copies of complete English translations of the

1205/735 GRU acquisitions from North Vietnam, (U)

000064
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Based on the above, the-NIE statement cannot be accepted. There is no doubt or
haziness on the Russian side that an original Vietnamese language version of the
1205 GRU acquisition, in fact, existed at one time. Whether it was in written or
recorded form prior to translation into Russian, is irrelevant in the context of a
footnote about whether it ever existed, which appears to be the point of inserting the
footnote in the first place. A side question for the U.S. Government is whether it
might still exist. The NIE is silent on this issue. The more pressing issue, however,
in view of the credible testimony of the noted Russian officials above, is why the:
Vietnamese position, that no original version existed, has not been aggressively
challenged by the U.S. Govenunentt}ﬁ’).~°

" NIE STATEMENT: “Sirice the original examination of the document by the

Intelligence Community in 1993, interviews with Russian
officials who were knowledgeable about the (1205)
document continue to validate the claim that it is an
authentic GRU document and not a Russian

Jabrication.. .While supporting the auihenticity of the
document, none of the Russians.claimed that the figure of
1,205 POWs was accurate.” (p.26) (3)

| h o))
ASSESSMENT: : . (b)(3) NatSecAct

In this section, quoted above, the NIE lists Russians as having commented
‘on the authenticity of the.1205 document since 1993, and there is no caveat that .

000065 -
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these are only examples, as was done elsewhere on different subjects in qﬂier :
portions of the NIE. Inexplicably, the NIE neglected to include statements by other
key Russian officials since 1993 which were provided to the principal NIE drafter in
carly 1998. These other Russian officials commented on both the authenticity and
the number of POWs referenced in the document itself (see footnote #35). Had
these other officials been included, the NIE could not have judged that none of the
Russians attested to the credibility of the number of POWs referenced in the
document. (S) : " (b)(1)

' (b)(3) NatSecAct
More impoﬁantly, even if the NIE judgment is limited to the individuals
referenced in this section of tlie NIE, the judgment is sti/l inaccurate, because one of
those individuals, GRU Captain Al Sivets, in fact, did comment on the accuracy of
the numbers in the-document (see footnote #38). He further “emphatically” stated, .
during an interview with U.S. officials in October, 1997, -that “the Viethamese: -
would not have deceived themselves at a closed Politburo session; they might have.
provided inaccurate information in press releases or in their negotiations with the
Americans, but they would have no reason to do so within closéd sessions of thexr

~ political leadership.®®” (8] ' ' SR g;;g,; NatSecAct
| atSec

In addition, another of the | I
was more directly associated with and knowledgeable about the GRU"s acquisition. -
of the “735" document, than the “1205" document. While[  |did -~ -
provide some pertinient information about the acquisition ‘of the: 1205 document; he -
was directly involved with the acquisition of the 735 document; and had verified .-
that the 735 number tracked generally with GRU figures at that timé on the number
nf American pilots held by Hanoi.~ Yet the'NIE fails to-Teflect any: understandmg of.
rhis fact by not even mentlonmg{ }m the following section on new
nfonnatnon” pertammg to the “735" document (see p:30). (S’)/ : '

YD) o)1), -

(b)(3) NatSecAct (b)(3) NatSecAct

5% Memorandum foithe Record, Subject Meetmg with Captam Flrst Rank A I. Swets datedl :
October 14, 1997, p.3- (U) , . Do
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NIE STATEMENT: “General Volkogonov, in statements (o the press in 1993,
expressed doubt about the reliability of the numbers.”

®27) Sy
ASSESSMENT:

I knew General Volkogonov personally for several years prior to his unfortunate
death in late 1995. Throughout 1993 and in the two years that followed, General
Volkogonov consistently maintained, both publicly and privately, that only the
Vietnamese knew about the reliability of the numbers contained in.the report. He
personally had no basis for doubting the figures and, at the same time, could not
vouch for the figures — but at the same time, he maintained, “I personally don’t
doubt at all the authenticity and the genuine character of this document,” as he told
CNN on April 14,1993. In that same interview™, Volkogonov speculated on
whether the Vietnamese author of the 1,205 report had reported accurate figures to
his own North Vietnamese leadership, but then emphasized “one has to ask tha
man in Hanoi; was he ftelling the truth when preparing this report. We in Moscow in

" our commission have no answer to that question.” (U)

Moreover, Volkogonov told the New York Times in Moscow on:April 21, 1993
when challenged on the-numbers, “True, 1 cannot guarantee that 1is (the 1205
document) content is a true reflection of past reality. ‘Only. the Vietnamese can
know this.” He later stated in December, 1994, “I have studied exhaustively the
mechanism used to gather this document, and I can state that I do not know of any
case where such information would have been fabricated...North Vietnamese
General Quang (1205 author) was fully competent to give this report.” (U)

Based on these facts, previously-made available to the principal author of the NIE, it
is extremely misleading to then cite General Volkogonov, based on unspecified

T wp transcript of Volkogonov's interview with CNN was made available to the NIC by the
SSCI earlier this year. My office had prepared the transcript in 1993 after obtaining from CNN
directly the tape of the full interview which, incidentally, never aired. (U).. =~ .
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press reports, as somehow vindicating the NIE’s judgment that the 1205 number is
not accurate. £5) :

NIE STATEMENT: “A TASS correspondent who served in Vietnam during
the period (1972), V. Kobchev, stated that the (1 205)

numbers were too high.” (p. 27 /(/35
ASSESSMENT:

In addition to the staff at the Joint Commission Support Directorate, I, too, have - .
serious reservations about the value of the testimony of journalists, considering how
remote is the chance that they would have been privy to reliable information on.
these sensitive issues. The NIE itself, on p. 23, claims “those Russians who were in
Vietnam during the war have stated that the Vietriamese, sensitive about '
sovereignty, did not allow the Soviets to be involved in interrogations of American -
POWs.” If the NIE’s assertion is that Soviet military officials could not get close to

- American POWs, then it strains credulity to accept the NIE’s.implied assertion that

a TASS journalist could have had access to reliable information: on how many

POWs were, .in fact, held by Hanoi. Moreover, although Soviet and other Eastern
European journalists were routinely invited to staged press conferences withi -
selected US POWs in Hanoi, these POWs had all been previously acknowledged by
Hanoi as being held. Thus, while journalists were privy-to information about POWs .
teing used for propaganda purposes, they were not in a position to reliably estimate
how many POWs were, in fact, captured by North Vietnamese forces during the -
vsar. Citing them in a NIE only degrades the evidentiary base the NIE is
unsuccessfully trying to build. Finally, it should be noted that the Joint Commission
Support Directorate at DPMO, responsible for coordinating. POW/MIA-related
interviews with Russian officials since the Comm1551on ] mceptnon has no record of
the interview cited in the NIE. (,8/) : :

NIE STATEMENT: -~ “One.interviewee, V.V. Dukhin, who served...in Hanoi

SECRET
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from 1992 ta 1993, said that the former DCM in Hanoi,
1.A. Novikov (now deceased) told him he was aware of
the 1205 document when it was acquired ...he (Novikov)
stated ihat the GRU agent who acquired the documeiit
was not reliable.” (p.27) (;l')

ASSESSMENT:

A review of the diplomatic roster for the Soviet Embassy in.1971 shows that
Novikov occupied a junior attaché, non-military, position in the embassy. As such,
he would have been unlikely to know anything about GRU military intelligence
operations.in. Hanoi, and certainly nothing about the GRU’s most sensitive agents.

8T

More importantly, it is bewildering that the NIE would: choose to include mention of
this interview, but not include amplification of the more germane comments by GRU

Capt. A.L Sivets on this very topic, even though he is mentioned briefly on the
* previous page (p.26), and. his full testimony was provided to the NIC in early 1998.

Capt. Sivets, who researched this matter within the GRU, in his capacity as the:
GRU representative to the Joint U.S.-Russia POW/MIA Commission since 1992,
told US ofﬁclals in October 1997 that: :

e The 1205 documem was recewed ﬁom a Vxetnamese agent of the GRU who

provided the GRU with a number of materials during the war, which were
judged to be reliable. . - : .

o - The GRU performed two assessments of the source’s reliability. In 1973,
GRU Chief General Ladygin ordered a review of the activity and reliability of
the agent. Based primarily-on. an assessment of the agent that was performed:
at the beginning of the 1970s, the agent was judged to be “reliable,” that
everything with this agent “was in order” and the agent was “working for us.”

e  The GRU asséssmeﬁt.had also determined that the information. receivgfl from"
SECRET
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this agent was first-hand information and accurately reflected the irifernal
political situation in North Vietnam. :

e Sivets further told US officials that “the GRU would never have sent this
information to the Communist Party of the Soviet Union (CPSU) Central
Committee if there had been any doubt about the reliability of the information
provided by this agent.”” (8}

It is further bewildering that the NIE would not mention the relevant testimony on
this specific subject by K.F. Katushev, who is also mentioned briefly on another
matter elsewhere in the NIE, and whose full testimony was provided to the NIC in
early 1998. Katushev, former USSR Central Committee Secretary in charge of '
Maintaining Ties with Other Socialist Countries in the edrly 1970s, told US officials
during my visit to Moscow in July, 1997 that the GRU had “good channels and
connections” and he had no reason to doubt that the 1205 document was not what it :
purports to be. He also noted that the document contained new information that was

worthy of the attention of the Soviet Communist Party leadership.”' £8)

Finally, the NIE makes no reference to the views of noted Russian and American
scholars on Vietnam issues, with regard to this specific point, even though this
information was made available to the NIC. For example, Ilya Gaiduk, interviewed
by DoD officials on October 8, 1997, elaborated on the claims in his book” that

’® Memorandum for the Record, Subject: Meeting with Captain F irst Rank A. I. Sivets, '
Moscow, October 14, 1997, p.4, signed by Roger Schumacher, Senior Analyst, Joint Commission
Support Directorate, DoD (U) . :

™! Joint Commission Support Directorate, USJRC/DPMO, Report of Interview with
Kaonstantin Katushev, dated July 1, 1997. Nofe: Katushev's own handwriting from 1972 appears
on the 1205 documeni found in Soviet Central Committee archivés in-1993. In his note, he
requesls addilional information for the Soviet leadership on American POWs held by North
Vietnam. (U) ' '

" Gaiduk is the author of The Soviet Union and the Vietnam War,” Ivan R. Dee Publishers,

SECRET
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: Soviet intelligence penetrated the highest leadership organs of the North Vietnamese
Government during the Vietnam War. He claims that the Soviets had reliable
sources with direct access to persons who either participated in North Vietnamese

- Politburo sessions or were privy to the content of these sessions. In addition,
Harvard researcher, Mark Kramer, has indicated that a published memoir of a

: former GRU official speaks of the GRU having penetrated the North Vietnamese

i Politburo during the war

L As such, the inclusion in this NIE of Dukhin’s second-hand account about what
i Novikov allegedly recalled, at the exclusion of more relevant testimony from more
: knowledgeable Russian officials and others as noted above, is evidence.of
i extremely shallow analysis by the principal author of the NIE. - To make Dukhin’s
i hearsay report the only reference in the entire NIE that explicitly pertains to the

‘ “reliability of the GRU agent” is extremely misleading to the NIE reader. ($)

| . .
| S e |
1 NIE STATEMENT: “Vietnamese officials continue to claim the report is a
ii i C fabrication.” (p.27) (8)
| . .

ASSESSMENT:

1
' ‘ What is the point? That Vietnamese communists officials are telling the truth”
. Therefore it’s a fabrication? As discussed previously, the NIE fails to assess -his
0 Vietnamese claim in any meaningful way. Rather, the NIE merely states Hanoi’s
‘ . position with respect to the Russian documents, and in doing so, states it in an
- inaccurate and incomplete manner, as shown below. Moreover, at no place in tlie
] g - estimate is there an assessment of whether Hanoi has, in the judgment of the
:‘ Intelligence Community, performed within its capabilities in producing evidence to
. prove its claim, This is a critical shortcoming in the NIE itself, especially in view of
g " the NIE’s title - Vietnaimese Intentions, Capabilities, and Performance conce. ring -
g the POW; MIA Issue &)

b Perhaps more 1mportam is the fact that while Vletnamese ofﬂcmls have consistently
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claimed to American officials and the press at large that the 1205 documeit is a
‘complete fabrication,”’ they have apparently nof made any such claim in the
course of several discussions on the matter with Russian offi czals the contents of

which have been reliably reported to US officials. ]

¥ See Interim Analysis of 1205 Document, by Sen. Smith to Amb. Toon; July 21, 1993,
section entitled “Reaction by Vietnamese Officials” contains extensive quotes in media by
‘Vietnamese officials, along with commentary by Hanoi publications. The most recent reported

. denial took place during a meeting between Deputy Assistant Secretary of Defense

(POW/Missing Personnel Affairs) Robert Jones and Vietnam’s Vice Minister of Defense, Tran
Hanh, during a lunchéon in the Executive Dining Room, Lounge 1, at the Pentagon, on October
3, 1998. Hanh reportedly stated that “the Russian documents are complete fabrications.” (U)
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NIE STATEMENT: “None of the new information helps to confirm the
accuracy of the 1205 report.” (p.27) (S’)(

ASSESSMENT: B e

provided by GRU Capt. AL Siveis| |
briefly referenced in the NIE under the heading “New Information™ — does, in fact,
ielp to confirm that the 1205 document was an accurate representation of the
political-military situation in North Vietnam in 1972. So does the information
provided by former USSR Central Committee Secretary Katushev, and two Chiefs
of the GRU -- Generals Ladygin and Korabelnikov -- in. 1994 and 1997. In short,
since 1994, the GRU has expressed its confidence in both the authenticity and the
reliability of the information in the 1205 report. To ignore this evidence implies that -
he GRU being confident enough in the information it acquired iri 1972 to forward it
10 the Soviet Central Committee (whose own official viewed it with confidence) is
somehow not helpful information in judging whether the 1205 report could have

000074
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been accurate. For the NIE to assert such an argument is absurd. ($)

NIE STATEMENT: “Quang’s” responsibilities as a batilefield commander
in a combat situation make it unlikely that he would be

b . brought to Hanoi to report on issues that were not within

L his scope of responsibility...Quang claims he remained
with his troops during the (Easier Offensive) period and
could not have béen in Hanoi for a 15 September
Politburo meeting...He (Quang) argues plausibly that he
would not have been the one to deliver such a report
because the issue would not have been handled by a

. regional military commander.” (p.27-28) £8)

ASSESSMENT:

This NIE Judgment is contradicted by substantlal evidence originated by or made
. available to the Intelli gence Community prior to and during the drafting of this
estimate. This includes information which mdncates Quang was hardly just a
battlefield commander with a scope of responsibilities limited to his battlefield
command pogition, (who would have had to have been “brought tv Hanoi™) tut
rather was a top leader-in the communist North Vnemamcse hierarchy during the

Vietriam War. "As examples — ' (b(1)
v . (b)(3)\NatSecAct

{Quang, y was elected a secret alternate member of the Lao Dong
(North Vietnam’s Communist) Party Central Committee and.of the Ce: ntral

™ North Vietﬁamese Lt.:General Tran Van :Quang, now Chairman of the Vietnamese War
Veterans Association (elected in November, 1992), was reported by the Russian GRU.ir. 1972 to
be the North Vietnamese author of the “1205" report acquired by the GRU and dated Se: ptember

15, 1972. (U)
MT
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Military Affairs Party Committee (CMAPC), and held those positions from
1960 until 1976. Quang was noted publicly in these positions in 1974, but as
a member, vice ‘alternate’ member. Quang’s membership on the CMAPC is
significant because the CMAPC ran the war under Politburo guidance, and
supervised the General Political Directorate of the VPA, whnch had
responsibility for the handling and exploitation of US POWS Sy

-@ This information is corroborated by a U.S. Joint Public Affairs Office

" Note: The Central Committee of Vietnam’s Communist Party was the elite governing body
af North Vietnam consisting of the country’s leadership positions. The Military Affairs
Committee of the Party Central Committee (CMAPC), who Secretary was Politburo member
General Vo Nguyen Giap, was charged with conducting the war itself, and has been referred to as
“second only to the Politburo as the center of decision making in the DRV..., and more important
than the National Defense Council in terms of DRV policy making” (See Bases of Power in the
DRV, Vietnam Documents and Research Notes, #107, p.7-8, published October, 1972). Quang’s
membership in the CMAPC, which also reportedly included certain non-military Politburo
members such as Le Duc Tho (Kissinger’s counterpart in Paris), makes him one of the most

. powerful and influential figures in North Vietnam during the war. Additional background on the

Central Committee role during the war, and specifically its Military Affairs section, can be found
in-The Party in Command: Political Organization and the Viet Cong Armed Forces, Vietnam
Documents and Research Notes #34, published May, 1968, which includes notes from captured
COSVN documents, for example, “The Central Committee establishes the Party Central Military
Affairs Committee (including a number of Central Committee military and non-military members)
to help it in its leadership of the People’s Army. The General Political Directorate is placed under
the Central Committee, which to some extent, delegates its power to the Party Central Military
Affairs Committee... Thus, the Central Committee directly decides upon major affairs related to
the armed forces. The Party Central Military Affairs Committee, which exercises command over
the armed forces under the direct leadership of the Central Committee, is a part of the Central
Committee... These facts show the supreme power of the Central Committee over the armed
forces. The Central Committee exerts direct control of the armed forces in all fields, particularly
in ideological matters. To help the Central Committee, there has been established a large political
organ, the General Political Directorate which works under the supervision of the Central
Committee and the Party Central Military Affairs Committee.” Additional information on the key
role played by both the Party Central Military Affairs Committee and the Party’s Political Bureau_
(ie: Politbura) can be found jn the Communist publication, Owr Great Spring Offensive, by
General Van Tien Dung, Chief of Staff, Vietnamese People’s Army, 1977. (U) -
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(JUSPAOQ), American Embassy Saigon, listing from July, 1972 listing Quang
‘as 2 member of North Vietnam’s Communist Party’s Central Military Affairs
Committee and a Deputy Chief of Staff of the Vietnamese People’s Army
(VPA)"". (U)

7 Note: The Russian GRU cover pages to the 1205 document, and another report by General
Quang in 1972, also note Quang’s title as “Deputy Chief of the General Staff of the Vietnamese
People’s Army.” Interestingly] - ) General
Quang functioned as Deputy Chieffrom as early as 1954 to at least 1968, and theh again from
1974 to 1982, leaving in doubt whether Quang still had that title between 19687and 1974. '
(Yanuary, 1974 was the date Quang was first identified agéin publicly as Deputy Chief of Staff,

according to FBIS reports). However, as noted, U.S. records did still carry him with that title in
July, 1972, and again in a Vietnam Document and Research Note datg.d 1973. o

b))
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© ftwo of Quang’s aliases or pseudonyms were Bay

© Tien and Tran Nam Trung.™® While Quang’s use of the alias Bay Tien has
been acknowledged by Hanoi in recent years’, Quang’s use of both aliases is
a dramatic disclosure, corroborated by other reporting, which lends credence
to Quang having been “probably the most powerful single individual in the
entire communist apparatus in South ’Vuiamam80 ” as well as a key military and
political leader in North Vietnam’s Communist Party. The reasons for this
are multifold and noteworthy (&) —

° Accorded to the captured notebook of senior North Vietnamese 4
Communist Party Central Committee member and high ranking PAVN

b)(1 . )
§b§§3§ NatSecAct official “Muoi Khan®'™), obtained by U.S. forces in 1967, Quang

ﬁﬁ

For open source biographic matenal on Quang’s alias names, ~ITan Nam Irung,”™ and
“Bay Tien,” see Vietnam Courier, No. 29, p.19, October, 1974; The Communist Road to Power
- in Vietnam, Duiker, 1996, p.. 198, 210, and 399(n32); International Yearbooks of Communist
Affairs, 1969-1973; Vietnam Documents and Research Notes, studies published by the U. S
Mission in Vietnam during the war. (8)

» Memorandum for Record, Defense POW/MIA Office Research and Analysis Directorate,
dated March 11, 1997 (see translated enclosures). (U)

% The Communist Party of South Vietnam, A Study, published by the United States Mission in
Vietnam, Saigon-Vietnam, March 1966, p. 25. (U)

¥ The document was captured by the Fourth U.S. Infantry Division on March 30, 1967,
during Operation Junction City II. It is described as the notebook of “Muoi Khan; appointed ,
Chief of the Administrative Staff of the Military Affairs Committee for COSVN in 1961.” Note: -
According to the communist Hanoi publication, Tho vao Nam (Letters fo the South), published in
1985 by Su That Puiblishing House in Hanoi (p. 311), “Muoi Khang” was the alias for Lt. Gen-
Hoang Van Thai, a Deputy Chief of Staff of the VPA and Vice-Minister of Defense (Feb. 1961),
who was a member of the Vietnam Workers (Communist) Party Central Committee in Hanoi,
including the CC’s Military Affairs Committee, as well as “Assistant. Secretary of the Regional. .-
Party Military Affairs Comimittee of the Central-Office for South Vietnam.” The contents of the
notebook are discussed in detail (including the identification of Bay Tien as Tran Van Quang and

" SECRET
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(referenced in the notebook under his alias Bay Tien) was one of two
high-ranking communist North Vietnamese officials instrumental in the
reestablishment in 1961 of the Central Office for South Vietnam
(COSVN?™), ie: North Vietnam’s Communist Party’s southern branch

his reporting to North Vietnam’s i’blitburo) in Vietnam Documents and Research Notes #40, The
Central Office of South Viemam, published by the American Embassy, Saigon (JUSPAO), date
August, 1968, p. 5, 21, and 23.

82 COSVN, and its relation to the PRP and NLF is discussed and identified in various wartime
and postwar U.S. Government studies and records, in addition to other academic publications, :s
— (1) “officially set up as the top command post for all communist activities in South Vietnam. It
is responsible for both control of political affairs and direction of Viet Cong military. activities.
Through interlocking organization and concurrent assignments, COSVN members guide the
People’s Revolutionary Party (PRP), the National Liberation Front (NLF) and all other elements
of the infrastructure and the South Vietnam Liberation Army.- COSVN itself is subordinate to
Hanoi and reports directly to officials there. It is the forward headquarters of the Vietnam
Workers’ Party (Lao Dong) of the North. The key leaders of COSVN are members of the

~ Central Executive Committee or Politburo of the Northern Party...COSVN appears to have fairly

direct access to the Hanoi Politburo... At the time COSVN was recreated in 1961, it became the
central organ for the Southern Branch of the (Communist North’s) Lao Dong/Workers’ Party.
When the People’s Revolutionary Party (PRP) was established on January 1, 1962, COSVN then
became the Central Committee of the new party for the South with its highest leaders making up
the Standing Committee of the PRP. Establishment of the PRP was a tactical maneuver
appropriate to Hanoi’s strategy of depicting the revolution in South Vietnam as a movement
strictly indigenous to the South.” see VDRN #40, August, 1968, p.1-2.and 5; (2) “The PRP
Central Committee frequently is referred to as the Central Office, South Vietnam (COSVN). The
implication of this usage sometimes is that the Central Office is organizationally and
geographically separated from the Central Committee of the NLF, but the PRP at all times works
through the Front and is not separate from it. The PRP is referred to by communist sources as
:the vanguard of the NLF, the soul of the NLF. ' Its pipeline into North Vietnam was by means cf
the Lao Dong Party (North Vietnam’s Communist Party) apparatus, and the party itself appears
to be its chief sponsor in Hanoi...Captured Lao Dong cadre documents state “the creation of the:
People’s Revolutionary Party is only a matter of strategy...it is a means of...advancing the plan of
invasion of the South...it has only the appearance of an independent existence, but actually, it is
nothing but the Lao Dong Party (of North Vietnam), the chief of which is President Ho...take cure
to keep this strictly secret, especially in South Vietnam so that the enemy does not perceive our
purpose...According to instructions of the Central Committee, one must not tell the people or
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(top command post or forward headquarters for the South), also known
as the People’s Revolutionary Party (PRP) headquarters beginning in
January, 1962, and the headquarters for the National Liberation Front
(NLF) established in December, 1960 (in essence, the PRP was the
backbone of the NLF, the leadership of which constituted a Secretariat
known as COSVN under the North’s Central Committee and Politburo
direction). (U)

® Quang, according to this information, had become in late 1961, the
head of COSVN’s (ie: NLF) Military Affairs Committee (in addition to
being a COSVN member), simultaneously serving as.executive officer

“and NLF fepresentative of the People’s Liberation Armed Forces

(PLAF), (also established in 1961 with COSVN serving asits
headquarters). Other intelligence reporting corroborates Quang’s
early involvement with COSVN’s Military Aﬁ'anrs Committee and the
PLAF® (/s/)

- party sympathizers that the.Peop'le’s Revolutionary Party and the Lao Dong (Communist

Workers) Party of (North) Vietnam are one. One must not say that it is only a tactic, because it
vould not be good for. the enemy to know.” see The Comnnmisi Party of South Vietnam, A .
Study, published by the U.S. Mission in Saigon-Vietnam, March, 1966, p.3-25; and (3) “The top
COSVN leaders were all Party veterans with a history of loyalty to the.organization. - At the end .
of each year, a leadmg COSVN member attended a Politburo meeting,in Hanoi to consult with ..
Party leaders and receive directions for future strategy in the South...In-early 1962, Hanm decxded
to set up a southern branch of the VWP, the Peaple’s Revolutionary Party, or PRP. The PRP -
was initially described as an independent party with no formal connections with the VWP in the
North. This was a fiction designed to avoid identification of the southern movement with the
Party leadershlp in the North. In reality, the PRP was-directly subordinateto the parent
organization in the DRV through COSVN.” The Commumst Road to Power in Vietnam, Dmker :
1996, p. 230." (U)- : : RS . . .

83[

(1)-
(3) NatSecAct

| A DIA biographic summary, = :

forward to the Army’s Task Force Russia in April, 1993 states, “In 1960.. just as his important
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°® Also, according to the information from the captured notebook, Quang
. was reported lo be preparing and sending reports direcily to the
Central Committee of the Communist (Laa Dong/Workers’) Party in
North Vietnam. (U) -
® Quang was subsequently reported, under the alias Tran Nam Trung. in
- 1963, 1964, and thereafter, to still be the NLF representative of the
PLAF, and the head of the NLF’s Military Affairs Committee, but also
- the Secretary General of the PRP, and a Vice-Chairman (or Vice-
President) of the NLF’s Central Committee Presidium -- all of whose
entities, as previously notéd above, were created and directed by North
Vietnam’s Communist Workers®/Lao Dong Party (VWP) in Hanoi,
even though Hanoi’s involvement was kept secret at the time for
propaganda reasons (hence the need for Quang’s alias name).* (S)/

e Quang’s ététu;‘e as Secretary General of the North’s party apparatu:; in
the South (ie: the PRP)®, while 'simultangoué‘,ly serving on the Nortl'’s

military staff and political positions were being recogmzed he received assignment to become:
Commander of the South Vietnam Liberation Army and concurrently a member of the Military
Committee of the Central office for South Vietnam”; official communist publications in Hanoi,

‘dated November 21 1992, and Decemiber 12, 1992, state “When the war, of liberation of the

South was developmg, he (Quang) was appomted Member of the Military Comnuttee of
COSVN...” },S’) ‘ . .

% The Communisi Party of South Vietnam, A Slmiy, U.s. Mission in'Saigon—Viemam, March,
1966, p. 4, 17, and 25; Vietnam Documents and Research Notes #41, The Leadership of the -
National leeranon I'ronl (NLF), p. 1-4, August, 1968, lntematlonal Yearbook of Communist
Affairs, Hoover Institution Press, Stanford University, 1971, p. 689, 1972, p. 597, Vietnam
Documents and Research Notes #lOS People’s Revolutionary .Parly, p- 24, June, 1972 (U)

% As discussed in a precedmg footnote, and amphﬁed here, the establishment of the PRP in .
1962 was the outcome of Hanoi’s judgment that there was a need to provide more effective
leadership and organization to the National Liberation Front (NLF) of South Vietnam, founded on
December 20, 1960. Captured NLF cadre documents made clear that the PRP was to be “the .

§§§RET
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elite Central Military Affairs Party Comsmittee, is significant because it
further established Quang as Hanoi’s senior military and political
figure for military operations and party activities in the war effort in
Central and South Vietnam. Interesting, when a biographic note on
Quang was published in Hanoi in 1985%, it did reference Quang as
having been the Vietnam Communist (Lao Dong/Workers’) Party
Secretary of the Tri-Thien-Hue Region Party Committee and
Commander of that same Military Region, in essence, a significant part
of the same area that was under the COSVN (PRP/NLF) apparatus,
thus verifying Quang’s stature both politically and militarily in the
various roles cited above. (

® When the leaders in Hanoi, through clandestinie direction, established
the Provisional Revolutionary Government (PRG) for the South in
1969 under direct COSVN guidance, Quang, again under the alias of
Tran Nam Trung, became the PRG Defense Minister, a position he
concurrently held, along with his other reported ongoing positions,
through 1972 during the timeframe of the 1205 report.” Interestingly,

paramount organization” which would be “responsible for the leadership of all other
organizations, the liberation associations, the mutual aid associations, as well as for the leadership
of all the people who would overthrow the old regime for the sake of the new.” (Quoted in Viet
Cong, by Douglas Pike, M.L.T. Press, Cambridge, Mass, 1966, p. 40.) “The PRP is, in fact, the
southern branch of the Vietnam Workers’ Party (Lao Dong VWP) of North Vietnam”
(International Yearbook of Communist Affairs, 1970, p. 714.) (U)

% Memorandum for Record, Defense POW/MIA Office Research and Analysis Directorate
(see translated enclosures), dated March 11, 1997. (U) :

¥ See Vietnam Documents and Research Notes published by North Vietnam Affairs section,
JUSPAO, American Embassy, Saigon, #60, June, 1969, p.2; #66, September, 1969, p. 21; #101,
January, 1972, p. 13 and p. 27, #105, June, 1972, p.v, 7, 8, 13, and 24; #111, April, 1973, p. 7,
10, 12, and 40-42; and International Yearbook of Communist Affairs, Hoover Institution Press,
Stanford University, 1970, p. 721; 1972, p. 597; 1973, p. 573; and Le Monde, Paris, November
25, 1972. (U)
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i\: in its public pronouncements, communist liberation radio referenced
;i the PRG as having been formed from representatives of many of the
ok same geographic areas which at the time comprised Quang’s
:j : concurrent battlefield command areas in the North Vietnamese Army.
L* . Quang’s alias name, Tran Nam Trung, is also referenced in a Nerth

‘ ,t - Vietnamese postwar memoir as having been present, along with Le
£

Duc Tho, in clandestine strategy sessions in the South for the final
i offensive against Saigon in 1975*%, which again attests to Quang’s

g stature in the North Vietnamese leadership structure. (§)

g e  According to an American Embassy, Saigon, assessment in June:, 1972,
AR “...PRG-NFL leaders probably have resided in Hanoi for a protracted
L . period...many of the national figures may be assumed to have been in
i _ * Hanoi, as of May, 1972. Some may be with NVN troops in the

£ : northern-most provinces of the Republic of Vietnam, others witn
COSVN.” | - ]

(b)(3) NatSecAct lends plausibility to Quang making
presentations before NVN leaders, possibly gathered in Hanoi, in
December, 1970/early January, 1971 (as the 735 report alleges); in
~February, 1972 (as Quang himself concedes); in June, 1972 (as the
.Russian GRU claims), and again in September, 1972 (as the Russian
- GRU clanms ie: the 1205 report). ()Sf

® It also bears noting that NVN ralliers reported during this same time
period that PRG Defense Minister “Tran Nam Trung” was “in fact, a
senior officer of the North Vietnamese People’s Army and an alternate
member of the Central Committee of the Vietnamese Workers’
Party89 ” descnpftxons ‘which match that of Tran Van Quang.

® See Our Great Sprmg V:ctory, by North Vietnamese Army Chlef of Staff, Genera. Dung, p.
150-151, published 1977. (U) . . _

% Vietnam Documents and Research Notes, The Provisional Revolutionary Government
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® According to the 1970/71 so-called “735” report obtained by the

Russian GRU in 1971, during the course of his-remarks, Hoang Anh
states, in two instances, that Comrade General Tran Van Quang would
be reporting to the North’s Vietnam Workers’ (Communist) Party
Central Committee in greater detail concerning plans in South Vietnam
“on behalf of the Vietnam Workers' Party Central Commiitee Military
Section and the VPA Command in South Vietnam.” The reference to

* Quang in this manner lends credence to the significant responsibilities
held by General Quang referenced above, to include under his reported

alias. 95«)

e According to an April, 1993 Defense Intelhgence Agency study of General
Tran Van Quang’s background, it was “completely plausible that a person of
his distinguished command background, and eminent political standing,
would be the person who could offer a political thesis to the politburo which
involved further future aggressive moves for takeover of the South and

(PRG), North Vietnam aﬁ'axrs section, JUSPAO, American Embassy, Saigon, January, 1972, p.
13. (U)

*' Tho vao Nam (Letters fo the South), Edited by Duc Luong, et al., Su That ]Pubhslufié
House, Hanoi, p. 311-314, 415, re: reference to Gen. Tran Van Quang in August; 1972 as
alternate member of the Central Committee of the Viet Nam Workers Party, publmhed 1985,
subsequently obtained'by Defense Intelligence Agency, and translated by Defense POW/MIA
Office Research and Analysis Directorate on March 8, 1997.-(U) -
(b)( 1)
SEERET (b)(3) NatSecAct
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political arguments advocated for the toughest deal to be made with the
Amencan negotiators.”?” (U)

® According to official communist Vietnamese documentation — published in
1985 by the Vietnamese Government’s Su That Publishing House in Hanoi
and subsequently obtained by the Defense Intelligence Agency — “Comrade
Tran Van Quang” is identified as “alternate member of the Central
Committee of the Viet Nam Workers Party (Vietnamese Commumst Party)”
as of Augusl 1 972 3 (U) :

e Former North Vretnamese Sr. Colonel Bui Tin, identified General Tran Van
Quang as someone - who would have been knowledgeable about the subject of
American POWs, and possible Russian involvemnent, 16 months prior to the
surfacing of the 1205 document from Russian arctrives.“:(U)

o According to the Russian Federation —

® ‘General Quang, even though he served in command of the ‘Fourth
Military District,” “was frequently.sent to South Vietnam to evalnate

ar

*2 Defenise Intelligence Agency Special Office for Prisoners of War.and Missing in Action
unclassified fax with enclosure; sent to Task Force Russra Department of the Armle SRIC,
dated -April 29, 1993, (U).

”* Memorandum for Record, Defense POW/MIA Office Research and Analysrs Directorate,
dated March 11; 1997 (see translated enclosures) ()

* See letter from Bur Tin to Senate Select Commlttee on POW/MIA Aﬁ‘arrs dated Docember
16, 1991. In a subsequent interview with US officials in 1997, as noted in the NIE, Tin indicated
he thought it was plausible that Quang could have reported to the Politburo, and that Quang:
could have gone by helicopter to Hanoi to make a report, and that this would not have beenan
unusual practice. The fact that this latter testimony was-referenced.in the NIE makes it s Tange
that the NIE would then judge that: crrcumstarmal evrdence makes it * unhkely Quang would be . .
brought to Hanor ” w . ‘
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activities and returned to deliver reports to the Politburo;.””(ﬁj

® “General Tran Van Quang, according to the position he held in the
Vietnamese military political leadership in 1972, was fully competent
in the matters stated in the report and qualified to speak.about them at
Politburo sessions of the Vietnamese Worker's Party Central
Committee;™ (U)

® “This number (1205) was announced by Quang at a closed Politburo
meeting. As an archivist and someone who has analyzed a great many
documents, military and otherwise, I can tell you that this is an absolute
truth;”" (U)

® According to interviews conducted by US officials, several Russian
and other Eastern European representatives, stationed in Hanoi during
the Vietnam War, have reported having known or met General Quang
during their assignments, to include seeing him in Hanoi in 1972, and
vacationing with him and his wife in 1968 at the Soviet Union’s Black
Sea resort of Sochi (Quang was reportedly “requested” by the Soviet
Government to vacation there);”® (U) '

% See Memorandum for Task Force Russia, Subject: Vietnamese General Tran Van Quang,

“Summary: General Volkogonov stated that...Quang had a special relationship with the Politburo

and made reports to them. While Quang was not officially appointed Deputy Chief of the General
Staff until sometime in 1974, Volkogonov said, he functioned earlier in his special relationship.”
Volkogonov further described what he was passing to the U.S. side as “the latest mformatnon
from the GRU " dated July 2, 1993, (U)

% See letter from General F. Ladygin, Chief of the GRU of the General Staff of the Russnan
Armed Forces to Senator Bob Smith, dated June 30, 1994 (")) .

%7 Statement by Dr. Rudol’f Germanovich Pikhoya, Chief State Archivist of the Russian
Federation, August, 1995. (U) .

. * For examples, see Defense Intelligence Agency messages containing Joint Commission
Support Directorate intqrviews dated December 6, 1996; March 7, 1997; April 24, 1997, June 12,

SECRET
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® According to the GRU and other Russian officials, General Quang
- authored at least two additional presentations made by him to sessions

of the North Vietnamese leadership, one in 1970, (the contents of -
which have not yet been disclosed to US officials by the Russian
Government) and the other dated June 26, 1972°° — in the middle of
the so-called “Easter Offensive,” (the contents of which were briefly
shared with US officials in July, 1993, and were subsequently judged
by DoD to be “an authentic text of a PAVN report that, based cn its
content, could have been prepared by Gen. Tran Van Quang. DoD
further judged that “most of the information in the text of that
document is historically accurate.™) (U)

1997; and January 29, 1998. The June, 1997 report, and intervfew with former USSR Central
Committee Secretariat official Yevgeniy Glazunov, refers to the Black Sea 1968 visit — '
Glazunov accompanied Quang on this visit (see DIA 120707Z Jun 97). Additional interviews

- have taken place since publication of the NIE in classified form in April, 1998, which further

confirm this point. For example, see DIA 0201472, Jun 98, Subj: Interview with former USSR
Central Committee International Department official, Anatoliy Voronin. (Nofe: Voronir. served as
Quang’s interpreter during the Black Sea visit). Also, the communist Polish Press Agency
correspondent in Hanoi in 1972, Ryszard Rymaszewski, has told US officials that he met Gen.
Quang in Hanoi when he stumbled into a-meeting in 1972 of “top Vietnamese military brass to
include Quang, the Vietnamese being rather irritated by his presence.” It was also Mr.
Rymaszewski’s opinion that “since Quang was a key member of the military, he would have had
the opportunity to address Politburo sessions and meet with American POWs.” (U)

* See Interim Analysis by Senator Bob Smith to Ambassador Malcolm Toon, dated July 21,
1993; Memorandum for Task Force Russia, Subject: Vietnamese General Tran Van Quang, dated
July 2,'1993; GRU translation of the so-called1970/71 “735” report wherein author Hoang Anh
references a report to the plenum by Gen. Quang; and Joint Commission Support Directorate
Moscow office correspondence to Russian officials, dated February, 1997. (U)

"% Memorandum for Record, Subject: Assessment of a Text Purported to be a Translation of a
26 June 1972 Speech by PAVN Lt Gen Tran Van Quang, Research and Analysis Directorate,
Defense POW/Missing Personnel Office, dated March 11, 1997. (U)

SECRET
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e  According to the text of the Russian GRU translation of the so-called
735 report (a speech by North Vietnamese Communist Party Central
Committee Secretary Hoang Anh during the war), General Quang was
one of 10 individuals selected by the Politburo to serve on an
organization committee for preparation of the Communist Party’s
Fourth Congress — other individuals on the list of 10 included the top
NVN leadership, (Le Duan, Pham Van Dong, Truong Chinh, Pham
Hung, Le Duc Tho, etc...)'® This reference to Quang among these
comrades adds considerable merit to the argument that Quang was a
top-ranking North Vietnamese political and military figure durmg the
war. (U)

(o)1)

o According to the former US Government official who headed the US
POW/MIA Office in Hanoi in 1991 and worked Vietnam issues for over 20
years, “LTC Quang was a former Political Commissar, a former deputy head
of the General Political Directorate (GPD), a former director of the Military
Security Department, a former member of the National Defense Council, a
former head of the South Vietnam Liberation Armed Forces, a former Deputy

! . Secretary of the COSVN Military Affairs Committee, a former member of the

f Military Affairs Committee of the Party Central Committee; and a former

' Chief of the Enemy Proselytizing Department. That being the case, itis
highly unlikely that LTC Quang does not possess significant information
relative to US POW/MIA.™'? Interestingly, this same official identified Gen:

"™ See p.19 of English translation of the 735 report obtained by the Russian GRU. (U)

Letter to Deputy Assistant Secretary of Defense for POW/MIA Affair's fmm Garnett E.

(b)(1)
(b)(3) NatSecAct
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Quang as akey Vietnamese ofﬁclal who should be interviewed by US
officials for US POW information some 16 months priorto the surfacing of
the 1205 document." (U) (o)1)
(b)(3) NatSecAct
e General Quang himself authored two reports in 1966, one of which was '
_published.in Hanoi on July 7, 1966 — over two weeks after his June 20, 196¢
appointment (date indicated in Vietnamese publication | |
as Commander of the newly formed B .4 Front (Military
Region IV). The substance of both of these reports, which were obtained and
translated by U.S. intelligence in 1966'%’, in addition to the timing of the
second report, indicate that Quang was quite capable of holding multiple
positions in the Vietnamese military and political hierarchy at the same time,
and was competent enough to speak across the spectrum of Vietnam War
issues with approval of the rest of the Vietnamese leadership. (U)

® Quang himself conceded to US .ofﬁcials in 1993 that, on at least one occasion

“in about January-February, 1972,”he had “reported to the North Vietnamese
Politburo.”!% (U).

“Bill” Bell, former Chief" US POW/MIA Office in Hanoi (1991), dated March 24, 1996. (U)

194 1 etter to US Senate Select Committee on POW/MIA Affairs from Mr Bell, dated
December, 1991, (U) :

105 Memorandum for Record, Defense POW/MIA Office Research and Analysis Directorate,
dated March 11, 1997 (U)

AB)(1)
(b)(3) NatSec/

P

ct

: 197 See Central Intelligence Agency Office of Congressional Affairs unclassified transmittals to
Senate, dated April 15, 1993, and April 29, 1993, containing the translated text of the referenced
reports, prepared by US intelligence (FBIS) in 1966. (U)

1% See Footnote #105 (U)

SECRET
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e There is information from Russian and U.S. sources (previously made
available to the NIC) that not all 1972 Politburo or Central Committee
sessions involving North Vietnam’s leadership were actually held in Hanoi,
but may have been held in Hoa Binh, North Vietnam:'®” In view of the fact
that there is no indication in the text of the 1205 report, that the Politburo
session involving Gen. Quang actually took place in Hanoi, the NIE’s
statement that Quang would have had to have been “brought to Hanoi” to
make his report reflects a failure to take into account other possible meeting
locations, which could have been supported by the fact that the city of Hanoi
was itself partially evacuated, under the command of Col. Doan Phung, Chief
Political Officer for all troops stationed in the capital area, following the
heavy U.S. bombing campaign which began in mid-April, 1972 and lasted for
several months. (Nofe: Although it is important to point out these analytical
failures in the NIE, in this case, subsequent information received by me in
November, 1998 from a Russian intelligence official indicates that General
Quang’s presentation (ie: the 1205 report) was actually given at a meeting of
the Politburo held at the Ministry of National Defense in the Citadel in Hanoi.
The receipt of this new and significant information does not, however, negate
the NIE’s failure, as noted above, based on the information avallable to the
IC at the time of pubhcahon earher this year.) : :

o In the text of the 1205 report, General Quang reportedly states the toplcs .
being covered in his September, 1972 presentation are: (1) the general .
offensive conducted from March 30" (1972) to the present; (2) our errors and
deficiencies in the offensive...; (3) positive and negative aspects of the
offensive; (4) immediate plans of the enemy, and our operations; (5) analysis
of errors permitted in strategic and tactical leadership; (6) our contacts with-

'% Memorandum from Harvard researcher Stephen Morris, enclosing notes taken from USSR
clocument referencing the “expanded meeting of the DRV politburo in Hoa Binh in early October,
1972,” dated June 30, 1993; and Memorandum from former US POW/MIA official Garnett “Bill”
Bell, Subject: 1972 Meetmgs of North Vietnamese leadership in Hoa Binh, dated July 21,
1997.(U)

SECRET
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political figures of South Vietnam from the Saigon regime; and (7) the matter
of American POWs captured on the three fronts of Indochifia. The NIE
claims that these-“issues were not within his scope of responsibility,”
however, even the Vietnamese, Quang himself, US intelligence, Russian
_ . intelligence, and open source materials, confirm, that at the very least, six of’

. the above seven issues, were, in fact, within the scope of Quang’s wartime

i responsibilities. Quang himself only challenges his reported knowledge on

| the American’POW situation during the war (the 7™ topic covered in his

[ alleged. 1205 report), a challenge which is contradicted by Quang’s reported

| positions noted above, which would have necessitated knowledge of US

' POW' matters.) As such, the NIE statement is seriously inaccurate,
mcomplete and mlsleadmg (8)

In view of the preponderancc of relevant evidence referenced above and previously
made available to or originated by the Intelligence Community, the NIE judgment
that Quang was merely a batilefield commander in a combat situation who claims
1o have been with.his troops and plausibly argues that he would not have delivered

" a report like the 1205: document, is not supported. The judgment is seriously

inaccurate and based-on shoddy and incomplete research, which, itself, reflects verv
poorly on the U.S. Intelligence Community. To ignore this overwhelming body of
evidence, and not even reference it, is troubling and makes me wonder what the
intent of the Intelligence Community is with respect to this analysis. This is
especially disturbing because an assessment of this document was one of the two

-main taskings for this Estimate. (5

Finally, although the NIE itself notes that Quang’s recent statements to US officials,
denying involvement with the 1205 report, are “marred by implausible statements”,
it fails to point out the most glaring, and perhaps directly relevant, example which
should cause anything Quang or the SRV Government alleges about the 1205
report, and the fate of American POWs, to be viewed with great skepticism.

| This-fact i§also confirmed by a postwar

(b)(1) :
- (b)(3) NatSecAct SE;GR@'E‘
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Communist publication.'°

It is equally doubtful that General Quang — who has occupied since 1992 the
prestigious Hanoi-based Party controlled post of Chairman of the Vietnam War
Veterans Association (the association’s “honorary” chairman is General Giap''?) —
would admit any such involvement with these matters. Indeed, the fact that Quang
now holds this distinguished position, next to Giap himself, casts even further doubt
on the NIE’s minimizing of Quang’s career, as of the date of the 1205 document.

5 f | N

"% See Our Great Spring Victory by North Vietnamese Army Chief of Staﬁ',.General Dung,
Monthly Review Press, New York, 1977, p. 104, (U)

"! See Vietnam by Karnow, p. 276-279; Inside Hanoi's Secret Archives by McConnell, p.
271; The Encyclopedia of the Vietnam War by Kutler, (under “Hue”). For denial by General -
Quang, see Vietnam, A History, by Stanley Karnow, 2™ Edition, 1997, p.543, “Revisiting -
Vietnam in 1981 and again in 1990, I was able to elicit little credible evidence from the
Communists to clarify the episode. General Tran Do, a senior Communist architect of the Tet
offensive, flatly denied that the Hue atrocities had ever occurred, contending that films and
photographs of the corpses had been “fabricated.” [ heard the same line from General Tran Van
Qnuang, who commanded the Communist forces in the region.” (U) ' ‘

"2 EBIS translations of Nhan Dan and Voice of Vietnam reports from Hanoi, November,
1992; December, 1992; and December, 1997. The Vietnam War Veterans Association is an entity
of the Vietnam Fatherland Front (VFF) which is under the control of the Vietnam Communist.
Party leadership, as established under Vietnam’s constitution of 1960. (See FBIS Daily Report 22
Dec 1997, Internatiofial Yearbook of Communist Affairs, 1972, p. 591, and Vietnam Documents
and Research Notes, #103, February, 1972, p.4,9)(U) .
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NIE STATEMENT: “The length of the (] 205) report would be mappraprzate
Jor a Politburo meeting...the purpose of the meetings was
to make decisions, not listen to long oral reports.” (p.27)

&
ASSESSMENT:
The Intelligence Community has provided no reporting to support this bizarre claim.

As proof of this fact, the NIE is only able to vaguely cite the views of one,
unidentified, “academic specialist on Vietnam.” In light of this, it is inappropriate

for the NIE to attempt to make a judgment in this area. ’

|As such, there

is no basis for comparing what constitutes an appropnate “length” of a report to the
Politburo. If anything, the length of the 1205 report, in fact, tracks with the length

- of the June, 1972 report by Gen. Quang previously made available to US officials.-

As such, the NIE judgment does not rest on any solid foundation, and cannot be
accepted with confidence, 45)

Moreover, a North Vietnamese Communist publication in 1977 attests to the fact
that the Politburo (also referred to as the “Political Bureau™) did in fact meet to
listen to reports by the Central Military Affairs Party Committee (of which Gen.
Quang is reportedly speaking on behalf of in the 1205 document), especially before
reaching critical decisions. And that publication also reveals that both the Political
Bureau and theé Military Committee often met jointly to analyze and reach decisions
concerning the war. Politburo members would also sit in on meetings of the
Military Committee when reports and assessments were being preserited and
discussed.'” (U)

" Our Greal Spring Offensive, by North Vietnamese Army Chief of Staff, General Van Tien
Dung, published in 1977. There are numerous references in this publication of the meetings of the
Political Bureau and Central Military Committee, including references to instances when “the

SECRET
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NIE STATEMENT: “The tone of the report also is inappropriate. A person
of Quang's subordinate status would not have lectured
the Politburo on what its policies were. Such hard-core
revolutionaries as Le Duan, Pham Van Dong, and
Truong Chinh probably would not have been spoken to in
such manner or have toleraled such language.”

(r-27,29) (%)
_ [T
ASSESSMENT: . (b)(3) NatSecAct

The NIE judgment is not supported. As already demonstrated in this assessment
Quang himself was a member of North Vietnam’s elite Central Committee}.
comprised of the political-military leadership of the country, including the Pohtbum
members, and he was also a member of that Committee’s Military Affairs scctmn
Quang was just as much a “hardcore revolutionary” as his colleagues referenced in

- the NIE statement ! l

In addition, his famlly had a close association with Ho Chi Minh and
General Giap and he was also reportedly a close friend of General Van Tien Dung,

. Chief of the General Staff of the Vietnamese People’s Army, and the Deputy -

Secretary of the Central Military Affairs Party Committee in 1972.'"

Moreover, Quang states in the 1205 document that he is reporting to the Politburo
on the matters outlined in the presentation “on assignment of the Supreme
Command, National Defense Council, and the Military Committee of the Politburo.
It is certainly plausible that General Giap, who chaired or co-chaired (with Premier
Pham Van Dong) these entities as a Politburo member, wanted Quang to report on

»

Political Bureau met to hear the Central Military Committee report on the developing situation...”

)

~y

' Defense Intelligence Agency study, dated April 29, 1993. (U)

'/sgcﬁﬁgf
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the referenced matters to the rest of the Politburo membership, to include non-
military members of the Politburo such as the Vice-Premier for Economic Issues,
and the Vice-Chairman of the National Assembly Standing Committee. There is
only one sentence.in. the entire 25-page translated 1205 report where Quang could
possibly be interpreted as “lecturing the Politburo™ wherein he states “we conderan
individualistic mistaken views current among us on this (the American POW)
matter.”, Quang’s use of the word “we” in this sentence, and the fact that he states
he is reporting on assignment of entities headed or.co-chaired by General Giap,
could plausibly have given Quang the cover to have used such language at that point
in the report, given the importance of the topic to the military leadership, and the
very close working relationship between the Politburo and the Central Military
Commlttee during the war. (U)

Addntmnally, the NIE 1tself Judges ina subsequent section (p. 3 1) that “Factlonahsm

- and-disagréement ovér policy broke out during the period of collective leadership

after the death of Ho-Chi Minh (1969).” Why, then, would one sentence in a 25-
page report revealing evidence of disagreement before a session of the Politburo in

* 1972-be implausible? In any event, there is hardly enough compelling evidence for

the NIE to judge that “Quang would not have lectured the Politburo’]

000095

® o

NIE STATEMENT: “The timing of the Politburo meeting is questionable. The
repori supposedly was given on 15 September, 1972, dut
the Vietnamese claim there was no meeling on that date.

]
o 29) (S

ASSESSMENT: o)

First, while the NIE accurately reflects Vietnam’s claim, the claim itself'"> — from a

'S The Washington Post reported from Hanoi on April 19, 1993 that Vietnamese Foreign

SEcRet
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communist regime that to date has produced no evidence to support its claim — is
hardly a basis for judging, as the NIE does, that the timing of the Politburo meeting
is questionable. Indeed, the NIE itself, earlier on p. 27, states that “the Politburo
met weekly during this particular period according to an academic specialist.” Why
then is a meeting on or around September 15 “questionable?” . Moreover, the NIE
statement fails to include additional, pertinent information, previously made
available to the principal NIE author, which makes Vietnam’s claim more
(questionable than the date of the meeting itself. For example, during a subsequent
meeting between Foreign Minister Cam and U.S. Senator John Kerry in Hanoi on
May 31, 1993, “Senator Kerry requested a copy of the Politburo calendar for that
1ime period, so a comparison could be made. The Vietnamese misunderstood the
request, believing Senator Kerry wanted Politburo minutes. They became very
upset and almost canceled the rest of the meeting. The misunderstanding was
vorrected and order was restored.!'®” To date, the Vietnamese, at a minimum, have
not produced any tangible evidence to prove their contention that no session of the
Politburo was held at the time alleged by the GRU. They have not produced a
record of dates on which meetings were held in the Summer/Fall of 1972, nor, as the

- NIE itself acknowledges in an earlier section, has Hanoi produced any information

irom Politburo archives that bears on POW/MIA issues. (

Second, the fact that the Intelligence Community, according to.the NIE, has not
been able to “confirm” that such a meeting took place is not evidence that the
meeting was not held, and therefore, is not a basis for “questioning” whether, in
~act, there was a meeting. To accept such a claim as evidence implies that the IC

Minister Nguyen Manh Cam had stated a day earlier, during a joint news conference with an
American delegation headed by General John Vessey, that “records of North Vietnam’s policy-
making Central Committee show no Politburo meeting on the date in questlon ” On April 22,
1993, Hanoi’s state-run Voice of Vietnam issued a broadcast, stating, in part, “There was no
‘neeting of the Politburo on 15 September, 1972.” (U)

"'® Memorandum for the Record, prepared by Vietnam Veterans of America (VVA), June,
1993. (Note: VVA accompamed Sen. Kerry on this trip and attended the meeting with Minister
Cam.) (U) :

3000095
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(1)
(b)(S) NatSecAct

was sofmehow omnipresent, having the ability to detect all other meetmgs of North
Vietnam’s Politburo during the Vietnam War. Since the NIE does-not make any

such suggestion, or provide evidence to support such a contention, then’ likewise, the
inclusion of the above statement in the NIE itself is meamngless and unwarranted.

While the NIEclaims there was no POW/MIA information in this data, it
fails to mention‘whether there was any reporting on dates and locations of Politburo
and Central Committee Military Affairs meetings, or references to Gen. Quang,
including under his aliases, which could have a bearing on a thorough assessment of’
the 1205 or 735 documents.) Were there? £S)

Third, the NIE fails to explore other possible scenarios, such as the suggestion By

. Russian General Volkogonov, that the date assigned to the 1205 document by the

GRU, which is reflected on the GRU cover page to the translated text (ie:
September 15, 1972) could have been the date the report was actually prepared by
North Vietnamese General Quang, not the actual date the report was presented.!

&

NIE SATEMENT: “On that day (September 15, 1972), Le Duc Tho, who ranked
5" in seniority on the Politburo, was meeting with Henry
Kissinger at a key juncture in the Paris peace talks.” (p. 29)

~8)

"7 Memorandum for the Record, Subject: Conversation between Gen. Volkogonov and Gen

Vessey during visit at Walter Reed Medical Center on June 22, 1993, signed by Major General
Bernard Loeffke, US Army, Director, Task Force Russia, DoD. (U)

SE T

3000096




06548527

000098

SEERET
ASSESSMENT:

In point of fact, the meeﬁng between Henry Kissinger and Le Duc Tho on '
September 15, 1972 did not represent a “key juncture in the Paris peace talks.” The
breakthrough in the Kissinger-Le Duc Tho dlscussmns did not come until October §,

1972.118 (Y

More importantly, declassified cables and subsequent statements by Dr. Kissinger
himself, made available to the principal author of the NIE in late 1997 and early
1998, contradict the NIE’s judgment that September 15, 1972 represented a key
Juncture in the Paris peace talks. For example, on September 27, 1972, in a then-
Top Secret message from Dr. Kissinger in Paris to Gen. Haig at the White House,
Kissinger stated, “There has been no significant progress...we held firm in. our basic
program, including political questions...in other areas, it emerged clearly both from -
DRV document and dlscusswns that we remam far apart on a number of major

issues...” (S

Zinally, with this statement, the NIE seems to imply that the Politburo would not
have met without Le Duc Tho, to discuss military and political strategy concerning
the war. If this i$ not the implication, then the inclusion of this sentence serves no
purpose. If this is the implication, then the NIE judgment is seriously undermined
by the fact that Le Duc Tho was physically located in Paris in early to mid August,
mid to late September (to include a few days prior to September 15™''%) | and early
1o mid October. To imply that the Politburo would not have met during these

.periods, and that communication channels with Le Duc Tho were not firmly: -

established between Hanoi and Paris, is simply ludicrous. Moreover, Le Duc Tho
ihad jUSt been present in Hanoi on September 4, 1972 during-a wreath laying.
ceremony marking the 3% anmversary of the death of Ho Chi Mmh 120

'8 Final Report of the Senate Select Commxttee on POW/MIA Aﬁ'alrs p. 50'7 dated January ,
1993 (Senate Rpt. 103 -1). (U)

19 See White HauSe Years by Henry Klssmger p 1333-1334 (U) _— e

2 Vietnam Documents and Research Notes, # 07 entitled Bases of Power in the DRV datcd
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NIE STATEMENT: “On that day (September 15, 1972), Quc;n‘g Tri fell to
: . South.Vietnamese forces... Would the Politburo be
. discussing POW/MIA issues with a general whose forces
were defending, and losing, a key city?” (p. 29) (S)

ASSESSMENT:

As previously discussed, the NIE has produced no evidence, other than a claim by
General Quang himself, to substantiate the inference that General Quang was
physically located at the B-4 or B-5 Front in September, 1972, with forces reported
to be under his command in Quang Tri province, and therefore, not available to meet
with a session of the Politburo on September 15, 1972. Moreover, in view of
voluminous evidence outlined earlier that Quang’s wartime responsibilities
transcended his reported battlefield command position, that he reported on several
military developments and planned operations in the 1205 report (not just POW

- issues), and that he might merely have issued instructions to the Front by radio from.

Hanoi, the NIE has not demonstrated the implausibility of Quang speaking to a
session of the Politburo during this time frame. Additionally, Hanoi has produced
no contemporary wartime records from September, 1972 which convincingly

demonstrate that General Quang was physically located at the Front on September
15,1972.(5)

Furthermore, the NIE has not convincingly demonstrated that a discussion of US
POW matters could not have been one of the many topics addressed by General
Quang, as noted in the 1205 report. In fact, U.S. intelligence reports and studies,
interviews with Vietnamese witnesses, and other information made available to the
principal author of the NIE in late 1997 and early 1998 indicate that General Quang;

October, 1972. See p. 2 (U) Note: Reportedly, the Party’s Central Military Affairs Committee
also laid a wreath. As noted earlier, Quang was a secret member of this Committee. It is unclear,
at the moment, whether Quang may have been present as well in Hanoi for this ceremony. (U)
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had served as Chief of the Central Committee’s Enemy Proselytizing Ofgé}ﬁzaﬁon
“etween 1951-1954, and subsequently as Deputy Director of the General Political

Directorate (GPD) of the General Staff of the Vietnamese People’s Army (PAVN)
in charge of the Department of Enemy Proselytizing (EPD). He was also reported
to have headed a conference of the EPD in 1963. The Central Committee’s Enemy
Proselytizing Organization and the PAVN GPD’s EPD were those elements of the
North Vietnamese Government responsible for the utilization, security,
documentation, and exploitation of enemy prisoners. (8)

Moreover, in interviews with US officials in 1993, General Quang himself verified
that he had dealt with prisoner of war matters, though he claimed it was only with
French prisoners during the French Indochina War. The above information certainly
does not prove that General Quang could not have included a discussion of US
POW matters in his alleged report before a session of the North Vietnamese
Politburo in 1972. Given his prior involvement with prisoner matters, his continuing
position as a CMAPC member in 1972 which supervised GPD activities, along with
his role as PRG Defense Minister, he certainly had the stature to do so, and would

- have been privy to, if not directly involved with, details about the status of US

POWs captured on all fronts of Indochina,

Finally, although ARVN forces recaptured the Quang Tri provincial capital city on
September 15" or 16™, 1972 (accounts vary on the actual date), the ARVN
counterattack to retake the city actually began at the end of June, and had dragged
on for some time."' And there is evidence from the Russian GRU that Quang
reported to the Politburo on June 26, 1972 about the difficulties being encountered,
to include “the strong groupings of American and puppet forces currently located

'2! See Encyclopedia of the Vietnam War, Quang Tri, Kutler, p. 463. A Communist
perspective on the ARVN counterattack battle for Quang Tri is contained in North Vietnamese .
Army Chief of Staff General Dung’s postwar memoire, Our Great Spring Victory, p. 45. Dung
claims “after successfully defeating enemy counterattacks throughout an eighty-six-day-and-night
battle to protect the citadel and the town, in the end we were only able to hold the area north of
the Thach Han River.~The enemy recaptured Hai Lang district, part of Trieu Phong dxstnct and
the ruins of the citadel and town.” (U) R
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along the fronts, with the groupings in Quang Tri and Dong Ha being the
strongest.'??” In view of this, and other supporting evidence previgusly discussed, it
is not implausible that Quang was not physically located at the Front during every

. major military development in the spring-summer campaign, Conversely, it is also
plausible that the final ARVN assault on Quang Tri city itself in mid-September
caught PAVN forces, and Quang, by surprise, and it could have conceivably
happened afier Quang’s presentation to the Politburo. (U)

NIE STATEMENT: “Although the circumstantial evidence above is not
definitive, the content of the (1205) report casts even
more doubl on its accuracy.” (p. 29)

ASSESSMENT:

This statement represents one of the most glaring examples of distortion by omission
in the entire NIE. The,NIE reader is left with the clear impression that the “content
- of the report” casts doubt on its accuracy. There are no qualifiers to this statement.
In fact, nowhere in the NIE is evidence presented which tends to corroborate the
content of the 1205 report. Instead, the NIE makes a giant leap from the above
statement directly to the next sentence which reads “the portions of the report
dealing with the POW issue are inaccurate...” However, the NIE fails to point out
other relevant information concerning the accuracy of much of the content of the
1205 report, to include information previously acknowledged as accurate or
plausible by elements of the Intelligence Community.'? Why? As such, the NIE
seriously misleads its reader with the above statement, which taken in its totality, is

122 gee Appendix to Interim Analysis by Sen. Bob Smith, dated July 21, 1993 (re: notes taken
from GRU report containing translated text of report by Gen Quang to NVN Politburo on June
"26, 1972.) (U) '

'® See Recent Reports of American POWs in Indochina: An Assessment, p. 2, released by the
Department of Defense on January 24, 1994, with input from elements of the Intelligence
Community. (U)
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niot supported by evidence previously made available to, originated by, or obtained
by the Intelligence Community £5). For example —

Statements by Dr. Henry Kissinger, former National Security Advisor
to President Nixon, on the accuracy of portions of the 1205 report:

“Having read the document carefully, I can only say that the description of the
North Viemamese government policy toward the South and the North's position
on negoliations with the United States conforms with what we knew fo be their

position at the time. »124

“When they (General Quang) described what their negotiating tactics were, those
were the tactics they were using in negotiating with us...they say in this document
that their proposals were first a cease-fire and the overthrow of President Thieu,
after which they would use the prisoners to negotiale whatever other concerns
they had. Now, as of the date of that dacument, those were their proposals. 4

" month later they changed it but I could see if you make a report to the Politburo

in the middle of September and you want 1o summarize what the negotiating
position is, this was exactly ihe negotmtmg position they had as of the date of that
document. To be precise, on October 8", about three weeks after this document,
they changed their position, but up to thal time, they had insisted on exactly the

conditions that are in that document...”>

White House/National Security Council declassified records from 1972
confirm that the U.S. delegation in Paris was privately being told by the
NVN delegation during this period precisely the same negotiating
position General Quang was referencing before the NVN Politburo.!?
It is further worth noting that neither the content of Quang s repon

124 1 etter from Dr. Henry Kissinger to Sen. Bob Smlth dated June 22, 1993, (U)

12 Transcript of comments by Henry Kissinger, The MacNezl/Lehrer Newshour, dated April
13 1993, (U) .

" See declassified National Security Council cables, previously made available to the IC; -
dated August 17, 1972, August 18, 1972, September 26, 1972, and September 27, 1972. (U)

| snyﬁ*
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before the NVN Politburo or the content of the secret US-NVN talks in -
Paris this same month had been publicly disclosed at the time, but yet
they match in many important respects, thereby adding considerable
merit to the argument that the 1205 report is genuine.

The report identifies contacts being made with several South
Vietnamese leaders who were known opponents of the regime of
President Nguyen Van Thieu and who were reported independently to
US intelligence to have had clandestine contacts with representatives
from the North.'”’

The report accurately depicts the circumstances surrounding the
surrender of a South Vietnamese unit during the 1972 Easter Offensive,
admitting that the North’s propaganda had misrepresented the event.'®

It predicts an upsurge in terrorist attacks beginning in October, 1972,
which was indeed noted in the Mekong Delta region in November.'?’

L)

NIE STATEMENT: “The portions of the (1205) report dealing with the POW

issue are inaccurate with respect to how the prisoners
were segregated by rank, where they were located, how
they were classified, and the conditions of their release.”
(p. 29)" (8f

000103

128 1hid.

127 See footnote #123.

" Ibid. In addition, the International Yearbook of Communist Affairs (IYCA) for the year
1972 notes that “During 1972, there were approximately 40,000 reported incidents of Viet Cong
terrorism — an all time high for the Vietnam War — and it was estimated that over 10,000
additional incidents went unreported (The New Yorker, 13 January, 1973)" IYCA, p. 571. (U)
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ASSESSMENT:

Once again, the NIE asserts that the portions of the 1205 report dealing with the
specified POW issues are inaccurate, but fails to convincingly demonstrate this
point. This is especially disturbing because there is, in fact, evidence that the North
Vietnamese classified POWs according to their level of cooperation or
progressivity, that some had been segregated by rank, that there were more
suspected US POWs camps during the war, and that the conditions outlined for the
release of US POWs was either plausible or actually presented as such to Henry
Kissinger during the peace talks.'*® In addition, the NIE fails to inform its reader
about other portions of the 1205 report dealing with the POW issue that can be
readily accepted as accurate or plausible based on information available to the US
Govemnment (S}, For example — ‘ :

. ® In the 1205 report, General Quang states, “For now, we havc officially

published a list of only 368 POWSs.” This statement is factually accurate as

discussed in  great detail earlier in this assessment.'*!

® In the 1205 report, General Quang states, “Shortly, we will release several
POWs in order to put pressure on the Nixon administration, observe his.
reaction, and the reaction of the American public, as well as to demonstrate
our good intentions in this matter.” Again, this statement is factually
accurate. On September 2, 1972, North Vietnam’s General Political
Directorate of the VPA!*? announced that three US POWSs would be freed “as

"% Interim Analysis of the 1205 Report, with referenced documentation, presented to
Ambassador Malcolm Toon by Senator Bob Smith, dated July 21, 1993, (see pages 44-50). (U)

13! See Critical Assessment of “Key Judgments”; concerning the 735 report:

SECKE B
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a sign of gratitude to that part of the progressive American public which has
been calling for an immediate end to US aggression in Vietnam.” That same
day, North Vietnam’s Ministry of Foreign Affairs issued a statement saying
“North Vietnam will hand over the released pilots to a U.S. social
‘organization animated with good will..."**” The three US POWs were not
actually released until September 25, 1972 when they were turmed over to
American anti-war activist Cora Weiss and her delegation. They departed
Hanot on September 26, 1972. This was the first release of US POWs by
Hanoi in over three years (1969). (U)

° In the 1205 report, General Quang states the among the captured American
aviators are “three astronauts: that is, three people who have completed the
necessary training for space flight.” There is evidence to support this
statement. For instance, on February 11, 1965, Lt. Cmdr. Robert Shumacher,
USN, had been shot down and captured over North Vietnam. A communist
Vietnam News Agency release at the time had stated that Commander
Schumacher “had been selected to be an astronaut.'>*” Moreover, the
Romanian Defense Attaché in Hanoi reported to the Intelligence Community
in February, 1972 that he had met Shumacher whom the North Vietnamese
described as “having been selected to be an astronaut prior to his capture.”™
Two, possibly three, additional US POWs had also gone through astronaut
training in the United States prior to their capture in North Vietnam."*® Based
on these facts, it is certainly plausible for the 1205 report to state that three

' Central Intelligence Agency Memorandum, Subject: Observations of a
on the Release of American POWs, dated September 7, 1972

134 See P.O.W., by John Hubbel, Reader’s Digest Press, 1976. (U)

15 U.S. Defense Attaché Office Morocco message to CIA, DIA, JCS..., Subject: US POW in
Hanoi, dated February 4, 1972. (Note: Romanian DATT referenced was interviewed by JCSD in
May, 1998, and confirmed this account.) (U)

"8 Interitn Analysis by Sen. Bob Smith, p. 43-44, dated July 21, 1993, and Memorandum for
Record, Office of Senator Bob Smith, dated September 1, 1998. (U)
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people who had completed “the necessary training for space ﬂight”.‘;;i/ere
among those captured in North Vietnam. (U) -

In the 1205 report, General Quang states that among the captured American
aviators are “15 US Air Force aces having more than 4,000 flight hours
each.” Again, it is factually accurate that there were several USAF pilot -
“aces” shot down and captured over North Vietnam — two of whom (Jim
Kasler and Robbie Risner) had been on the cover of Time Magazine with
profiles of their career background prior to their capture, (U)

In the 1205 report, the names of four US POWs are specifically mentioned
(Russian versions of American names as rendered from Vietnamese).
According to the Defense Intelligence Agency, “two of the four named
Americans are identifiable returned POWs. A third is a possible
identification (also a returned POW), and the fourth name is too badly garbled
to identify.'*”” The badly garbled name “Jim Intist Shasht,” is believed to
possibly correlate, at least phonetically, to “Jim Hiteshew,” an Air Force
colonel shot down over North Vletnam in 1967 who returned alive in 197

U)

3. 138

In the 1205 report, General Quang states “We intend to resolve the American
POW issue in the following manner: The US Government must:demonstrate
compliance, that is, a cease-fire and the removal of Nguyen Van Thieu, and -
then both sides can begin discussing the matter of returning POWs to the °
Nixon government...Nixon must (also) compensate North Vietnam for the
great damage inflicted on it by this destructive war. Here then are the
principles on the basis of which we may resolve the American POW issue.”

"7 Defense Intelligence Agency memorandum, Subj: Vletnamese POW/MIA Document from
Russian Archives, dated April 12, 1993, signed by Director, Defense Intelligence Agency Speclal
Office for Prisoners of War and Missing in Action. (U)

B8 An Interim Analysis of the 1205 Document - Report to Ambassador Malfcolm Toon,
US/Russia Joint Commission on POW/MIAs, by Sen. Bob Smith, dated July 21, 1993, p. 44. (U)
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3000105




C06548527

SWT.

As already-demonstrated by the comments made by Hem;y Kissinger, this
was, indeed, the North Vietnamese negotiating position as of September,
1972. Moreover, the Central Intelligence Agency had itself verified Hanoi’s
intentions.in its POW negotiating strategy, (as described in the 1205 report),
in the summer of 1971.'* Additional testimony and documentation supports
the accuracy of Quang’s reported statement. (U) For example —

e.  On August 18, 1972, Kissinger, in reporting on his August discussions
with North Vietnamese officials, told South Vietnamese President Thieu,
“They (the North Vietnamese) think they can use the pnsoners of war to
overthrow you 10> ().

® A former member of the U.S. negotiating team in Paris (1969-1971),
Philip Habib, has testified “...in one of the first lists of negotiating points put
forward by the North Vietnamese, the Communist side bracketed the release
of pnsoners with what they described as ‘US responsibility for war damage in
Vietnam’ in a single numbered point...I know of no instance in which an
adversary so openly treated this humanitarian problem in this way. We
recognized from an early, date what we were up against.'*'” (U)

% A Central Intelligence Agency, Directorate of Intelligence Memorandum, entitled Hanoi
and US Prisoners of War, and dated June 28, 1971, stated, in part: “To understand Hanoi’s
approach to the question of prisoners of war, one should keep in mind the broader military and
political issues the Communists insist must be resolved to their satisfaction before the prisoners
can be released. Hanoi still insists on termination of American involvement in Vietnam, and end
to Communist government in South Vietnam, and the establishment of a new regime affording th.e
Communists-a solid position from which to work toward full control of the South and
reuniﬁcation of all Vietnam.” (U)

140 Declassxﬁed NSC Transcript of Meetmg between Klssmger and Thieu, dated August 18,
1972. (U)

! Testimony of Philip Habib, Under Secretary of State, before House Select Committee on
Missing Persons, dated July 21, 1976. (U)
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On September 26, 1972, Kissinger sought assurances from Le Duc Tho

that “all American prisoners held in Indochina will be returned as a result of
an agreement.” Le Duc Tho responded, stating “Regarding the question of
prisoners of war...if you satisfactorily solve the political question and the
question of reparations, then we can find-an understanding.'**” (U) -

In a 1992 Senate deposition with Ambassador Vernon Walters, who -

served as defense attaché in Paris during many of the secret US-DRV
negotiations, the following exc‘hange took place:

Q: Was there ever any effort by the North Vietnamese that you were aware of 1o
link the subject of our payments to them with the release of our prisoners? .

A: Reparations were sine qua non for peace, return the pnsoners Jor evetylhmg
Q: From the North Viethamese perspective yau mean?

A: Yes.

Q: So there''s no question lhat Dr Krssmger was aware of the North Vrelnamese

"~ desire lo link reparations with the release of US prtsoners7

A: Not in my mind.

Q: And you say that because you saw Dr. Kissinger discussing the .subject with
the North Vietnamese? . -

A: I was franslating what he was saymg into French and they were translating

back what lhey were saymg into English.'” (U)

As referenced earher in this assessment, in a wartrme report ongmated
by the Soviet Ambassador in Hanoi, 1.S. Scherbakov; and’ entitled,
“Soviet-Vietnamese Negotiations in April, 1967,” the Soviet
Ambassador advised his North Vietnamese counterparts ‘it is not
necessary to inform the Americans on the exact number of | pnsoners

: A half of rhem could be handed over and the orhers -could. be released

000108

2 Declassified NSC Memorandum of Conversatron between Krssmger and Le Duc Tho dated
September 26, 1972, (U) . ' :

**'Deposition of Vernon Walters, taken- by the Senate Select Comrmttee on POW/MIA i
Affairs, on Septemberl 1992 p. 33 34, (U) o
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later in exchange for repair of damage inflicted by the u.s.

bombardment of the DRV.” (U)

o Several additional Central Intelligence Agency and other reports and
analyses disseminated prior to and well after (even years after)
Operation Homecoming in 1973 indicated that North Vietnam was
holding additional U.S. POWs or using the POW/MIA issue as a
“bargaining chip” for negotiating purposes with the United States, and
that it fully expected war reparations — all of which adds additional

plausibility to the policy referenced by General Quamg 14 LS)/ (b)(1)
(b)(3) NatSecAct

'** Intelligence Community reporting and analysis in support of the contentnon that therp was a
relationship between the release of US POWs and payment of war reparations for DRV
reconstruction is too voluminous to list here, but they include, as examples only, — Memorandum
from Director of Central Intelligence Schlesinger to National Security Advisor Kissinger, Subject:
Indication that the Communists arc holding previously unlisted US POWSs as a future bargainin

too! to obtain additional concessions from the United States, dated March 20, 1973;

Memorandum for National Security Advisor Anthony Lake from National

‘Intelligence Officer for East Asia (NIC/CIA), indicating it was “possible” Hanoi held back US

POWSs in 1973, and was angry reparations from the U.S. had not been forthcoming, dated
December 13, 1993. Additional reporting that Hanoi was expecting war reparations from the .
U.S. as part of a tentative agreement reached in October, 1972 can be found in Vietnam
Documents and Research Notes, #108, November, 1972, p. 26, and #109, p. 32, 34, 39, and 41.
Following the signing of the final accords in January, 1973, and in the 25 years that followed,
there is extensive and continuous reporting in FBIS files, other press reports, and in closed-door
US-Vietnam negotiations, wherein Hanoi repeatedly has called on the U.S. to implement Article
21 of the Accords (wherein the US pledged to help rebuild North Vietnam), and President
Nixon’s specific pledge to DRV Premier Pham Van Dong in February, 1973 to contribute up to
$4.75 billion in economic reconstruction of the North ($3.25 billion in reconstruction aid, plus up
to 1.5 billion in “other forms of aid”) — all of which indicated Hanoi having linked that issue to
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In addition to these examples, there are other plausible statements concerning
American POWs referenced by General Quang in the 1205 report, to include
comments about technical and weapons information obtained through interrogations
of U.S. POWSs, which even Russian officials have verified receiving from their
North Vietnamese counterparts during the war. (U)

Based on all of the above, it is clear that the NIE has seriously misled its readership
by failing to point out information which tends to corroborate “the content of the

their cooperation on U.S. POW/MIA accounting. Again, while the reporting is too volurinous to
detail here, a few examples to illustrate this widely understood point include the following — The

.Washington Post Editorial Page cartoon, April 7, 1973, p. A18, (shows NVN official dragging
" US POW in front of President Nixon, declaring, “That’s the last of the prisoners...now, where’s

1ll the money to rebuild North Vietnam,”); Memorandum to Secretary of State Henry Kissinger
from Under Secretary of State Philip Habib, November 13, 1976, Re: Meeting with the

. Vietnamese, November 12, “...The Vietnamese representative stuck to the standard Hanoi linkage

of the MIA question with our obligation to provide aid...” The meeting was described in a French
AFP press report as “the first face-to-face talks since the 1973 Vietnam peace negotiations”
(AFP, Paris, November 12, 1976); Final Report of the House Select Committee on Missing-
Persons, December, 1976, p. 4, “...The Socialist Republic of Vietnam has called for selective
implementation of the Paris Peace Agreement, specifically Article 21 dealing with American
reconstruction aid to Vietnam, in exchange for POW/MIA information under Article 8b.”;
Defense Intelligence Agency Task Force (the “Tighe Report) Examination, May 27, 1986,
“...Vietnam is waging a war of politics using the POW/MIA issue as the leverage for compelling
the US to pay a blood debt.”; Analysis Report by FBIS, Vietnam: Toughened Stance on MIA
Issue, July 20, 1987, “...Hanoi has toughened its line on the question of American servicemen
missing in action during the Vietnam war, reviving its pre-1978 hard line linking resolution of the
question to a U.S. aid commitment under the Paris Peace Accords.”; Kyodo News Service,

Hanoi, July 26, 1997, “a former top-leader of the Vietnamese Communist Party, and current
advisor to the Party, Nguyen Van Linh, cited the accounting of American soldiers as missing in
action as a prominent case of inequality in international relations — ‘The Vietnamese government
lets the US comb any place where its troops were stationed...(but) they promised to pay more
than 3 billion dollars, and have for more than 20 years now not paid-a single cent...’Linh said.
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1205 report” with respéct to the POW issue and the other issues previously noted.
£8) T
NIE STATEMENT: “If there were additional POWs, we would have known of
them unless Vietnam maintained a separate prison
system unknown to POWs who returned in 1973. We
have uncovered no reliable evidence that a separate
prison system existed for certain POWs; nor do we have
such indicators as plausible site locations." (p.30) (SJ
ASSESSMENT:

In addition to ignoring the views of former senior US officials referenced earlier in
this assessment, this' NIE statement also ignores undisputed evidence that some of
the returned US POWs only became aware of each other by virtue of the North
Vietnamese forces bringing them together in the weeks before Operation

' Homecommg began in February, 1973 — even though some had been held together
in the same prison system. We would not have known about these POWs had the
North Vietnamese not decided to consolidate them with the other returning
POWSs." This point was further documented in a post-Homecoming Defense

" During a hearing of the Senate Select Committee on POW/MIA Affairs on December 3,
1992, the senior returned POW from the Hanoi prison system in North Vietnam, Admiral James
Stockdale, testified that “we learned that in *71 they (NVN) started bringing in lots of people we
didn’t know about, Army and Marine people, ground soldiers, and some helicopter pilots, but
there was never any mixing of the two until the whistle blew and we all came home.” Stockdale
further testified about the existence of 4 USAF pilots from Laos who were brought to a Hanoi-
area prison camp (nicknamed “the plantation”) in early 71, stating “we never had an interchange
of names with them, and we never saw any of them until the whole bunch was released.”
Stockdale also pointed out to the Senate committee that he “does not claim iron-clad 100 percent
accountabﬂlty for anybody outside the 351" previously acknowledged POWSs held in the Hanoi
prison system and subsequently released in 1973. (U)
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Intelligence Agency study, entitled PW Camps in North Vieinam,'*® and a Defense

- Intelligence Agency Intelligence Appraisal, entitled A Summary of Prisoner-of War

Iixperience in Southeast Asia, a Briefing'”’, and it was again amply demonstrated in
z Senate hearing exchange between U.S. Senator John Kerry and the Director of the .
Defense Intelligence Agency’s POW/MIA Office, Robert Sheetz, on August 4,

- 1992:

Sen. Kerry: There were groups of prisoners brought together for the.release who only
learned of each other beirig alive by virtue of the process of being brought iogether, .
correct?
Mpr. Sheelz: There were prisoners thal were consolldated toward the end. )
Sen. Kerry: And some were held in d _[ferent locations, perhaps 10 people in ane Iocatron
-Is that not accurate? .

Mr. Sheetz: That is correct. ‘ -
Sen. Kerry: ...Is it not possible, however, that a whole group of 10 held samewhere were:
never brought back to the main group and therefore held back in some other
circumstances?
Mr. Sheetz: That is possi ble
Sen. Kerry: So, the mere fact of debriefings not showing that somebady was not
accounted for does not in and of itself dispose at all of the notion that somebody else

- conld have been held elsewhere? . : :
Mr. Sheetz: That's true...”® (U)

Thus, it is clear that the North Vremamese ‘had the capabnhty to kecp some

"¢ Defense lntellrgence Agency study, entitled PW Camps in North Vletnam dated 1973. As”
further confirmation of the above-mentioned argument the study indicates that “the period from
" 968 to 1972 was marked by the movement of US POWs from South Vietnam and Laos into
North Vietnam for detention. With few exceptions, the personnel moved into North Vletnam
were kept separated from the men actually captured in North Vietnam.” (U')

"*? The réferenced DIA study is dated May 8, 1973, and was pubhshed by the Deputy Drrector
for Intelhgence DIA (uy,

8 Hearing of the Seriate Select Committee on POW/MIA Aﬂ'arrs ‘dated: August 4, 1992
Also referenced in Inlermr Analyszs of the 1205 Report by Sen. Bob Smith, dated July 21 1993
U) .
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unacknowledged US POWSs within the same prison system as the acknowledged US
POWs-(approx.-350 as of Sept. 72), and we would not have khown about those
POWs if-the North Vietnamese had not decided to repatriate them. Moreover, it is
also clear that the North Vietnamese went to considerable lengths to prevent even
the acknowledged US POWs from learning about each other in the course of late
night sudden movements of these personnel between camps.'® (U)

But even more egregious is the NIE statement above that there were no indicators of

‘plausible site locations for other possible US POW prisons unknown to the POWs

who returned in 1973 (ie: a separate or second prison system). While it is true that
rrepamated POWs. were only aware of those within their system, the NIE judgment.
is nonetheless contradicted by substantial information and evaluations originated by
or made available to the U.S. Intelligence Community both during and/or after the
Vietnam War. For example —

e Defense Intelligence Agency estimate: In the 1205 report, General Quang
states that there are currently (as of Sept. 15, 1972) 11 prisons in North
Vietnam where; all the American POWs are being held. DIA knew from the
debriefings of US POWSs who returned in 1973, that as of September, 1972,
there were 6 prisons in North Vietnam holding the US POWs who were later
repatriated.'>’ Usmg the estabhshed fact that, in September 1972, 6 camps

9 See The Raid, by Benjamin F. Schemmer, 1976, p. 17, “It was a scary thmg for the POWs5
being moved to another camp, usually at night, always on short notice...the guards blindfolded
them...guards were put between groups of POWs to make sure no one lifted a blindfold or talked.

The North Vietnamese didn’t want them to see who the other prisoners were, or where they were
headed.” (1))

'** The nicknames given by the returned POWs for these 6 camps were the Hanoi Hilton, the
Zoo, Plantation, Dogpatch, Mountain Camp, and Rockpile. (See DIA 1973 PW Camp Study). It
also should be noted that the Intelligence Community only learned the exact number after North
Vietnam released the acknowledged POWs in 1973. Indeed, as of September 4, 1972 (five
‘months prior to Homecoming), DIA estimated that only 4 of the “confirmed” US POW camps in
North Vietnam were estimated to be “probably” or “possibly” holding US POWs as of
* September, 1972. (U) '
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held subsequently repatriated US POWs, that leaves 5 additional prisons in
the North for General Quang’s number of total camps to be accurate (ie: 11-
6=5). As of September, 1972, DIA had identified, in a published study, a
total of 8 confirmed US POW camps in North Vietnam, and an additional 18
possible US POW camps in North Vietnam. A “confirmed” camp was
defined as “one in which there is conclusive evidence that American prisoners
are, or were, detailed on a permanent basis.” A “possible” camp was defined
as “one in which there is some information or evidence that it might be, or
could have been, used for the detention of American prisoners on a permanent
basis.”"®! Accordingly, based on the fact that DIA had identified 26 (8+18)
confirmed or possible US POW camps in North Vietnam, as of September
1972, it is demonstrably inaccurate.for the NIE to claim that the Intelligence-
Community had uncovered “no such indicdtors as plaus:ble -site locations”

for 5 additional prisons for US POWs (1 1-6) as of the date of the 1205 report
(Sept 72) ((5)] ;

o (‘enlral Intellcgence Agency study A CIA study, conducted in response to
recent human source reporting on American POWs still in North Vietnam,”
and disseminated in early 1976, concluded that “the possibility of a second -
prison system for the detention of American POWs in North Vietnam cannot
be disregarded.” CIA further concluded, based on the results of this study,
that it was “precluded from drawing a firm conclusion that-all the camps
which held American POWs have been identified.” The CIA study included
“a comparative analysis of six confirmed American POW:camps outside of
the Hanoi area with 19 other suspect camps-not known.to have contained
Americans in-order to determine which camps reacted to the (November 21,
1970) Son Tay raid by constructing new defensive positions such as AAA

- sites, AW positions, trenching and/or foxholes.” CIA determined, based on
- photography and debriefings of the POW returnees, that the 6 confirmed US

51 Defense Iﬁtelligepce Agency study, entitled Prisoner of War Camps in North Vietnam,
dated November, 1972, (Note::While the study itself is dated November, ‘1972, the actual date of.
the most current information used in this study is listed as September 4, 1972) (U)
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POW camps used in the study had all reacted to the raid in the same manner.

. But, more importantly, CIA determined that 7 of the other»19 camps-used ir:

the study-had-also reacted similarly to the raid by taking the referenced
precautionary defensive measures, while the remaining camps had not reactzd
in a discemible fashion:to defend against any additional US efforts to free US
POW:s from camps in:the North.' (U)

Central Inlellzgence Agency memorandum A CIA memorandum, entitled
“Re-evaluation of PW/MIA Information,” was prepared for the Director of
Central Intelligence, and sent to him via the Deputy Director for Operations,
-on August 13, 1976. In the- memorandum, CIA analysts outlined -
“information that can be interpreted as indicating a probability that there are

+still American PWs-alive in North Vietnam.” The information, further

described as “not an exhaustive list,” included reference to (1) at least one
suspect detention camp for American PWs which had immediately reacted to
the November, 1970 Son Tay raid, yet none of the repatriated PWs had been
held there; (2) several sources reported seeing American PWs working on the
main bridge dcross the Red River at Hanoi. None of the returned PWs had
ever worked on‘the bridge, according to the debriefings; (3) ...several reports
indicating that various North Vietnamese and South Vietnamese communist
officials have stated that there are still American PWs alive in North Vietnam.
Not all of these reports have been brought to the attention of the (House)
Select Committee (on Missing Persons); (4) repatriated PWs identified a
number of cases in which pilots had been seen on the ground in what
appeared to be captivity, but were never again seen and were not accounted
for by the North. Vietnamese; (5) a captured North Vietnamese official, most

_of whose. information was highly accurate, indicated that North Vietnamese

000115

132 Central Intelligence Agency PW Camp Study, dated 1976, obtained from Defense
Intelligence Agency PW/MIA intelligence records forwarded to the National Archives on May <,
1984, and subsequently declassified and forwarded to Sen. Bob Smith by the Acting Deputy
Director (POW/MIA Affairs), Office of the Assistant Secretary of Defense, dated November 12,
1993, (U)
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officials would hold some American PWs completely out of public view and
not return them; and (6) two additional reports to support the probability of
unacknowledged American PWs from North Vietnam not released in 1973.1%
Once again, this information contradicts the NIE contention that “if there
were additional POWs, we would have known of them...” {8)

The discrepancy of US POWs related to the Son Tay POW Camp Raid.
According to several U.S. intelligence reports, testimony of former US
officials, interviews with Russian officials, and even statements by
Vietnamese officials, US POWs had been moved from the Son Tay prison
camp in North Vietnam approximately 10 days to one month prior to the
failed US rescue attempt on November 21, 1970, because the North
Viethamese had learned about the forthcoming raid and a foreign journalist
or peace activist had visited the camp. US intelligence and defense officials
had suspected that US POWSs were still present at the camp in November,
1970 prior to launching the raid. However, those US POWs repatriated in
1973 who had been held at Son Tay in 1970 had been moved out of the camp
on July 14, 1970 — four and % months prior to the raid — in a routine

" move, also attributed to potential flooding at the Son Tay camp in July, 1970.

This serious discrepancy suggests other US POWs, not repatriated in 1973,
had been moved in and out of the Son Tay camp after July 114“‘ and prior to
November 2189 (W)

Other Ceniral Intelligence Agency and Defense Intelligence Agency
reporting: Although this can hardly be considered an exhaustive listing, there
are other unexplained IC reports which lend credibility to the existence of
other US POWs and/or US POW camps in North Vietnam during the war,
such as: (1) CIA 240202Z Jul 82, Subject: Organization and Inmates of Tan

- Lap Prison, Vinh Phu Province (North Vietnam), “former detention site for

US POWs...Long-held inmates noted that up to 1973; American prisoners had

"3 Memorandum for Director of Central Intelligence, Subject: Re—evaluatlon of PW/MIA
Information, dated August 13,-1976. (U)
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been interned at this prison.” Note: No repatriated US POWs were held there
at this facility; (2) see Defense Intelligence Agency 15-Volume Study and
Report of Uncorrelated Information Relating to Missing Americans in
Southeast Asia, dated December 15, 1978; (3) see Defense Intelligence
Agency Task Force Examination of PW/MIA Analysis, submitted by Lt. Gen.
Eugene Tighe, USAF-ret., former Director, Defense Intelligence Agency,
dated May 27, 1986; and (4) see Defense Intelligence Agency (or DPMO)
database index of HUMINT reporting on POW/MIA in Southeast Asia,
broken down by originating agency. All of these reports are not “resolved.”

L

NIE STATEMENT: “The 1,205 figure is inconsistent with our understanding
' : of how many Americans survived the events in which they
became lost to become captives...The number of
Americans whose fales are uncertain (on the priority
case list) has been reduced to 48.” (p.30)

ASSESSMENT:

As referenced earlier in this assessment (see discussion of chart on p. 19 of NIE),
the number of Americans whose fate is still uncertain in 1998, using the NIE’s owrn:
figures, is at least 370, of which 48 are priority cases. However, the priority case
list, first developed by Presidential POW/MIA Emissary to Hanoi, General John
Vessey, has always been a listing of cases where survival was suspected based on
information obtained by the United States and subsequently reflected in U.S.
POW/MIA case files maintained by DoD. It was never intended to be the end-all
list of the only cases where an American might have survived his incident to become
captured, simply because it was recognized by General Vessey and U.S. intelligenc:e
officials that the Vietnamese could very likely have information on those MIA cases
where the U.S. had no information to suggest death or survival. The NIE misleads
its reader by not clarifying the genesis of the so-called “priority case list” in the
above statement, in addition to not referencing the 370 figure and pointing out again

_ SECRET
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that the 1,205 figure included over 500 subsequently repatriated US POWS"‘» as well.

)
NIE STATEMENT: “Circumstantial evidence suggests the information in the
(“735") report™ is inaccurate.” (p. 30}48)
ASSESSMENT:

While the NIE presents evidence to “suggest the information in the 735 report is
inaccurate, no where in the NIE is there a similar presentation of evidence that
suggesls information in the 735 report is accurate. This is a serious shortcoming in
the NIE, and is especially disturbing in view of the NIE’s acknowledgment that,

- while only two pages of the report (which referenced US POWs) were available to

the IC in 1993, there are now over 27 pages of the remainder of the report available
to the IC which had never been formally assessed by the Community. Included in
these additional 27 pages of text are an extensive report outlining North Vietnamese

" political, military, and diplomatic developments throughout the year 1970 and

related plans for 1971. Among these general topics are specific comments
concerning —

the situation within the Vietnamese Workers’ (Communist) Party.
the restoration of Party unity.

 the foreign policy and diplomatic strategy of the Party.
an overview of military personnel losses.
the U.S. incursion into Cambodia in April, 1970.
a detailed discussion of the military and political situation in both
Cambodia and Laos.

e © ® & ©® ©

"% As noted earlier in this assessment, the “735” report is so named by US officials because in
the text of this 1971 29-page Russian translation of a North Vietnamese report, there is one
sentence that refers to 735. American fliers having been captured in the DRV, whlle only 368 had
been publicly acknowledged as a dtplomatlc move.
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U.S. efforts to achieve “Vietnamization” in the South pamcularly in
the Mekong River Valley.

military successes and losses, to include the dlsruptlon of the
Communist transportation system on Cambodian territory which is
reported to have adversely affected the supplying of communist troops
in South Vietnam. '
the opening of a new supply route in the area of the Chiong Shon
Mountains in central Vietnam.

military plans in the South, including troop deployment plans.

the continued deployment of NVN forces on land through Laos.

the amount of weapons, ammunition, military hardware, and food
deployed to the fronts in South Vietnam, Cambodia, and Laos.

the need for literature and art to play an enormous propagandistic and
educational role in support of the war effort.

Again, no where in the NIE is there an assessment of the accuracy of the matters

_ outlined above. More importantly, there would appear to be evidence to confirm the
historical accuracy, from the communist perspective, of many of the subjects above
which are outlined in the text of the 735 report. - As such; the NIE judgment
referenced above is misleading, incomplete, and, taken as a whole, inaccurate.

NIE STATEMENT: “The dates are wrong. The (735) report says it was

given at the 20" plenary session of the Central
Committee in late December, 1970 or early January,
1971. In fact, the 20™ Plenum was not held until
February, 1972. The plenum held in January, 1971 was
the 19".” (p.30) “...the materials in the FBIS collection
of published material (indicate) the 19" Plenum was held
in December, 1970-January, 1971 (the communiqué was
issued on | February) and the 20" Plenum was held in
March-April, 1972 (the communiqué was released on 10
April, 1972,)...Clearly, either the date or the plenum

SECRET
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number given in the report is wrong.” (p.40) ...
“Collection Gaps:...We think a more thorough
assessment of the...735 document would be facilitated
by...greater information about the Vietnamese party
z?wture in the early 1970s, how it operated...” (p.42)
) . '

ASSESSMENT:

The NIE has not demonstrated, with the statements above, that the dates given for
the 735 report are “wrong.” It has only demonstrated that the date given by the
Russian GRU for the 735 report is inconsistent with information currently available
to the U.S. Intelligence Community, which appears to be based on vague communist
broadcasts or publications, not internal Party documents. This is an important
distinction given the NIE’s admission of a serious intelligence collection gap
concerning information about the internal workings of the Vietnamese Communist
Party and its structure in the early 1970s, which precludes, again by its own

- admission, “a more thorough assessment.” (S

Even the NIE contradicts itself in the abdve statements — first saying the 20™
Plenum took place in February, 1972, then saying it took place between March-
April, 1972. €5) - .

The NIE’s judgment is further undermined by the following information which
should have been brought to its readers’ attentlon/(S’)/ — .

® The 18" Plenum of the Central Committee of the Vietnam Workers
(Communist) Party, according to a 1980 publication by the Vietnamese
Army paper, Quan doi Nhan dan'®, took place in January, 1970, a full

53 The title of the actual publication was Cuoc Khang chien Chong My Cuu nuoc, 1965-1975;
Nhung Su kien Quan-su (The Anti-U.S. war of national salvation, 1965-1975; Military events), p.
203-207, as referenced in-Communist Road 1o Power, Duiker, 1996, p. 306-307. (U)
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year prior to.the date given for the meeting reported on in the 735
feport. Yet, according to the Statute-of the Vietnam’§*Workers Party,
adopted in 1960, the Central Committee was to “usually meet once
every six months."**” This meeting schedule was confirmed inan .
interview by US officials with the reported 735 author, Hoang Anh, in
Hanoi, earlier this year, who indicated, at two different points, that the
Central Committee conducted semi-annual meetings, and that Anh
presented oral semi-annual and annual reports at these sessions in the
early 1970's.""" Under that scheduling scenario, a 20™ meeting could
have taken place in January; 1971, with the 19" meeting having

- occurred eailier in the prior summer months, possibly to coincide with

. the 10" anniversary of the Third Party Congress (September, 1960).

- ()

e Itis interesting to note that the 735 report scenario — that the 20™
Central Committee meeting took place at the end of December, 1970
—is consistent with the 1205 report scenario — that the 23™ meeting
had already taken place by September 15, 1972. Indeed, based on six
month time-frames, a 23" meeting could have occurred in June/July,
1972, and there is, indeed, evidence from the Russia GRU of a report
to the Politburo of the Central Committee of the Party having been
presented on June 26. 1972:(U). Again, the NIE is silent on this
evidence (8).

® According to the translated text of the 735 report, Anh makes clear
several times in his report that he is discussing “the basic features of
our activities in 1970, over the period that extends from the 18™

= AT e

1% Vietnam Documents and Research Notes, #103, The Structure of Power' in the DRV:
Constitution and Party Statute, p.16, February, 1972, American Embassy, Saigon (JUSPAO). (U)

ez v

57 See Interview of Hoang Anh by U.S. Ambassador to Vietnam, Pete Peterson, p.3-4 (DIA
P 270934Z Jul 98). (U)
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Plenary Session of the Central Committee of the Vietnam Workers
Party (CC VWP) until now.” (As noted above, the referenced 18"
Plenum had indeed taken place in 1970 - in January of that year -
which the NIE fails to note - a fact which contradicts its judgment that
the “dates™ given in the 735 report are “wrong. ”) Anh further states,

“at this Plenary session, an assessment will be given of our victories in
1970...At the 18" 19" and now at the 20" Plenary sessions of the CC
VWP, repeated emphasis was placed...”. Anh goes on to report in great
and extensive detail a summation of activities that had taken place in
1970 as well as a discussion of forthcoming communist and perceived
enemy plans for 1971, He further discusses events that had already
taken place at the “19™ Plenum. Thus, there is no wiggle room for the
time-frame of the report, or that it might have been the 19" meeting,
according to the GRU acquisition — it clearly took place at the end of
1970, begmmng of 1971 /(S*) _ :

® All that is cun'ently knowm about thc time-frame of the 19“‘ Plenum
appears to be based on the Communiqué of the 19" Plenary Session of
the Central Committee of the Vietnam Workers Party which was

“broadcast by the Vietnam News Agency in Hanoi on February 1, 1971,
and referenced in two editorials in Party papers during the next two
days, all of which was thought to have been done to ¢oincide with the
41* Anniversary of the Founding of the Indochinese Cominunist Party,
the VWP’s predecessor organization, on February 3, 1930, by Ho Chi
Minh."*® The timing of the publication of the communiqué is.not, in
and of itself, proof that the 19™ Plenum actually took place during the
time-frame given by the GRU for the 735 report (“End of December,
1970/Early January, 1971). Indeed, there is evidence that
communiqués were often not published until months aftérthe”.
. conclus:on of the plenary meetings. For example scholars have ‘

8 Vietnam Documents and Research Notes #91, the 19" Plenary Sessnon of the Cefitral- -
Committee of the Viet-Nam Workers Party and its Reference Documents, p.1-27. (U) ' -
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reported that the 15" Central Committee Party Plenum, related to the
2" Congress, “took place in January, 1959, even though the
communiqué was not broadcast by the Vlemam News Agency until
May 13, 1959.%°" (U)

There is no verifiable evidence that the “19% Plenum” was held at the
end of “December, 1970 — the date given by the Russian GRU — as
the NIE attempts to assert on p.40. However, there is evidence from
the Central Intelligence Agency dated December, 1970 (inexplicably
not referenced in this NIE), of a “possible high-level DRV meeting in
Hanoi.'®™” (SY

Finally, there is considerable confusion, and contradictions, in the
absence of official internal Party records from Hanoi, about the dates
of Central Committee Party Plenums in the early 1970s which
precludes relying on the NIE’s judgment that the dates reported by
Russian military intelligence (GRU), — which plausibly had better
internal access to the truth — , are wrong. This argument is reinforced
by the NIE’s own admission of its serious intelligence collection gap in
this area. As additional examples, the 21® Plenum, according to some
reports, including publications from Hanoi, took place in October,
1973, yet other publications from Hanoi indicate the 22" Plenum took
place “in late 1973,” while still other Vietnamese officials have

- reported that the Central Military Affairs Committee met in March,

000123

1% See The Communist Road to Power in Vietnam, Duiker, 2™ Edition, 1996, p.400, fn#35.
)

1" Memorandum for the Record, 22 December, 1970, Subject: Meeting of the NSC Ad Hoc
Group on Vietnam, see para. 4, “Possible High-Level DRV Meeting in Hanoi: Mr. Carver from
CIA noted that DRV Ambassadors to Moscow and Peiking, three NLF representatives to the
Scandinavian countries and certain other senior DRV diplomats in Europe are converging on
Hanoi in the next few days. Increased intelligence watches for possible results of such a meeting
are being instituted. No output is expected before the first of the year.” (U)
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1974 to consider the resolutions of the 21% Plenum. If the 21* Plenum

. was indeed in late 73/early 74, it makes the NIE’s earlier claim that the
20"™ Plenum took place as early as February, 1972 even stranger (ie: no
Central Committee plenum meetings for over 21 months?). Also, as
noted earlier, even the dates for the exact month that the 20™ Plenum
took place, allegedly in 1972 according to US analysts, ar¢ in dispute,
casting further doubt on the reliability of the NIE’s judgment. Some
analysts say April, others say February, and the NIE itself says
February, and later, reverses itself and says March-April./(Sﬁ

NIE STATEMENT: “Hodng Anh was indeed a Secretary of the Central
Commiltee at that time and was responszble Jfor
agriculture... There is no reason why he would deliver a
report that deals extensively with political and military
developments and the situations in Laos and Cambodia.
Agriculture is mentioned only briefly.” (p.30) (S

ASSESSMENT'

Accordmg to U.S. biographic records and vanous commumst Vnetnamese e
documents (all previously available to the principal drafter of the NIE), Hoang Anh,
as noted, did indeed have the title of Central Committee Secretary of the '
Vietnamese Workers® (Communist/Lao Dong) Party in December, 1970/Jatiuary,
1971, as the Russian GRU correctly notes on its cover page to the 735 report. In
fact, the leadmg Communist Party publication in Hanoi, Nhan Dan, in a report dated
ane month prior to the alleged “735” report, referred to Anh as “Secretary of the
Lao Dong Party Central Committee.'®” (Interestingly, Anh sidestepped and then
denied having this title in interviews with US officials in April and July, 199862, N

1! Nhan Dan, Hanoi, November 17, 1970, p.1, translated by FBIS and US Embassy, Saigon.
‘U) .. P N TV . o - . . e e R T AR e TN -t

"2 In his first interview with US Ambassador to Vietnam, Pete Peterson, in Hanoi on April 6,
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while at the same time privately telling a Russian GRU official that he had been

* “reprimanded by the Vietnamese Communist Party because the Americans managed

to obtain a copy of the speech delivered by Anh (ie: the 735 report).”®*) (U)

However, the NIE fails to note that records also indicate Anh was assessed by the
U.S. Government in 1971 as “one of the most senior members of the Vietnam
Communist (Lao Dong/Workers') Party hierarchy short of Politburo
membership...with-broad-ranging political, military, and managerial

experience.'* (8Y

1998, Anh only referred to his Government ministerial position, and not his Party secretariat
position, stating “that the Ambassador should understand his role during the war years. As
Minister of Agriculture, he was responsible for food production and related industries...” Anh
further stated, “There was no night or day. There were very few opportunities to meet at the
Central Committee level. We were exhausted. I never had time to be involved with other matters.
1, myself, had no knowledge of POWs.” Anh stated “he left the position as Minister of
Agriculture in 1970, after which he worked on the consolidated report on agriculture until 1975.”
In his second interview with Ambassador Peterson on July 18, 1998, Anh was specifically pressed

" whether he had “ever held the position of Secretary of the Central Committee of the Vietnamese

Workers’ Party...” Anh replied, “At the end of 1970, I continued to serve the Central Committee:
as the Acting Secretary for Agricultural, Marine, and Fishery matters. Mr. Anh emphasized that
this was a specific, yet temporary duty assigned to him by the Central Committee, and rnot a
named or titled position, such as Secretary of the Central Committee” Anh further stated, “I
was never a permanent member of the Central Committee...I personally had no time for the
Central Committee.” (U)

'3 Memorandum for the Record, Subj: Private Meeting with (Russian Executive Secretary for
the Joint POW/MIA Commission) Colonel Osipov, dated August 10, 1998, Joint Commission
Support Directorate, DoD/USRIJC, “...Osipov claimed that Colonel Yuri A. Potapov, defense
attaché at the Russian Embassy in Hanoi for the past four years, told Osipov that he (Potapov)
knows Hoang Anh. Potapov was told by Anh that he was reprimanded by the Vietnamese
Communist Party because the Americans managed to obtain a copy of the speech delivered by
Anh (this is apparently a reference to the so-called “735 document.”)” (U)

1% Members of the VWP Central Committee, North Vietnam Affairs Division, JUSPAQ,
American Embassy Saigon, dated 1971. (U)
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He had been elevated to the rank of Deputy Prime Minister/Vice-Premier in

1970/71, serving as “the senior in age and political experience™ among the Vice-
Premiers serving on the Party Secretariat.'® Moreover, as a senior member of the
Secretariat and Central Committee member since the early 1950's, Anh held a very
influential position in the DRV leadership structure, having been referred to as one
of two individuals who “followed just behind the top leaders of the Party in status,™
holding the “greatest power and influence in North Vietnam” by virtue of occupying
“key posts within both Party and state.'®” (U)

As a further example of Anh’s influence as a veteran Secretariat member, a 1972

U.S. study states “the top of the power pyramid of North Vietnam is the Politburo
supported by the Party Secretariat, the center of second level leadership is the

Central Committee.'®” Additionally, the power of the Secretariat is confirmed by

the “Statute of the Vietnam Workers Party adopted by the Third Party Congress of

the Party in September, 1960,” which provides that “the Secretariat solves daily
problems and controls the carrying out of Party decisions under the leadership of the
Central Executive Committee and the Politburo.”'®® (U) - —_— {b)(3) NatSecAct

According to records, prior to 1970 (the
alleged date of the 735 report), Anh had been “a close associate of General Vo
Nguyen Giap” and served on the National Defense Council and as a Vice-Minister

%% See Memorandum (U) from Douglas Pike, (who is acknowledged in the NIE as a noted
expert and scholar on Vietnam (8)), dated December 22, 1995; and Vietnam Documents and
Research Notes, Bases of Power in the DRV, dated October, 1972. (U)

*%¢ Vietnam Documents and Research Notes, VWP-DRV Leadership, 1960 to 1971, Part II,
the Government, p.94, published by North Vietnam section, JUSPAQ, American Embassy,
Saigon, dated July, 1973, (U)

7 1bid, part I1.

¥ See Vietnam Documents and Research Notes, The Structure of Power in the DRV:
Constitution and Patty Statute, p. 17, published by the North Vietnam Affairs Division, Joint U.S.
Public Affairs Office (USPAQ), American Embassy, Saigon, dated February, 1972. (U) '
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of Defense for at least four years (the only person lacking formal military rank to

have held this title), during which time he reportedly planned the fartial

demobilization of the Vietnamese People’s Army (VPA). He also headed PAVN’s

General Directorate for Rear Services, preceded by a stint as a Deputy Chief of the

General Staff of the VPA. He had reportedly written a widely acclaimed treatise 'on

guerrilla warfare in 1951, and had been active in the early 1950's fighting in the

Resistance (Viet-Minh) war against the French, and concurrently serving as

Chairman of Interzone Committees IV and V in Central Vietnam,'® " (b)(3) NatSecAct

He is also reported in a dated December 22, 1976 as having been a
member of the Vietnamese Communist Party’s (Lao Dong/VWP) Central
Committee, in addition to serving on its Secretariat, from as far back as 1951, with
subsequent simultaneous membership on North Vietnam’s National Assembly s
Standing (Leadership Ruling) Committee, which wrote the Constitution for North
Vietnam during Anh’s tenure on the Committee, (was subsequently adopted in
1960.) His listing as a full member of the Party’s Central Committee is further
confirmed by open source accounts from the early 1970's'”°, even though Anh told

" US officials earlier this year that “I was never a permanent member of the Central

Commmittee...I personal]y had no time for the Central Committee.'”"”.(U)

J on Anh also show him serving as Minister of Finance fromn
November, 1958 until 1965 when he was appointed as Minister of Agriculture. (U)

While he did, therefore, have expertise and responsibility for agriculture (he had left

) "(b)(s) NatSecAct

000127

169

Mfmorandum dated May 3, 1997 from Douglas Pike, Vietnam-scholar, enclosing several

on Hoang Anh prepared in the 1960's and 1970's. (U)

'"® International Yearbook of Communist Affairs, 1970, Hoover Institution Press, Stanford

- University, and Vietnam Documents and Research Notes, Bases of Power in the DRV, dated

October, 1972, and published by the American Embassy, Saigon. (U)

""" Interview of Hoang Anh by US Ambassador to Vietnam, Pete Peterson, dated July 18,
1998 (Cable cite: DIA 270934Z July 98). (U)

SECRET
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the position of Minister of Agriculture “in 1970 according to an interview he gave
to US officials on April 6, 1998), Anh also clearly had expertise, authority, and
responsibility beyond agriculture as a senior veteran member of the Secretariat in
1970. He would have been amply qualified to address the range of agricultural,
economic, political, and military matters contained in the 735 report at a session of
the Central Committee by virtue of his background described above, especially his
tenure on the Secretariat scanning 20 years. Indeed, in 1965 and 1968, CIA had
assessed Anh as having had “experience in three different fields — defense, finance,
and agriculture,” making him “the type of multi-purpose specialist familiar in
Communist countries.” (U)

It is also conceivable that Anh may have been designated to present a report to the

Central Committee plenum covering the range of specified topics, with input being -

received from the other Secretaries of the Central Commxttee The NIE fails to
consider this scenario. /(S)/ ' ' :

‘Moreover, contrary to the NIE’s assertion above, agriculture is not “mentioned only

+ Driefly” in the text of the 735 report. In point of fact, Anh’s spirited defense of the -

DRV’s agricultural policies is one of the central topics of the 735 report with over
{3 paragraphs in the report’s text devoted to a detailed discussion of agnculture
policies, including an assessment of mistakes, criticisms, statistics, and goals which
are outlined by Anh: Given Anh’s background in agriculture, these facts lend
credence to the GRU acquisition being reliable8)~

NIE STATEMENT: "“The references to agriculture in the 735 (document) do
‘ .. nol square with other party documents.available at the
. time. For example, a review of party documents
avazlable in FBIS files reveal a significantly different
discussion of agricultural issues. Documents on
agriculture policy (probably connected to-the-19"
Plenum in January, 1971) that were revealed after the
" " war discuss the need 1o strengthen agricultural
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collectives that had been weakened by ihe need to
increase:wartime production...the 735 document does nct
discuss the adaptation of technology for agriculture. In
contrasl, Vice Minister of Agriculture, Le Trung Dinh,
authored an article in the party journal Hoc Tap in
January, 1971 stating that the principle issue facing
agriculture was the adaptation of technology. ” (p.30-31,

and ;41)/(5)’

ASSESSMENT:

The NIE statement is inaccurate and misleading. The NIE does not demonstrate
convincingly that the contents of the 735 report with respect to agricultural issues
“do not square” with other party documents available at the time. In point of fact,
Anh does discuss “the need to strengthen agricultural collectives™” and “the
adaptation of technology for agriculture” in the 735 report. For example, Anh states

&=

e “Marxism teaches that agricuitural collectivization is an extremely important condition
Jor the development of a socialist economy...in our couniry, where colonialists left us a
heritage of a backward economy, this matter is particularly important. With all our
effort, we must develop agriculture, placing it on a collective basis. It will be necessary
to develop a strong network of cooperatives in the entire territory of South Vietnam.”

® “The cooperatives need to be provided with technology, which will ensure they will
develop successfully.” :

o ' “Qur leadership is giving a great deal of attention to issués of cooperative farming, and
is continuing lo seek ways to boost agriculture...The Politburo and Secretariat have gives
instructions o scientific organizations fo actively participate in boosting agriculture.”

(V)

Additionally, there are obvious other statements in the Anh report concerning

- agriculture which-are confirmed by the historical record. For instance, Anh claims

the DRV would have had even more difficulties in 1970 “if it were not for the help
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from brotherly socialist countries, which permits us successfully to restore
agriculture.” According to the International Yearbook of Communist Affairs for
1970, (pubh'shed by the Hoover Institute at Stanford in 1971), “Failure to attain self-
sufficiency in agriculture...has forced the DRV to depend on the U. S S.R. and China
for its vital supplies.” (U)

NIE STATEMENT: “The report speaks extensively about preparations for
the 4" Party Congress, including the establishment of a
preparatory committee. In fact, the Politburo did not
decide when to hold the 4" Party Congress until July,
1975...The 4" Party Congress was not held until
December, 1976.” (p.31) (SY

ASSESSMENT:

Once ag,am the NIE’s judgment is not convincing and misleads the NIE reader. It
is also ironic to note the NIE’s use of the term ¢ extenszvely with respect to the 4™
Party Congress remarks in the 735 report, versus the term “mentioned only briefly”
with respect to agriculture. In point of fact, the discussion of agriculture in the 735
report is lengthier than the discussion of the 4™ Party Congress preparations.

More importantly, Anh specifically states in the text of the 735 report that the
Politburo would not decide when the 4™ Party Congress would be held until after
several specific matters had been discussed at the Plenary Session and specific
decisions had been made on them. Only then would the Politburo decide “when” to
hold the 4" Party Congress. He goes on to say “the issue of holding the 4" =~
Congress is extremely important, and we must prepare with the greatest care for it.
Every issue must be studied and discussed thoroughly.” Anh also states correctly,
that 10 years had passed since the 3™ Party Congress. 172 (§X

"2 The Third Nafional Party Congress was held in Hanoi from September 5 through
September 12, 1960. (U)
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The fact that the Politburo, in the end, waited until after the reunification of the
country under-its new name, the Soctalnst Republic of Vietnam, to decide “when” to
hold the 4% Party Congress is not mcomgruous with Anh’s prescntatlon
Additionally, since the 3" Party Congress had occurred 10 years earlier, it is not
unusual that the Politburo may have been considering, as of 1970, when to hold the
next Party Congress, and towards that end, made a decision to create an
organizational committee to prepare for the next Congress. (U)

F urthermore the NIE fails to reveal that the make-up of the 10 individuals

' referenced by Anh as havmg been selected to serve on the organizational committee

can be confirmed as actual North Vietnamese leaders who are presented in order of
seniority. Perhaps even more important is Anh’s reference to (alleged 1205 author)
Tran Van Quang as a member of that Committee, in addition to Anh himself. j,Sf)/

NIE STATEMENT: “Another key anomaly in the purported report is the

. charge against 16 opportunist members of the Central
Committee, 6 of whom are named. If this were true, they.
should have been promptly ousted from their positions...
In fact, no action appears to have been taken
then...Furthermore, if opportunism and disunity were of
such concern, indirect references in the party press
would have followed the plenum. Ndne are evident in
FBIS files of the period.” (p.31) (

ASSESSMENT:

The NIE presents no evidence to support its claim that the referenced opportunist
members of the Central Committee “should have been promptly ousted from their
positions” if such was indeed the case. Nor does the NIE present, as plausible, a
scenario where many of the referenced members could have fallen back in line by
the conclusion of the plenum without retribution recognizable to the outside world.-
Nor does the NIE mention that one of the 6 named individuals, Nguyen Van Vinh,
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| correctly noted in the GRU footnote as Chairman of the Committee for Unification,
! was, in fact, apparently ousted during National Assembly elections later that spring,
a development noted by Western observers at the time'””. And nor does the NIE
concede that the other 5 named individuals were all, in fact, correctly identified in
the 735 report as either alternate or current members of the Central Committee,
which is verified by a review of published information from the same time ]penod174

(5)

Additionally, Anh makes clear in the text of the 735 report that “in a few days from
now, these 16 comrades must present to us written explanations of their positions
and then we will decide how to deal with them. He also.states that the disharmony
must be worked out so it does not “emerge into the open and become accessible to
widespread publicity.” Therefore, the NIE’s claim that there apparently were not
references to the disunity evident at the start of the plenum in the days following the
conclusion of the plenum is not noteworthy. £8) :

More importantly, it should be noted that official communist publications in Hanoi,

" dated February 2, 1971 and February 3, 1971, marking the 41 anniversary of the
founding of North Vietnam’s communist party, did refer to the need for '
“singlemindedness and solidarity within the Party” in addition to “absolute loyalty
to the Party’s lines, stands, viewpoints, and principles” by all Party members'”” —a
view that seems consistent with Hoang Anh’s call for unity among Party members

presented in the 735 report in late December, 1970/early January, 1971. (U)

™ Yearbook (for 1971) on International Communist Affairs, Hoover Tnstitution Press,
Stanford University, 1972, p. 591-592. (U)

14 Yearbook (for 1969) on Infernational Communist Affairs, Hoover Institution Press,
5tanford University, 1970, p. 687. (U)

"5 See FBIS translitions of Nhan Dan editorials dated February 2-3, 1971 “On the Forty-First
Anniversary of the Founding of the Indochinese Communist Party.” (U)
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NIE STATEMENT: “Some of the dissenting policy positions alleged in the
‘ 735 report are plausible. Bul others — Such as a
proposal to invite foreign (presumably Chinese) troops tc
help in Laos and South Vietnam — are not.” (p.31) (3)

ASSESSMENT:

The NIE presents absolutely no evidence to support its claim that a reference by
Hoang Anh in the 735 report to a dissenting policy position by some opportunists in
the Central Committee to invite foreign (presumably Chinese) troops onto DRV
territory, and on into Laos and South Vietnam, is simply implausible, The burden is
clearly on the NIE to provide evidence to support its judgment, especially given the
Russiari GRU footnote to the 735 report on this specific point (added during
translation in Moscow in 1971) which states that “the possibility of bringing
Chinese troops into the DRV has been discussed numerous times.” It simply strains
credulity for a NIE to claim, in this instance, that it knows better than an alleged
translated report of an internal North Vietnamese meeting, supported by a 1971

" GRU analysis on this very point, what dissenting proposals may have been
surfacing internally within North Vietnam’s decision-making body in 1970/71.
Finally, given the level of Chinese military support to communist North Vietnamese
and Laotian forces during the Vietnam War and specifically the 735 report time
period, which is confirmed in open-source reports from Beijing and elsewhere'”, it

'8 A Reuters article from Hong Kong, entitled China Admits Role in Vietnam, states “China
has admitted for the first time that it sent more than 300,000 combat troops to Vietnam to fight
against U.S. forces and their South Vietnamese allies. The semi-official China News Service said
today in a report monitored in Hong Kong that China sent 320,000 soldiers to Vietiam during the
1960s. It also spent over $20 billion to support Hanoi’s regular North Vietnamese army and Viet
Cong guerrilla units. The agency report cited the History of the People's Republic of China,
published by the official State Archives Publishing House, as saying that more than 4,000 Chinese:
soldiers were killed during the war. During the war, China repeatedly denied US allegations that
its soldiers were operating in Vietnam.” Additionally, a New York Times article from the 735
report time period, dated January 18, 1971, reported that the PRC had provided some $200

- million in 1970 alone in military and economic aid. Further agreements, including military aid for
1971, had been signed in Beijing on October 6, 1970. According to the International Yearbook
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hardly seems implausible that a dissenting proposal similar to that referenced by

Anh, could have been circulating among some Party members in 1970/71.. As such,
the NIE judgment cannot be accepted with confidence. (8)

NIE STATEMENT: “The 1993 DoD report concluded that the 735 number
was oo high...The total prisoners Hanoi could have been
holding at that time (before 1971) could not have
exceeded 470 according to US Government records. No
evidence has come to light since 1993 that would cause
us lo revise our judgment.” (p.31) (

- ASSESSMENT:

First, the 735-related analysis of POW/MIA cases in the referenced DoD report
(actually released in January, 1994) was not conducted by elements of the U.S.
Intelligence Community, but by personnel working in the Office of the Assistant
Secretary of Defense for International Security Affairs.'”’ At the very least, the
authors of the NIE should have conducted an independent review of POW/MIA
cases bearing on the 735 time-frame, in light of Anh’s report. (8}

Second, as already demonstrated earlier in this assessment (see discussion of 735
document under Key Judgments assessment), official U.S. Government statistics,
forwarded to the Director of Central Intelligence for December, 1970 (the same

on Comnmnist Affairs covering the year 1970, “Chinese interest in military developments in
Vietnam continued unabated. In an unusual move, on 21 and 22 December 1970, NLFSV and
North Vietnamese military men reported on the current situation in Vietnam to Chinese Foreign
Ministry meetings attended by Li Te-sheng, alternate member of the Politburo of the Chinese
Communist Party and head of the General Political Department of the People s Lzberatlon Army’
(p-685) (U)

'” See Office of the Assistant Secretary of Defense for International Secunty Affairs Defense
POW/MIA Office Newsletter dated October, 1993.
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month as the alleged “735" report), listed 462 POWs, 962 MlAs, and 117 Non-
Hostile missing, for a total of 1,541 “missing and captured personnel.”'” (U)

In addition, while DoD, and the current NIE, continue to claim that the 735 number
was “loo high,” no where does the NIE reference the judgment of US officials in -
1970/71 that the published December, 1970 list of 368 POWs (also referenced by
Anh himself as their diplomatic move) was “too low,”'” yet this is, in essence, the
only group of Air Force and Navy fliers held in the North during this time frame to
be repatriated in early 1973."% (U)

' Message for Director, Central Intelligencé Agency from American Embassy Saigon,

“following are official figures from missing and captured personnel lists prepared by Deputy
Comptroller for Information, DoD...”, dated May 10, 1971.

" U S. Secretary of Defense Melvin Laird stated at the time, based on DoD’s review of the
1970 list, “I do not accept it as a complete list of all the prisoners held in North Vietnam.” '
(Memorandum from the Secretary of Defense to the Secretaries of the Military Departments,
dated August, 1971). He reinforced that position 21 years later in testimony before the Senate

_ Select Committee on POW/MIA Affairs on September 21, 1992, stating “I felt those lists were

inadequate...it was not complete information, and we knew of the existence of other POWs when
those lists were delivered to us... We felt there were more... We had solid, confirmed evidence
that there were more POWs in the North at that time.” In addition, Acting Secretary of the Army,
Thaddeus Beal, wrote to the Secretary of Defense on July 10, 1970, stating, “At present, Cora
Weiss maintains that about 334 Americans are detained by Hanoi. But the facts are that 780
Americans are listed as missing in North Vietnam, and 769 in South Vietnam and Laos. We know
with some certainty that of this number, 376 are PW in North Vietnam and 78 are PW elsewhere
in Indochina. We expect that among those listed as missing, substantial numbers will eventually
furn up as captives...To accept Hanoi's admission of responsibility for less than 350 US PW as
conduct constituting reasonable, humane, or internationally responsible conduct is to betray those:
other forgotten Americans.” (U) '

** The list of 368 names published by Hanoi was entitled, “U.S. Pilots Captured in the
Democratic Republic of Vietnam from August 5, 1964 to November 15, 1970.” The list was
published by the DRV’s Ministry of National Defense, and is dated November 15, 1970. It was
released to representatives of Senators Kennedy and Fulbright in Paris on December 22, 1970,
and provided to certain other foreign governments as well. All of the names of the men on the list
had previously been unofficially provided to American peace activist Cora Weiss between May
and November, 1970. The 368 list itself actually consisted of 339 Air Force and Navy pilots and
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L)1) L
(b)(Sy NatSecAct
NIE STATEMENT:
ASSESSMENT: B)(1)

(b){3) NatSecAct

This statement’s choice of words is extremely incomplete and misleading to the NIE
reader in several important respects — ' : E

crewmembers currently in captivity,

9 such personnel previously released, and 20 such personnel

listed as dead. Based on Department of Defense POW/MIA lists, only 335 Air Force.and Navy

pilots and crewmembers captured in

North Vietnam prior to November 15, 1970 were later

repatriated to the United States (one in Sept. 72, and the remainder following the signing of the
Peace Accords in 1973 (Jan-Apr). (1)) : '

o)1)
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- NIE STATEMENT:.

ASSESSMENT:

196 Ibid. 5,s¢
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But even more disturbing is the NIO’s claim that the “allegations” in the report are
“uncorroborated by any other intelligence reporting.” According to a Defense
Intelligence Agency Directorate for Intelligence Research published study in 1977, a
report was received in the Fall of 1976 indicating that two North Vietnamese '
officials who had recently come to southemn Vietnam had told a “high PRG official”
that 235 US POWSs were executed in northern Vietnam in Julv. 1976'%8[ |

o)1)

&

(1)

® Former National Security Advisor to President Carter (1977-1980), Zbigniew
Brzezinski, provided the following assessment] N

""" Recent Reports of U.S. PWs and Collaborators in Southeast Asia, Defense Itelligence
Agency, information cut-off date April 1, 1977, see pages 65, and 69-70. The person who had
actually learned of the above information and then passed it to U.S. intelligence had been an
American left behind in the'Fall of Saigon who was released on August 1, 1976. (U)
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interviewed during the MacNeil/Lehrer Newshour in Apnl 1993 about the

ot number of’ US POWs reported.in the 1205 document e

BRZF Z[NSKI -I suspeci that the Vietnamese had the view that this would be a very

prolanged conflict in which at best the United States might partially disengage from
South Vietnam, but wonld continue supporting it and that further leverage on the United

States would be desirable for them to have...In the meantime, they had gone on record

repealedly as having only had the number to which they admitted themselves having and
ds having no more than those that they released. And they were stuck with a situation in
which they no longer needed leverage againsi the United States and yet had several
hundred surviving Americans, many of whom they had classified as reactionaries, and
therefore, as enemies, and I'm, therefore, knowing how the Vietnamese regime has
behaved in the past, for that matter how the Soviet regime has behaved in the past, I'm
led sadly to the conclusion that in all probability sometime after the conclusion of the
Paris Agreenients, or perhaps after the fall of South Vietnam in 1975, they executed those

- that were still living, perhaps with the exception of a small number whom they refained

Jor continuing intelligence or technical purposes.
MACNEIL: ...In other words, it's just a straight, deliberate execution?

BRZEZINSKI: Yes, because they (the Vietnamese) were, in effect, in a situation of their
own making. They had thought they would use these peaple as leverage on us and it's
hinted in that (1205) report, the document which is now public. And they were then faced
with a situation in which they no longer needed to exercise that leverage, and they had
been publicly commitied to the proposition that they had no more Americans, and,
therefore, some of them might have fell, the leadership might have felt that this was the
easiest way oul. And that, incidentally, explains the howls of oulrage that are now
emanating from Hanoi.'® (U)

Former National Security Advisor and Secretary of State Henry Kissinger
(1969-1976), when asked on the same news program to comment on Mr.
Brzezinski’s statement above, replied —

KISSINGER:...if they held prisoners that they didn’t acknowledge, then there is
considerable plausibility to Zbig's theory...one would have thought that if they held thein

'% Transcript of the MacNeil/Lehrer Newshour, Show #4605, Tuesday, April 13, 1993, (U)
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in order to blackmail us, they would have at some point produced them. Whether they
though this was no longer necessary ajter Saigon collapsed...after that they might have

believed that there was no longer any negotiating tool. 190 )

(b)(1)

® A DIA contract agent reported being privately told in 1993 by a Vietnamese
PAVN General Political Directorate (GPD) officer in Hanoi that “perhaps
hundreds” of the unretuned U.S POWs had been executed by North
Vietnam, and that this was “Hanoi’s darkest and worst secret. %2 ).

10 Ibid. : | '

! Department of Defense JCRC Liaison, Bangkok, TH, priority message, info to DIA
Washington, USCINCPAC, SECDEF, P 0801562, March, 1985. (U). :

"2 See Inside Hanoi's Secret Archives by Malcolm McConnell with Theodore “Ted”
Schweitzer, 1995, p. 268-270. (U) '

'3 Letter from Director of Central Intelligence James Woolsgy to Sen. Bob Smith, dated July

| | SECRET (b)(1)
000141
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Russian Presidential Advisor and Co-Chairman of the Joint U.S.-Russia
Commission on POW/MIAs, General Volkogonov, told President Clinton’s
Special POW/MIA Emissary to Hanoi, General Vessey, in 1993, that “he
feared” some of the alleged 465 US POWs with reactionary views referencec.
in the September, 1972 1205 report “may have been later executed.”'™* (U)

L

® Earlier that same month, The Washington Post reported, in a front page
article, entitled “No Hope, MIA Families Told,” that Congressman
Sonny Montgomery, Chairman of the House Select Committee on

el e e

i

_AB)()

_AB)(1)

Missing Persons, had told POW/MIA family members gatheredin  Y)(3) NatSecAct

26, 1993 (see enclosures). Nofe:|

|

@)

%4 Memorandum for the Record, Subject: Conversation between GEN Volkogonov and GEN

- Vessey during visit at Walter Reed Medical Center, dated June 22, 1993. (U)

19 See Memorandum to Assistant to the President for National Security Affairs Anthony Lake

from National Intelligence Officer for East Asia Robert Suettinger, dated December 13, 1993, (5)

§§CRET/
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Washington that, based on the almost year long investigation by his
Committee, he had been “forced to the painful conclusion that our
MIAs lost their lives in the service 1o their country.” (U)

The Post, in the same above-referenced story, also reported that “the
Vietnamese Government has indicated that the U.S. must pay a price
of 83.25 billion in reconstruction aid for any information it has on the

- missing men. The League (of POW/MIA Families) is opposed to

aying such blackmail and acknowledges that such a gesture is out o
the question politically.” (U)

In a related editorial at the.time, the Post further pointed out that
Congressman Montgomery and his Committee had “also made an
earnes! attempt to get the Vietnamese Government lo undersiand that,
no-matter what they thought had been promised at a certain point by

President leon, reparations or reconstruction aid is now politically
out .of the question.” (U) : :

Chairman Montgomery had indeed told the Vietnamese, as early as a
December 21, 1975 meeting with North Vietnamese Premier Pham
Van Dong in Hanoi that “they are not going to get reconstruction aid
from the United States, and we weren’t going to bargam or pay
blackmail.” (U)

At a public Congressional hearing on April.-16, 1976, then U.S.
Secretary of State Henry Kissinger had testified that “we cannot accept
the proposition that we have an obligation to provide aid, which we
have not. We believe that the Paris accords have been breached so
completely (by the North’s military.conquest of the South) that it
would be completely absurd to let only one article survive when all the
other obligations have been totally abridged by North Vxemam We

. have no*plans to gwe any. aid.” (U)
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Kissinger’s comments followed, by three weeks, a-statement by
President Gerald Ford, characterizing the North Vietnamese as

“international pirates.” (U)

Govemnment of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam was again told, this
time in a State Department diplomatic note to Hanoi’s Foreign Ministry
dated July 19th, that “The United States does not consider that it has
an obligation to provide reconstruction assistance to Vietnam.”

of Vietnam publication, Nhan Dan, noted “...The United States has

"denied its responsibility and obligation to implement Article 21 of the

Paris agreement on healing the wounds of war and postwar
reconstruction of Vietnam...Is it that Ford and Kissinger have really
been concerned about the families of American soldiers who were
killed or listed as missing while perpetrating crimes in Vietnam? Not
atall. Had they been truly concerned about the lives of Americans as
they have been claiming, then they would have fully implemented all
the provisions of the Paris agreement, including the very important
Article 21 (providing for reconstruction aid).” (S)
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o As noted earlier in this assessment, Quang was dual-hatted with his
positions in the North during the 1960's with positions in Central and
South Vietnam as a Member of COSVN and the National Liberation
Front (NLF) Central Committee, heading the Military. Affairs
Committee there and commanding PLAF forces. According to
communist Viet Cong “Liberation Radio” broadcasts on June 24, 1965
and September 26, 1965, monitored by U.S.: intelligence at the time,
three US POWs'"" were executed “on orders of the National Liberation
Front (NLF) Central Committee” in retaliation for South Vietnamese
and U.S. actions in the South. In view of his leadership roles, Quang
undoubtedly was directly involved with ordering these executions of
US POWs. These three U.S. servicemen were subsequently listed as

% See Vietnam by Karnow, p. 276-279; Inside Hanoi's Secret Archives by McConnell, p.
271; The Encyclopedia of the Vietnam War by Kutler, (under “Hue™). For denial by General _
Quang, see Vietnam, A History, by Stanley Karow, 2™ Edition, 1997, p.543, “Revisiting
Vietnam in 1981 and again in 1990, I was able to elicit little credible evidence from the
Communists to clarify the episode. General Tran Do, a senior Communist architect of the Tet
offensive, flatly denied that the Hue atrocities had ever occurred, contending that films and
photographs of the corpses had been “fabricated.” I heard the same line from General Tran Van
Quang, who commanded the Communist forces in the region.” (U)

.......................................

Forces] ~For additional Téferences, see Newsweek, October 11, 1965, (b)(3)

p.48, article entitled 7he War in Vietnam. (U)
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“died in captivity” by the Provisional Revolutionary Government
(PRG) in their POW list turned over in Paris in January, 1973, and
their remains, as of 1998, have still not been repatriated to the United
States. (As noted earlier, Quang had also served as the PRG Defense
Minister following its establishment in 1969, and would have logically
prepared or approved, under that leadership capacnfcy, the PRG us
POW list presented in Paris. (U)

___________________ (b)(1)

Following the return of acknowledged US POWs in 1973, there remained over
1,300 U.S. personnel in a missing in action status, and DoD could not say whether
those individuals “were alive or dead.” Moreover, U.S. officials at the time had
expected a higher number of US POWs to be returned, as earlier indicated in this
assessment. Finally, the figures referenced by the NIE itself (p.19) show that, as of
1998, there remain 370 unaccounted for U.S. personnel, in the judgment of DoD,
whose fate has not been determined, including 48 on the “priority” last known alive

- list. (}’)

B

(1)
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IV POLITICIZING OF INTELLIGENCE:

As noted in this assessment’s Executive Summary, Congress and the leaders of the
U.S. Intelligence Community (IC) need to examine what role the White House, its
National Security Council, and certain US policy-makers responsible for advancing
the Administration’s normalization agenda with Vietnam may have played in
influencing or otherwisé affecting the judgments of the IC as reflected in this NIE.
If any improper communication or influence took place, immediate steps should be
taken to determining how this could have occurred. Such a review is critical to
ensuring that the IC is providing objective and independent analysis to its
customers. (U) '

This is especially important because the NIE was prepared and published in
classified form during the same period that the President and his Administration
were required by Public Law to determine whether Vietnam was “fully cooperating
in good faith” with the United States on the POW/MIA issue. An affirmative

* certification is required for the expenditure of funds for US diplomatic operatlons in
Vietnam. (U)

A bipartisan report from the Senate Select Committee on Intelligence (SSCi) had
determined in April, 1997 that the IC had provided no input, nor was input solicited,
in determinations for 1996 and 1997, even though the certification, by law;is
required to be “based on information available to the US Government.” This SSCI
finding was one of the reasons National Security Advisor Berger had been requested
by the Senate to have this NIE prepared. (U)

The President himself had recognized the potential impact of the NIE on the
certification process, stating in a letter to me dated February 25, 1998 (8 days prior
to his 1998 determination), that “the results of the National Imelhgence Estimate
regarding the extent of Vietnam’s disclosure of information on our missing service’
personnel will be taken into account as we continue to advance our agenda with

3000149
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Vietnam...'” (U)

The President issued his 1998 determination that Vietnam was fully‘cooperating in
good faith on March 4, 1998 -- one month prior to the NIE’s official dnssemmatlon
and, again, only 8 days aﬁer his letter to me U

Although the NIE had not yet been approved or published, there apparenﬂy was

communication and coordination between the National Intelligence Council and, at

the least, the Office of the Assistant Secretary of Defense for International Security

Affairs (under OSD/Policy), concerning the draft contents of the NIE. Moreover,

the National Intelligence Council has confirmed that it selected “four individuals i
outside the Intelligence Community with expertise on the Vietnam POW/MIA ‘
issue” — whom it has not yet identified to Congress — who “reviewed the draft

and provided their.commentary.to us.®” Additionally, the Director of Central

Intelligence, George Tenet, has also stated the “the draft was reviewed by several

experts from outside the Community.2”"” Were any of these individuals employed

in the Office of the Secretary of Defense. for Policy, which includes DoD’s

" POW/MIA Office, — an office which supports U.S. policy that Vietnam is fully

cooperating in good faith on the POW/MIA issue? 7]

‘ Questions concerning the politicizing of intelligence have naturally arisen as a result

of these revelations. On its face, the prior pledge by the Director of Central
Intelligence that the NIE would be done “with the objectivity, timeliness, and
independence that characterize our analytical efforts”™” needs to be further

1% Letter from President Bill Clinton to Senator Bob Smith, dated February 25, 1998. (U)

2% Transcript of Briefing by National Intelligence Council to U.S. side of the US-Russia Joint

Commission on POW/MIAs, p. 5—6, dated June 17, 1998 ($§

2 Letter from Director of Central Intelligence George Tenet to Executive Director, National
League of POW/MIA Families Ann Mills Griffiths, dated October 28, 1998. (U)

7 Letter from Central Intelligence Agency, “the Director of Central Intelligence (DCI) has
asked me to respond...,” from John H. Moseman, Director of Congressional Affairs, CIA, dated

SEWT
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examined. (U)

Questions concerning the politicizing of intelligence are further underscored by the
following exchange at a Congressional hearing on June 17, 1998 between
Congressman Benjamin A. Gilman, Chairman of the House Committee on
International Relations, and Mr. Frederick C. Smith, Principal Deputy Assistant
Secretary, International Security Affairs, Office of the Secretary of Defense (under
the Under Secretary of Defense for Policy) —

Chairman Gilman: In March of this year, Presidemnt Clinton certified that the
Government of Vietnam was fully cooperating in goof faith on the POW/MIA issue.
What role did our Department of Defense play with respect to that decision on
certification?...

Mr. Smiith: The Department of Defense did make an input...Our recommendation was
that Vietnam was fully cooperating with our efforts in this area...,

Chairman Gilman: When you made that decision in the Defense Departme)rl, did you
have before you the National Intelligence Estimate on Vietnam's performance on the
POWMIA issue? -

Mr. Smith: We were actually working on it at about the same time, because we were
working with the Ceniral Intelligence Agency on that issue, and so il was concurrent,

simulianeous.

Chairman Gilman: Did you have that estimate before you at the time you made your
decision and made your recommendation to the President?

Mr. Smith: The final copy of the estimate was issued in April, 1998, and the
determination was made in March.

- Chairman Gilman: So you actually didn’t have the final National Intelligence Estimate?

Mr. Smith: We did not have the final estimate that was issued. Thai is correct. But we
cerlainly knew what was in il,_and we were involved in the preparation of the estimate.

e

November 17, 1997. (U) -~
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Chairman Gilman: You were working on the Esnmale? Were you warlmvg on the
Estimaie?

Mr. Smith: Yes. The estimate had been in preparation for a number of months before
hand. '

Chairman Gilman: And you would have had the occasion to see what the report said at
the time you made your decision?

Mr. Smith: Yes.

Chairman Gilman: Is it your view that the report supports the President’s cerllf ication
that Vietnam is fully coopemllve ?

Mr Smith: Yes. I believe thai the information aboul the improved cooperation we 've
received from the Vietnamese, and the reasons that the estimate gives for this improved
cooperation are correct.”” (U)

~ The above testimony would further seem to cast doubt on the reliability of testimony
by Under Secretary of Defense for Policy, Walter Slocombe (Mr. Smith’s superior
in the OSD chain of command), on the day after the President’s March 4, 1998
determination.. On March 5, 1998, before a hearing of the Senate Committee on
Armed Services, the followmg exchange took place between myself and Under
Secretary Slocombe —

Under Secretary Slocombe: Senator, 1'm not familiar with the details of what input the
national intelligence community had in this particular determination.

Sen. Smith: Well, you're aware there's an intelligence community-estimate going on now,
correct?

Under Secrélary Slocombe: Yes.

3 Transcript of Hearing before the Committee on International Relations, US House of
Representatives, A Worldwide Review of the Clinton Administration’s POW/MIA Policies and
Programs, p. 10-11, dated June 17, 1998 (U)
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Sen. Smith: ...wouldn't it seem reasonable to wait until the national intelligence estimate
came back?...

Under Secretary Slocombe: I think it's wholly appropriate 1o do an intelligence estimate.

What I do not know, and am not in a position to comment on is what information was
obtained from the Intelligence Community in connection with this determination, because
1 simply do not know.™™ (U)

The testimony from Deputy Assistant Secretary Smith further casts doubt on the
reliability of the assurance from Director of Central Intelligence George Tenet that
“at no stage was there higher level or other intervention to change or shape the body
or judgments of the NIE.2*” (U)

Moreover, in the course of preparing this intelligence estimate, the principal author
reportedly traveled to Hanoi to conduct personal interviews with US Ambassador to

Vietnam, Douglas “Pete” Peterson’®, in addition to conducting interviews with Dr.

Lou Stern, Director for Indochina, Thailand, and Burma in the Office of the

" Secretary of Defense for Intemational Security Affairs at the Pentagon®”’ — two of

™ Transcript of Hearing of the Senate Committee on Armed Services, March 5, 1998. (U)

3 Letter from Director of Central Intelligence George Tenet to Executive Director, National
League of POW/MIA Families, Ann Mills Griffiths, dated October 28, 1998. (U)

%% Ambassador Peterson, a former POW from the Vietnam War, did not arrive in Hanoi until
May, 1997, following his Senate confirmation in April of that year. Prior to confirmation,
Ambassador Peterson served as a Democrat Congressman from Florida during which time he
consistently advocated full U.S. normalization of relations with the Government of the Socialist
Republic of Vietnam. During that same tenure, he served as US Chairman of the Vietnam War
Working Group of the US/Russia Joint Commission on POWs and MIAs where he maintained his
position that the so-called 1205 and 735 documents, assessed in this current NIE, were not valid.

)

7 Dr. Stern has been a consistent advocate for closer US ties with Vietnam during his tenure
at the Department of Defense scanning séveral years. While employed by DoD, he has published
a book on the development of US-Vietnam relations. He has also been directing invoived with
DoD hosting of several high-level Vietnamese delegations to the United States, and has
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the Administration’s biggest advocates for continued expansion of US relations with
Hanm g&f -

When I questioned the National Intelligence Ofﬁcer for East Asia, Robert
Suettinger, under whose auspices the current NIE was prepared, on the Inteilngence
Community’s role with respect to the 1998 certification and the NIE’s bearing on it,
the response was quite abrasive, defensive, and disturbingly evasive —

Sen. Smith: Let me ask you this question, and I would like a yes or no. Did the President
ask you for your input prior to the certification in March, 1998 that the Vietnamese were

. ﬁ:lly caopemlmg or cooperalmg in good faith?

M. Suettinger: Did he ask me persanally?.
Sen.-Smith: Well, did he ask the agency?

Mr. .Sueltinger: 1 do not know.

Sen. Smith: You do hot know the answer to that?
Mr. Suettinger: I .q’a" not.

Sen. Smith: ...Does your intelligence estimate disagree with the President’s slalemem
that the Vieinamese are being fully cooperative, yes or no?

Mr. Suettinger: ...I would say that the intelligence assessment, which was not intended to
answer that specific question, comes down on both sides of the issue, that there has been
improved cooperation, but that il is not perfect. And the reasons for its not being perfect

are cited in the estimate.® (U)

000155

strategized with Vietnamese officials concerning ways to achieve normalization of relations
without the POW/MIA issue being an obstacle. (U)

28 Transcript of Briefing by the National Intelligence Council to the U.S. side of the US-
Russia Joint Commission on POW/MIAs, p. 23-24, and 29, dated June 17, 1998/(5)‘
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Interestingly, Mr. Suettinger’s careful wording above on June 17, 1998 — using the
term “improved cooperation” in response to a question about the validity of the
President’s determination that Vietnam was “fully cooperating in good faith” — is
the exact phrase used by Deputy Asst. Secretary Smith at a House hearing on the
same day in response to the same question. This exact phraseology is not found in
the NIE itself, and raises more questions about additional collaboration between the
National Intelligence Council and the Office of the Under Secretary of Defense for
Policy.

Questions, in the context of the current NIE, about the politicizing of intelligence on
issues bearing on U.S. policy toward Vietnam are particularly relevant in view of
prior indications suggesting that such actions took place during the current
Administration on the same issues being reviewed in the current NIE. (U)

For example, an “interagency intelligence assessment” on the “1205” and “735”
documents was disseminated to the media, with a January 24, 1994 release date,
three days prior to a U.S. Senate vote on whether to urge the lifting of the U.S. trade

- embargo on Hanoi, and one week prior to the President’s announcement of his

determination to lift the embargo. The timing of the release of this assessment
became suspicious when it was learned that it had, in fact, been prepared, completed
and forwarded to the Under Secretary of Defense for Policy in an unclassified
format for release, through the National Intelligence Council by June 21, 1993 —
seven months earlier (with the exception of two paragraphs later added by DoD) —
even though the President had continued to maintain in communications with
Congress, as recently as December, 10, 1993 that he “intended to release publicly
our analysis and conclusions as soon as possible. Iam sure you would agree that
we must accord them the most careful analysis...” Clearly, the release of this
unclassified document of information prepared with major input by elements of the
Intelligence Community, had been delayed for political purposes in order to obtain
maximum effect on decisions being made and/or announced within the Congress and
the White House. (U) ’

In addition, one year éérlier, on February 12, 1993, then Deputy National Security
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Advisor Sandy Berger, after having been briefed on the discovery of the so-called
1205 document in Moscow, tasked the Intelligence Community, thmugh the
Dcpartment of Defense, in an [Eyes Only Memorandum, to ‘analyze the
zmpllcalzons of the following hypathellcal scenario. Assume that a document fron |
a senior North Vietnamese Army offi cial established that on September 15, 1972
the North Vzemamese were holding 1205 Amerxcan prisoners of war...; the North '
Vietnamese were dehberately concealmg the true number of prisoners they were -
holding from the outside world: the fate of these prisoners was under consideration
by the Hanoi Politburo...if such a document were deemed reliable...what are the
zmpllcalzons of this information generally, what are the implications in light of
Vzelnam s obllgalzons under the Paris Peace Agreemenl PR U)

The phrasmg of this Whlte House taskmg, ie: zf such a docuinent were deemed
reliable, what are the mzplzcauons can be interpreted as polmcnzmg of
intelligence, because it opens the door for an Administration judgment that a
document is not reliable if it is 'deemed to have negative 1mphcatxons for planned
U.S. policy toward Vletnam if it is judged to be reliable. Indeed, the Defense

- Intelligence Agency 5 (DIA’s) apparent response fo this memorandum, dated
February 25, 1993, concluded that “hypothetically, the Vietnamese would have becn
holding 665 more POWs than we know them to have held; ...hypothetically, all of
these extra POWs.. would also have had to been placed in a completely separate
prison system: ...hypothetically, some of these men would have survived to the
present in Vnetnam.""’ Furthermore, this initial eyes only tasking was posed during

“? Eyes Only Memorandiim from then-Deputy National Security Advisor Samuel R. Berger,
dated February 12, 1993, forwarded to Director, Office of Senate Security; by National Security
Council Senior Director for Records and Access Management, in unclassified, redacted form on
March 12, 1997. A second copy of the same memorandum was received in the Senate directly -
from the Department of Defense on April 12, 1993. [(§)]

19 DIA further stated in the same response that the “hypothesis was refuted by undisputed , '
evidence provided by 30 years of intelligence collection.” The referenced Defense Intelligence '
Agency memorandum was received in the Senate in April, 1993, and subsequently received again,
as an unclassified document, on March 25, 1997, from the Deputy Assistant Secretary of Defense
(POW/Missing Personnel Affairs). (U)
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the same period that the Administration had begun a high-level review of U.S.
policy toward Vietnam with the goal of further advancing normalization of U.S.
relations with Hanoi, beginning with the hoped-for removal of U.S. objections to
International Financial Institution (IFI) lending to Vietnam during a planned April
meeting of world financial officials — the same month the 1205 report was
subsequently disclosed publicly. (U) -

Whether there was any such politicizing of intelligence by the Administration, and
the extent of the Intelligence Community’s participation in any such effort, has not
yet been firmly established, but the concemns are further underscored by the fact that
subsequent to the above-referenced memorandum from Deputy National Security
Advisor Berger, the Under Secretary of Defense for Policy formally requested that
an assessment of the 1205 document be prepared for release to the media. This
directive followed a White House meeting with the President, Vice-President,
National Security Advisor, and two other Defense and State Department officials
involved with POW/MIA accounting efforts, during which time the President
reportedly stated that he “did not want the 1205 document to get in the way of

" normalization of relations with Vietnam.” (8)]

At the first meeting to discuss preparation of this assessment, the Deputy NIO for
East Asia, Robert Suettinger, reportedly announced to those gathered that the 1205
report was not reliable with respect to US POWs, and that was the operating
assumption under which the 1993/94 DoD-released product was consequently
prepared. (U) '

Based on this admittedly circumstantial evidence, a further review of this matter by
appropriate Congressional committees and the leaders of the Intelligence
Community appears warranted.
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vV CONCLUSION:

On September 3, 1998, the American Embassy in Hanoi reported that Communist
publications there had carried'a Vietnam News Agency (VNA) report under the titls
“No evidence of American POWs in Vietnam -- Affirms U.S. Intelligence.” The =
reports went on to say that the “U.S. National Intelligence Council report...affirms
that the Russian documents are fake...and that Vietnam has cooperated with the
United States in accounting for American personnel listed as Missing in Action.”

C)

As shown in this critical assessment of the above-referenced NIE, the judgments of
the Intelligence Community are not supported and should be retracted. It is equally
disturbing that the IC has aggressively and inexplicably gone way beyond standard
and historical criteria for reaching judgments in a NIE in an effort to dismiss
compelling evidence which conflicts with the NIE’s judgments. (U)

~ Itis also a sad commentary that, in the end, the NIE places more reliance on

statements by communist Vietnamese officials in Hanoi than on statements from
Russian officials in Moscow who are part of the emerging democratic govérnment
there . It is further unfortunate that the NIE’s judgments, and their public release,
will likely seriously undermine “continued U.S. efforts o acquire additional
information on the Russian documents from the Vietnamese Government...
including access to other relevant Party and government archival materials” as
pledged by the President’s National Security Advisor, Samuel R. “Sandy” Berger,
in his letter to the Senate Majority Leader, Trent Lott, in April of last year. (U)

The NIE’s judgments, and their public release, will also likely undermine any
serious US effort to convince Hanoi to increase their level of cooperation with US
officials, (as opposed to maintaining the status quo), especially with regard to
additional unilateral disclosures of POW/MIA material from relevant archives in
Hanoi, as also pledged by Mr. Berger, which would include the key, relevant
records of entities such as the Central Military Affairs Party Committee. (U)

SEgRﬁg
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Based on the contents of this critical assessment of the NIE, Congress and the
leaders of the Intelligence Community must reexamine the judgments reached in the
NIE with the goal of ensuring that U.S. policy and decision-makers are relying on
judgments that are based on “the most careful analysis in the context of all other
known information,” a standard which was originally promised by our President
himself, in a letter to me dated December 10, 1993. To do anything lessis a
tremendous disservice to the POW/MIA families and the memory of those still
unaccounted for from the Vietnam Conflict. (U)
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GENERAL STAFF OF THE ARMED FORCES OF THE USSR
MAIN INTELLIGENCE DIRECTORATE [GRU]

REPORT

OF THE DEPUTY CHIEF OF THE GENERAL STAFF OF THE i
VNA [VIETNAMESE PEOPLES ARMY] GENERAL-LIEUTENANT TRAN VAN QUANG
AT THE POLITBURO MEETING OF THE TSK PTV
: 15 SEPTEMBER 1972
‘ (cranslation from Vietnamese into Russian)

vt By e B A R B e,
.
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Dear comrades!

i I reported to you earlier about the gituation which has
developzd and about the fundamental characteristics of the past
stage of our people’s conflict against the Bmerican imperialists.
I will zover the main tasks of the people and the army of North
and South Vietnam which were proposed by the gig___lgngg_gg_;gg
TsK _PTV,

These tasks once again confirm our resolve to attaxn
victory. This is a very correct course for our party and people
at the present stage of conflict. We have already worked ocut
measures for achieving the resoclutions of the 23rd Plenum of the
TsK. We will also cover a number of the Supreme Commband’s and
the Government Defense Council’s positions, in which an
evaluation of our victories gained over the period from 30 Mar 72
to the present is given.

Tte military situation for us is developing favorably on all
fronts. A number of profound changes which took place in the
military situvation demanded that we develop a necessary frame of
reference for solving all issues which arise during the war.

. Several meetings between us and the US aimed at developing
measures on resolving the Vietnam issue have already taken place.

We have decisively rejected a number of proposals put forth
by the American side. With aggi Tom a n r
countries, there were to be gecret meetings ip Paris and in other
places aimed at drawing up a solution to the Vietnam igsue. Such
meetings took place. They once again testified to the deranged
nature of the proposals put forward by the American side. BAs
before, we have maintained our position, the essence of which
includes the following: if the US truly wants to resolve the
Vietnan issue, then above all else it must refuse to support the
Nouyven Van Thieuw regime, and only afterwards will we engage in a
discuggion about a cease fire. This demand is the main tenet in
Qur conflict against the American imperialists, .

If Nixon continues adhering to his policy of
"Vietnamization" of the war and desires to leave the present
Saigon Government of Thieu in power, then the peace negotiations
between us and the US will not yield any results.

3000161
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During our general offensive on the fronts of South Vietnam,
Laos and Cambodia, the progress which we have attained in
implementing our strategic and tactical line [directionm,

- orientation] was clearly evident.

Barlier, I analyzed the activity of our command, elucidated
the great victories we have attained and also explained the
shortcomings and mistakes that we made during the general
offensive. The lessons we learped from analyzing the mistakes we
made were also digcussed. I stated all of this to the Politburo
in order to work out a direction for solving the fundamental
principal problems.

Today I will report a number of positions regarding
expanding the scope of our future offensgive.

We organized meetings with South Vietnamese represeatatives
aimed at preparing a solution of the military and politizal
igsues in South Vietnam according to the Politburo’s and State
Defense Council’s plan. These meetings have great significance
for us, and we are linking several of our plans with them [South

- Vietnamese representatives].. A number of our comrades have met

with representatives of the South Vietnamese authorities, and it
can be said that we have succeeded in winning their sympathy at
these meetings. We were able to exchange ideas not only orally,
but also in written form during these meetings and contacts.
This gave us the gpportunity to draw definite conclusiopns.
Recently, we have conducted 8 similar meetings with
representatives of the Saigon -authorities and South Vietnamese

political fiqures..
First, we will cover meetings with General Ngo_Dink DzuP.

Earlier Ngo Dinh Dzu was listed as a candidate for president of
South Vietnam and fought with Nguyen Van Thieu and Nguyen Cao Ky
for this post. Ngo Dinh Dzu is a prominent South Vietnamese
capitalist and well-known political figure. He occupied the post
of chairman of the upper chamber of the Saigon Parliament and

"during the Ngo Dinh Diem government, he was a senator in the

upper chamber. Ngo Dinh Dzu, in his own opinion, is a
nationalist. He speaks

" Commander of the 2nd Regional Corps of South Vietnaﬁ, General -
Lieutenant (GRU’s note).
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against American troops on South Vietnamese territory, and also
against. several policy posxt;ons conducted by the Saigon
authorities. £ haracteriz S
react1Q"g;gL*ggwg_gmz_gﬁ_gggggg;agL Afterwards, as Ky and Thieu
attained victory in the presidential elections,'the latter
undertock all measures to take revenge on General Dzu. Dzu used
the pre-election campaign to criticize the Saigon regime and .to
undermine its security. He spoke against Americam troops on
South Vietnmamese territory, for which bhe was subjected to bitter
attacks from Nguyen Van Thieu. General Dzu was forced to leave
the political arena after 9 months under pressure f£rom Thieu.
Afterwards, General Dzu became an even greater enemy of Nguyen
Van Thieu and his govermment. This is why we tried to win this
person over to our side.

Despite General Dzu remaining an enemy of communism, his
relations with Nguyen Van Thieu and the present Saigon factions, :
as well as our meetings with him have allowed him to see the
nature of the Americans and the true colors of the Saigon
Government. .

We gent one of our comrades from the Supreme Command to
Saigon for meetings with General Dzu. At the meeting, which
lastec 3 hours, General Dzu agreed to enter into a future
coalition government and spoke out against the policy of
"Vietnamization” of the war carried out by Nixon and also against
the Neuyer Van Thieu cllque During this meeting he also stated
that he will fight against Nguyen Van Thieu’s clique and Nixon’s
present designs.

Now, we gee clearly how gignificant changes have taken place
in General Dzu’s life and way of thinking. He is no longer the
game ardent anticommunist. Now prevailing in his views are those

© features such as the conflict against Nixon’s policy of
"Vietaamization® of the war ‘and against Nguyen Van Thieu’s clique
which he considers as fascist and as expressing the interests of
the financial oligarchy which is against freedom and
independence. And £ipally, General Dzu is for the expansion of
democracy and freedom over the entire territory
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of South Vietnam. Such are General Dzu’s basic national
gualities which correspond to our present course. This is why we
are attempting to win Gemeral Dzu over to our gide and why we
entered into contact with him. After the firgt meeting, there
were three other recent meetings during which he expressed his
opinions. During these meetings, we understood what kind of
major changes took place in his way of thinking and in the
position he has taken and in his approach to solving the .problem.
. Thus, we can agcertain that these meetings and contacts with

General Dzu had very good results. Recently, Gemeral Dzu
requested to meet with one of the prominent leaders of the NFO
[(National Liberation Front] of South Vietnam. We are now busy
preparing for the upcoming meeting between General Dzu and Hyuyn
Tan Phat. This meeting will be conducted in secret to insure the
fulfillment of our main principles as we understand that this new
person is contradictory - he is among those in the Saigon
Government whose number is daily growing.

The second person is Nguyen Khanh. He earlier occupied the

_post of prime minister for three years after the overthrow of Ngo
Dinh Diem. Nguyen Khanh is a representative of the army.

Earlier he served in the French Army; pow he is a prominent South
Vietnamese capitalist whose capital is invested in various
foreign enterprises, especially in France. Nguyen Khanh is a
representative of the new trend. This is why we have entered
into ‘contact with him. These contacts took place in Paris, where
we have copnducted 5 meetings. -

: Nguyen KXhanh maintaing constant contact with military
circles in the Nguyen Van Thieu government. After being removed
from his post, he left the country, but perlodlcally retuins to
Saigon where he engages in polltlcal activities in the capacmty
of an emigree representatlve.

In summarizing the f£ive meetings, we noticed in Nguyen Khanh
the following: first, as regards the ruling faction he believes
that Nguyen Van Thieu is a dictator and fascist who is not
capable of being the head of the government. Khanh congi!ders
the present government to be rotten to the core; second, he is
against the bombing of North
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Vietnam; third, while criticizing the Nguyen Van Thieu faction,
he speaks against the participation of Saigon troops in combat
actions on Cambodian territory. He believes that the Saigon Army
is in danger of disintegration and that it has. poor morale and
combat spirit. Nguyen Khanh speaks for the establishment of a
rew government which would have authority with the people and
wvhich would carry out a natiopalist policy, while receiving
foreign aid. These are the views of Nguyen Khanh. He says
rothing about his feelings toward the policy of "Vietnamization®
of the war. This is explaiped primarily by his connections with
military circles. Therefore, we are not striving to directly
cttract him to our side. Presently, Nguyen Khaph is maintaining
connections with the current Saigon generals.

The third person is Duong Van Minh, who-also represents the
military circles. Previously, he occupied the post of prime
minigter after Nguyen Khanh, and was then sent out of the country
48 an ambassador. The political views of Duong Van Min’ diffexr
from the political views of Nguyen Khanh. This is first
expressed in Duong Van Min’ speaking out against Nixon‘’s policy
of "Vietnamization" and for the independent solution of internal
problems by the Vietnamege without US interference. He believes -
that the US should be respomsible for prolonging the Vietnamese
War and for its ccnsequences He subjects the Vietnamese policy
of Nixon to sharp criticism, as well as the policy carried out by
the current Saigon Government. These are very good political
views. He speaks against Thieu’s clique, considering it to be
pro-fascist, anti-democratic and not capable of carrying out the
leadership of the country. These are the primary political views
of Duong Van Min’.

As a result of these contacts with Duong Van M;nh Wwe have
attained an important victory, which has forced him to reflect.
de also met with Nguyen Thi Binh several times in Paris. At
these meetings, Duong Van Minh felt that, as before, he was close
to the Fatherland and that he is Vietnamese. This is why he
negan to conduct this great work with us and with the
intelligentsia and military circles located outside of the
country. He did this with the aim of entering into a coalition
government and in the hope of solving the Vietnamese issue
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on the basis of conducting consultations and negotlatlons between
the various political factions of South Vietnam. Thzs is Duong
! . Van Min’s desire.

The fourth person is the former emperor Bao Dal, At one
time the possibility existed that the former emperor would have
been behind us. But, under pressure from reactlonary "factions
after the August revolution, he was forced to emigrate to France.

. As before, Bao Dai holds great influence amongst the polltlcal
. figures in the Quang Tri and Thua Thien Provinces-.and alss in the
: city of Hue, the ancient capital of Vietnam. This is why we '
| moved to make contact with Bao Dai. We are pot hoping that Bao
| Dai becomes a part of the coalition government, but to atctract
him to our side is to attract his supporters in the regioas where ’
he has influence. As a result of the meetlngs conducted, we
clarified that Bao Dai will come out against the presence of
American troops on the territory of South Vietnam, and he also
criticizes Nguyen Van Thieu’s existing regime. Bao Dai i3 also
calling for all political factions to create a free, meutral,
. peace-loving government that would resolve the tense situation
; that has taken form in the country. This is why we entered into
i contact with Bao Dai and are trying to win him over to our side.
! We hope' that he, in turn, will work with his people im a plan for
; gecuring peace and freedom for our country. .
f The fifth person is General Nguyen Van Vi who previously
b _occupied the post of Minister of Defence of South Vietnam.
: Tkhieu removed him f£rom his post for disorder and chaos in the
army’s financial affairs. The real reason, however, for Nguyen’
Van Vi’s retirement was the series of serious defeats that the
puppet army has suffered. From Nguyen Van Tkhieu’s viewpoint,
the military circles responded to this move with a speC1f1c
; reaction. We also had contacts with General Nguyen Van Vi which
allowed us to understand his polltlcal position. He thinks that 4
" the US will certainly suffer defeat in this war and that a war inj
i Vietnam is not the responsmblllty of the American Army. This is
: why Nguyen Van Vi is also coming out for the creation of a )
! coalition government in order to resolve the Vietnam issue
through peaceful negotiation between all of the political

factions of South Vietnam.
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Nguyen Van Vi is also coming out against Nixon’s PVietnamization"”

‘Iof the war. Such are the basic pelitical views of General Nguyen

‘Van Vi. We scored a great victory at the meeting with him; we
received his agreement to take part in'a coalition govermment to
resolve the Vietnam issue through peaceful negotiation between
all of the political factions of South Vietnam. Nguyen Van Vi

- 1also officially recognized the victories won by the Nationmal

hlberatlon Front of South Vletnam, i. @. our vzctozies.

: I have reported to you today on the'contactsﬁw1th allwof'
| these people so that you would know how the Politburo’s .
! ingtructions to win over these people to our slde is being

carried out.
The strong protest from their side is a result of a growth

of contradictions within Nguyen Van Tkhieu’s elique and of

" contradictions of Nixon’s "Vietnamization® of the war. We can

- use these contradictions to improve the situation in South
Vietnam and to resolve the issue in our favor. Their agreement .

to enter into a coalition government will preczeely go in our
favor. In addition to a resclution of the issue by military
means on the battlefields of South Vietpam, we have engaged in
contacts with several South Vietnamese political figures, who may
be able to join the ranks of a coalition government. &S a result
of these contacts we have gained an understanding of the
political views of these people and have expressed our point of
view on ways to resolve the Vietmam problem.

These contacts with people. who occupy high stations,
prominent military and political figures, ministers and senators
of ‘the upper and lower chambers of the Saigon parliament provzde
the bagis for making the following conclusions:

1. They are against the present regime of Nguyen Van
Tkhieu, considering that Nguyen Van Tkhieu’s cligque is
dictatorial, pro-fascist, rotten and not

3000167
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capable of carrying out the leadership of the country under the
present situation that has developed in South Vietnam. They also
think that if the US withdraws its troops from South Vietnam and
stops aiding the’ reglme, the government would ingtantly collapse.

© 2. The majority of them are against Nixon’s .
"Vietnamization® of the war, against the escalation of the
bombing of North. Vietnam, and think that Nixon does not want to
resolve the Vietnam issue or the Indochina issue as a whole.

3. They consider that the National Liberation Front has

. recently scored enormous victories on the military, political and

diplomatic fronts. They recognize that on the military front we
were able to win over extensive heavily populated regions. They
also recognize the National Liberation Front’s great success with
the strengthening of the army, the increase in its combat ability
and leadership level, the improvement in cooperation between the
branches of gervice and many other areas.

We also tried to win over to our side the category of people
from the provinces and many towns who occupy less important
positions in the state apparatus. It is possible to say that

" they are also ready to aid in the creation of a coalition

government. They are also against the policy of
sVietnamization®, -against Nguyen Van Tkhieu’s cligue and want to
resolve the Vietnamese issue on the basis of a cessation of war.
Thus, on the orders of the Politburo we have been preparing
to conduct meetings with various categories of the South
Vietnamese population, aimed at resolving the South Vietnamese
issue through peaceful negotiations between all of the political

factions of South Vietnam. Ag a result of the contacts that have
taken place to win thege people over to our side, conditiong have

egented themsgelves so that these e will b e to aid us
in_the creation of a coalition government and in the gverthrow of

Nguven Van Tkhieu’s dictatorial regime We see that we have

chosen the correct course. This is also clearly indicated in the
resolutions of the 23rd Plenum of the Central Committee.

In other wordg, we should win these people over to our side,
and bring them into the coalition government so that we
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IE we are successful :.n resolvmg these igsues, we will be
concluding a mammoth case on-which we will again report to the
Po0litburo so that you are well informed omn these isgsues.and have
formed a plan of action for mission completion. Thanks to these
meetings, we are able to know who supports us and who iz against
us in South Vietnam. We have also worked out a mew plan for the
realization of our new intentions in South Vietnam and.now know
which representatives of the present South Vietnamese power
apparatus are in favor of the war.

The meetings and contacts which we inztlated were conducted
with complete equality of rights and helped us win over
representatlves of all strata of South Vietnamese gociety to our
side. This is our grandest victory, won in the course of these

" contacts w1th the alm of - resolving the Vietnamese issue.

Thu thanksg to thege contac ngd v h _part of

oali overnmen ’

In addition: to the mllztary igsues, this. is one of the
problems we are trying to resolve. We are therefore conducting
these meetings and contacts directed at the resolution of :
political and diplomatic problems.

With the goal of realizing these aims, the Supreme Command,
in conjunction with the Governmental Counc11 of Defense, has
developed directives for the army to prepare and conduct the *Ba
Be“ plan, Whlch is scheduled to he executed in Octdber. The ®"Ba
Be ! o} - oy _of goals. Four

training agd
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are well armed. Earlier, these peopie worked in the governing
apparatus of South Vietnam. After the August revolution, during
the period of the war of resistance against the French colonials,
we left these people behind. They actively worked.for the enemy
and subsequently joined various organs of the Saigon governing
apparatus. We trained and armed them well to carry out the “Ba
Be" plan before they left for South Vietnam.

. The basic aims of the ®Ba Be® plan:

- Blimination of all people who are resistant and oppose Our
course and of those who occupy leadership positions at the
province-district level and above; a full paralysis of the will
of such people.

- Conduct of activities to carry out a disruption of the
Saigon governing apparatus at the province level and below with -
the goal of a subsequent replacement of this apparatus with new
people. We are attentively observing those people who oppose us
and our decisiod with regards to this group must be very serious
and £irm:. This matter has an important place in the execution cf
the "Ba Be" plan. We must have lists and full dossiers on these

' people beforehand in order to conduct the preparatory training to
quickly do away with them and disrupt their routine.

- Search for and acquire materials which testify to crimes
by Americans and their puppets with regard to the Vietnamese
people, so that during opportune comnditions, we can accuse them
of committing: these crimes by publlshlng the materials.

These are the three basie missions for the people who were
dispatched for eXecution of the ®"Ba Be® plan, As for the time of

ompletion, it is generally believed that it will be executed
gimultaneougly with the TS-6 plan (Chvong Shon-6)°, i.e. in the
month of October. This plan must be executed well in order to
influence the course of the Paris Peace talks on Vietnam as well.
‘as the development of the situation in the near future. This is
very important task. Its outcome may help us make a more
successful advance on the front. We need to increase the pace of
development on the front to win great victories in a short span
of time. Therefore, the "Ba Be" plan ig already being executed
and we are contimuing to traip people to carry it out.

“Phe TS-6 plan is a VNA plan of military action in South Vietnam
with the main effort concentrated in the Hue region (GRU note).
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gjThe pace of the plan must be 1ncreased, We have to qulckiy move

%these people from North to South Vietnam in ozder to destroy a
qlarge quantity of enemy personnel . p other | 8. Lhe

: We must attract the neutral forcea to cur sxde, those wh0*~‘.
are fighting for national independence from the USA; those forces
vho earlier fought against the regime of Ngo Dinh Diem and now
fight against the reglmé of Nguyen Van Thieu. ' We must do
everything necessary 1n order to: successfully carry out -the "Ba
. Be™’'plan.

--Along. with that, we must work om the demnralizatzon of the .
puppet army on all fronts. Under good conditions; -such work will
lower the fighting spirit of the puppet army soldiers in the-
future and increase the number of servicemen who defect to.our
side. This is a.basic requlrement which helps' us ‘create the
conditions for revolts in the puppet army. We were faced wzth
thie matter after the v1ctory xn Quang Trl. ‘ .

. ; tually : ' 2 i

glong w;;g itg soldlegg,‘ However, to“increase>themeffect,hwe
announced that because of good use of propagandd, there was.am.
anti-military HPILSIBQ in the 56th Regiment. This is a new fOEM‘

of stlmulating anti- mllltary uprzslngs in the puppet axmy ..
1 . , . .

ove are ve eactionar P v‘ 3 W re o FQEQELJxE:nA

revo;utlgn, Therefore, applying propaganda amongst soldlers and
especially amongst the officer corps is difflcult and varled
demanding study from all sides
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and a creative approach in the choice of methods and means. ’
The brilliant results must be given their'due: results which
we in the propaganda organization recently achieved among the ,
High Command staff, right up to Saigon Army generals. E
" We had contacts and meetings with a number of officers. For !
example; with General Khoang Xuan Lam, the former 1st Regional
Corps Commander. He was very reactionary and spoke agaimst oux
revolution. After the defeat at Quang Tri, Thieu removed him,
and he began to make contact with us. At the meetings, Khoang
Xuan Lam told us--if it can be said this way--a pumber of his
views. - In his opinion, the Saigon puppet army will not be able
to execute misgions which the plan of "Vietnamization® of the war
places on the army. He believes that the revolutionary forces
will achieve wvictory and that the puppet army will not be able to
impede this.  The Thieu regime is a dictatorship, is pro-fascist,
and does not have the support of the pecple. These are some of
the basic tenets expressed by General-Lieutenant Khoang Xuan Lam.
' As for the closest person to the Thieu regime--General Ngo
Dinh Dzu--in meetings with us, he expressed the opinion that even
the 2nd Regional Corps will be lost and that the puppet army will
be unable at any cost to withstand us in this region, i.e. the
Tay Nguyen region. Thus, Dzu has expressed the game ideas that:
Khoang Xuan ‘Lam has. He also said that the puppet army will be:
unable to withstand us if the-Bmericans leave Vietnam. Ngo Dinh
Dzu sees an increase in insurgency and revolution in South
Vietnam, an increase in authorlty for the Nationmal Front for the
Liberation :0f South Vietnam, a rise in the level of our strategic
and tactical leadership as well as in the level of combat :
actions. Dzu understands that Nguyen Van Thieu is a bloody
dictator, .a fascist and that the regime he created is whclly
anti-democratic. . B
Thug, we see that these meetlngs with the generals are a
great victory for us and will be beneficial to us. In order to
successfully manage a resolution of the issues linked to
conducting propaganda work with the South Vietnamese Army
generals aimed at awakening their consciousness and winning tham
over to our side, )
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it is necessary to understand that the outcome of the comlng
battle depends upon the solution of these important issues. It
.8 necessary to attain a clear understanding among the generals
lhat the Thieu regime will never employ popular suppoxt -and
!cannot exist. Such are the fundamental issues whlch we should

-'esolve in the near future.

From the utterances of the generalﬁ set forth above, we see

zhat the situation is developing in a direction favorable to us.

+
i

'le can bring Plan "BA BE" into being, but for this we should

I axpand the net of communications and contacts with people who

will carry out Plan "BA BE," in orxder to obtain from them all
necessary materials. We. should likewise search for ways to’
establish connections with officers and officials of the Saigon
government. This matter occupies a significant place im the
implementation of Plan "BA BE." The Supreme Command and Ministry

" of State Security discussed all matters.related to successful

implementation of this plan and levied new tasks upon the
commands of the combat zones responsible for implementation of
this plan. We successfully inserted and deployed our forces in

" all regions and are now conducting the final work in oxrder to

complete preparatory measures for this Plan by September 30th of
this year. In comparison to other plans, the preparation of Plan
"BA BE" is developing well. This is the first time we are
implementing such a plan on the territory of South Vietnam. In
the course of its realization we will acguire experience which
can help us counter the designs of the enemy at the front.

The more savage the bombings and barrages of the enemy may"
become, the more victories we should grasp at the front, because
such victories will aid realization of Plan "BA BE.® We are
linking great hopes to the implementation of this plan, ‘
especially in accelerating the pace at which the offensive at the
front develops, of which I reported te you above. The favorable
development of the situation will be a huge and significant

.factor in the collapse of US military designs and of the puppets

at the front in South Vietnam. We must thwart the react;onary
and treacherous plans of the enemy; successful carrylng out of
Plan "BA BE" will indeed help us to grasp new victories. - These
victories will have great strategic significance in
implementation of Plans TS-6 and
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‘Plan S-6, which were topics above.

The goal of Plan "BA BE" is introduction of division into
the ranks of the enemy and lowering of his w111 to resist.
Successful 1mplementatlon of Plan "BA BE" will help us to attain
successes at the Paris negotiations on Vietnam. The nearer the
victory, the more clearly will appear the treacherous designs of
the Nixon-Kissidger-Laird clique, and likewise those 6f the
puppet government of Nguyen Van Thieu. Therefore implementation
of Plan “BA BE" will be a great step in the resolution of many
issues in the current gituation. Because of this, its -
significance is so great.

For successful realization of this plan we should as soon as
possible insert our forces, in order to begin implementation of
this plan in the month of October in accordance w1th indicated
deadlines. .

In the Paris negotiations on Vietnam we have met with a
gseries of difficulties in recent days. These difficulties are
explained by the fact that Nixon being stubborn as before and is
trying above all to achieve a solution of the military issue and

"only then to move to settlement of political issues, which will
exercise great influence on the course of development of the
contemporary Situation in Vietnam. As a result of exchanging
opinions in private meetings with Kissinger--Nixon’s advisor--
Kissinger, we understood that Nixon as before is being stubbora
on gettling the situation which is developing today in Vietnam.
To attain settlement we should conduct careful preparation to
counter Nixon’s designs. Let him understand: if he does not
renounce this war, then precisely the US will suffer defeat in
it. However, Nixon is balng stubborn in continuing the
aggregsive war and maintaining the status quo. That is why we
think, that with the US taking such a position, peaceful solution
of the Vietnam issue is not possible. We see that the US
obstinately continues aggression, while Nguyen Van Thieu as
before holds to his insolent position. That is why we are
resolved to carry out Plan "BA BE," the realization of which will
be a turning point in the settlement of the situation at the
front.

This would be our first military thrust on the front aimed
at resolving-the complicated political issue at the present
stage. 4

I) Plan §-6 -- Plan for mllltary operations in the Saigon region
(footnote of the GRU)
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Until this, the Supreme Command had never tried working out a
plan similar to ‘the plan "Ba Be”. .
Over the course of ¢ rec cute
plan, During this time, we gathered everyone who should take
part in its realization, and then conducted a thorough training
of them. The intelligence directorate of the M;nlstry of
National Defense and the Ministry of State Security conducted the
training of these people. We well understand that the better the
training of these people is conducted, the fewer the logses we
will suffer and the faster we will be able to attain execution of
this plan. . .
.Thus, once again evaluating the plan "Ba Be", the thorough
training which is now going on, and which will be realized
jointly with the plan TS-6 im October, it can be 8aid that its
successful ‘realization will asgist us to attain -new great

- victories at the Paris negotiations on Vietmam. These are very

serious issues which we must devote constant attention to.
Yesterday the State Defense Council directed the Supreme
Command to conduct a conference for the cadres respongible for

" training and carrying out this plan. At this conference, the
- forms, means and methods were stated, which were worked out

according to the organs and confirmed at a Politburc session.

We can now say that we have achieved great successes and we
are convinced that this plan will be realized. Presently, this
plan is being carried out. We have already succeeded in
Lnsertlng a portion of ocur comrades into South Vietnamese
zerritory. We succeeded with difficulty in certain areas and. for
this we had to procure all possible means. In other areas, this
operation was carried out more successfully, and now our people
are occupying stable pogsitions in the puppet governing apparatus.

Dear Comrades! In summing up what is stated above, it can
be said that we are going in the right direction in carrying out
our plansg, especially the plans TS-6 and "Ba Be", and also in
training for the realization of our plan S-6, the realization of
which is slated for the mear future.
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In addition to these issues, in accordance with the .
instructions from the Politburo, I will also rgport to you today
on American POWs captured on the various frontd of Indochima.

The work with American prisoners of war has always- been

. within the field of vision of the Politburo and has been

reflected in its decisions, such as decision No. 21 DST dated 23
Mar 71, and decision No. 21 E dated 4 Apr 72. Both of these
decisions concern the issues of exploiting these American

POWs captured during the war. This disturbs the public opinicn
of the whole world and of the US. There are various thoughts on

the American POW issue. Some of these are correct, othersg
are not, but even among us there are a number of comrades whose

opinions differ from the opinion of the Politburo. These
comrades. are not taking into consideration the particulars of the

developing situation nor the inherent difficulties in their
judgements. These oplnlcns harm us in our sSearch for methods

_of resolving the American POW issue.

Dear comrades! The American POW issue is very complex. The
peoples of the world [world opinion]. and the peoples of our
fraternal socialist nations [allied popular opinion] as well as
our [people] want to know the exact number of POWs located in
North Vietnam. Allow me to inform you specifically on this
matter. We have captured a very large number of American POWs on
the fronts of Indochina since the time that the US introduced
their troops into Vietnam, escalated the air war against North
Vietnam, and expanded the total scope of their aggression by
spreading this aggression onto the territories of Laos:-and
Cambodia. At first, the pumber of American POWs was not large
and world public opinion paid little attention to them. The
number of American POWs in North Vietnam grew day by day after S
Aug 6% when the US imperialists started massive air bombing and
off-shore bombardment by the 7th fleet of the territory of No:rth
Vietnam, and after having expanded their aggression onto the
territories of Laos and Cambodia. The number of American POWs in
the DRV has not been made public to this day. 'We have kept this
figure gsecret. At today’s Politburo gession, T will report to
you, Comrades, the exact number of American POWsS.
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The total number of American POWs captured to date om the
fronts of Indochina, i.e. in North Vietnam, -South Vietnam, Laos
and -Cambodia, comprises 1205 people. Of them, 671 people were
captured in North Vietnam and 143 aviators [were captured] in
South Vietnam. This means the total number of aviators, and
diversionists [special operatioms] (American advisors on
diversionary ships and divers), captured om the territories of
North and South Vietnam comprises 814 people. 1In additiom, f£rom
other categories of American servicemen in Indochina, we have
captured 391 people, including: 283 in South Vietmam, 65 im
Cambodia and 42 in Laos; Bl4 and 391 comprise 1205 people.

dere is more data on the 1205 POWs.

We have captured 624 American aviators inm North. Vietmam, to
include 7 colonels, 85 lleutenant colonels, i83 majors, i. e. the
. Navy :

__§_Q§g2;_. The 624 American av;ators anludeMB astronauts,*iqe.

‘ three pecple who have completed the necessary training for space

flight, for instance, Jim Katlo, who was captured in the vicinity
of Hanoi. This figure also includes 15 US Air Force aces having
more than 4000 flight hours each: Norman Klarvisto, Karmet, Jim

Intist Shasht and others. This is the specific data on American

'aviators captured in North vletnam

Among the other 47 prisoners captured in North Vietnam,
there are 36 advisors of dlver510nary detachments who were
inserted in the border region between the DRV and Laos; lone
diversionists who were conducting reconnaissance of our main
transportation routes from helicopters and reconnaissance ships;
and several seamen who abandoned their .ships that we damaged and
whom we picked up. Therefore the figures 624 and 47 add up to

671.

In South Vietnam we have captured 143 US aircrew members,
malniy hellcopter avzators and gome jet aviators. .

Among the 391 Amerlcan POWs captured im South Vietnam, Laos
and Cambodia, we have 9 colonels, 19 lieutenant colonels and 52
majors. The remaining officers are captain and below,

"y
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as well as’ American enlisted soldiers.

Thus in summary, I want to remind you agafn that the 1205 | |
American POWs presently in prisons of North Vietnam imclude:

- §24 aviators captured in North Vietnam;
"'~ 143 aviators captured.in South Vietnam;

- 47 diversionists and other American servicemen captured in |
North Vietnam; |

- 391 American gervicemen of other categories, which
includes 283 captured in South Vietnam, 65 in Cambodia, and 43 in

Laos. :

All of them are presently in prisons in North Vietnam.
Currently we have 11 prisons where American POWs are held. We
"used to have 4 large prisonsg, however after the American attemdt
to free their POWs from Ha Tay [Son Tay] we expanded this numbar

to 11. Each prison holds approximately 100 POWs.

Seven Air Force colonels captured in North Vietnam and nine
colonels of various branches of service captured in South
Vietnam, Laos and Cambodia (16 officers in all) are being held
together; through them, we are attempting to gain an
understanding of the current situation which has developed in the
American Army, extract the material and information we need, and

determine ‘our position toward them.

We are also holding 104 American lieutenant colonels in one
location and are attempting to extract informationm - secret
information about troop dispositions and information concerming
the US Defense Department from them.

e g o e s St

o et

e et

We have 235 majors concentrated in two locations.

Thus we have dedicated special prisons for senior officers
of the American Army: one for colonels, one. for lieutenant ,
colonels and two for majors. The rest of the POWs, captains and |
below, were placed in other prisons. ;

A few words about the political views and atticudes of
American POWs.

Théfe are 368 POWs who have progressive attitudes.
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They understand very well that this war is unjust and unpopular
on their part. They condemn the American adiministration and

@xpress a strong protest agaxnst this war. Eg__ii;,bg;gglg*;g

Vie are carrylng out work thh this category of POWS to explazn to
them the aggressive pnature of the war being conducted by the
Mixon admlnlstratlon and the mature of the Nguyen Van Thieu
regime, and also to make them understand the unjust character of
this war which is inflicting great damage on the American people.
One can assert that this group.of POWs ig progressive in thelr
political views.

There are 372 o th POWS wh h 1 i W i.e. their
political outlook is not full . ggive, ye 00
reactionary. we plalnly see that they still do not clearly

" understand the role of the American admlnlstratlon in unleashing

the aggressive war in Indochina.

The remainder of the POWs hold reactionary views. In spite
of the work carried on to explain to them the real state of

"=hings, thiey have not changed their reactiomary views.

The following is a -summation:

~-- 372 POWs hold neutral pogitions:

-~ 465 POWs hold reactionary viewg.

All the POWs among the senior officers hold reactionary
views, i.e. they do not condemn Nixon, they'do not protest his
policies, and they distort our course of actzon. We understand
that these officers come from rich families. Their reactionary
views are precisely a result of this.

We wel understand that the American POW i hi reaé

gsignificance for the resolution of the South Vietnamese problem. .
We must continue propagandistic and educational work with the
American POWs, leading to their understanding
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of the nmature of the aggressive war which the US is carrving out
in Vietnam, as well as the senseless obstinateness of Nixon,

which only delays the release of POWs and their return to thei:
homeland. Soon we will free several POWs in order to put pressure
on_the Nixon-adminigtration, observe his reaction and the
reaction of the American public, as well as to demonstrate our
good intentions in this matter.

Thus, the 1205 American POWs captured on the fronts of
Indochina (in North and South Vietnam, Laos and Cambodia),
presently kept in prlsons in North Vietnam represent a
significant force in the American army, a basic part of which is
made up of American aviators.

The large number of American aviators imprisoned during the
time of Johnson and Nixon inflicted huge damage on the US Air
Force. This should caugse the US government and Nixon himself ¢
reflect. - We intend to resolve the Bmerican POW igsue in the

_following manner:

‘L. The US govermment must demonstrate compliance, i.e. a
cease fire and the removal of Nguyen Van Thieu, and then both
gides can begin discussing the matter of returning POWs to the
Nixon government.-

2. While the American side is resolving the above-mentioned
problema, we can free geveral more aviators f£rom the number whod
are progre581vely inclined. Nixon should not hinder the return of
these aviators to .their homeland and not undertake any
digciplinary measures toward them.

3. Nixon must compensate North Vietnam for the great damage
inflicted on it by this destructive war.

Here then are the principles on the basis of which we may
resolve the American POW issue. However, Nixon continues to
regist resolving the Vietnamese question, thereby delaying
the resolution of the American POW issue.

I have reported these specific figures and fundamental

agpects of the American POW igssue to the Politburo. But we also
have these comrades who do not understand this problem correctly.
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It is necessary to resolve this issue taking into account™

sef:tling -the military and the political dspects of the . .
Vietpamese problem. If we take a path of concegsion toward
That is why

'Aggricans and re;gage POWg, then we wgglg loge much.
this isgsue

our point of view on this issue remaing the same:
mu3t be resolved on the basisg of military and political

agspoects of settlement.

olding 1205 POWs creates certain difficulties for us, but
more importantly, the loss of 1205 POWs, particularly aviators,
is a great detriment to the American Army, particularly the US
Air Force. At the same time, we were able to collect data about
American weapons and also valuable scientific materials about the
US Army, for instance, material on how to use different types of
weaponry, tactical/technical characteristics of aircraft, Air
Force directives, as well as materials about other types of
armament of the US Army. We have been able to uncover US
intentionsg in the international arena and on a number of other

" issues which are related to war in Indochina.

That is why we are convinced that our position concerning
POWs has and continues to be correce. If we could successfully
resolve the POW issue, then the other issues would not exert any
influence<on our policy toward the US. That is why we are now
concentrating on the successful resolution of this problem on the
collection and study of materials from interrogations of American
aviators who were shot down over North Vietnam and American :
scientists captured in this war, particularly RAir Force
specialists, as well as scientists in other technical areas.
Their loss is a major liability for the American Army, because in
no other war have there been so many captured Americans as there

are in this war of aggression.

The 1205 American POWs kept in the prisons of North
Vietnam represent a large number. For now, we have officially

published a list of only 368 POWs. The rest are not
acknowledged. The US governmment is aware of this, but they do
not know the exact number of POWs, or they perhaps only assume an

approximate number based on their losses. Therefore in
accordance with the instructions from the Politburo, we are

keeping the number of POWs secret.

He contlnue to collect and.study materials - from
interrogations
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of POWs in order to have a ‘basis in specific circumstances to
expose US designs in the Indochina war of aggression as well as
in other matters. Collection and study of these materials has

- provided us great assigtance in studying the scientific

discoveries of the US, in develggzng methods to ggg ;g;

ont ora weaponsg, including chemical, which hav flicted

reat harm vpon i his war

I reported to the Politburo several fundamental aspects
related to the matter of American POWs, pamely: concerning the
policy we are implementing on this matter, I gave the specific
number of American POWs seized in North Vietnam, South Vietnam,
Cambodia and Laos.

We still have among us Comradeés who think: why do we keep
these POWs and not take advantage of the Nixon proposals? Do we
really want to.resolve thig matter after all? It needs to be
noted that such a point of view is profoundly mistaken. This is
not political bargaining but rather a key condition and serious

"argument for successful resolution of the Vietnam problem. That

is why the matter of the American POWs has great sigmificapce in
exposing Nixon‘s designs in this aggressive war in Vietnam. We
are completely unanimous in this matter and condemn
individualistic mistaken views current among us on this matter.
We f£irmly hold to our position -- when the American government

-regsolves the political and military igssues on all three fronts of

Indochina, -we will set free all American POWs. We consider this
a very correct course.

Dear Comradesl

I have reported the following matters to Politburo sessions:
the course of our party on.the general offensive conducted in
South Vietnam from March 30th to the present; our errors and
deficiencies in the offepsive and summing up results of the
offensive in South Vietnam, Laos and Cambodia; positive and
negative aspects of the offensive; immediate plans of the enemy
and our operations; analysis of errors permitted in strategic and
tactical leadership; our contacts with political figures of South
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Vietnam from the Saigon regime; the matter of American POWs,
captured on the three fronts of Indochina.

" Today on assignment of the Supreme Ccmmand, the State .
Defiense Council and the Military Committee of the Politburo,
reported to you on these matters so that the Politburo could

study these problems, could express its opinion on them, and set
o"th forms and methods fcr thELI x:esolut:.on° §ggg_;ﬁgﬁ§§g;g

¢ ': ’ 54 4
! 1112& 2 men, 2 0 f whi

W
zietngg and 50.000 to_Laog and Cambodia,

1 4 -

Summing up this report it is necessary to say that I have
touched on the fundamental features of the situation which has
developed in South Vietnam, on our difficulties and successes,

. and also on the difficulties existing for the ememy. I set out
our plans’ and our course, and also illuminated a series of
matters which the Politburo assigned to the State Defense Counc11
and Supreme Command. At o] p ion shal
forth matters touching upon the present situation in Laos ang
Cambodia and views on its development.

Presently, the situation is turning out quite favorably.
The peoples of South Vietnam, Laos and Cambodia have decisively
frustrated the plan for "Vietnamization® of the war and identical
plans being implemented in Laos and Cambodia. We hold high the
-invincible banner of Marxism-Leninism! ' )

We are carrylng out the precepts of Ho Chi Minh. The war of
resistance against American imperialists for the salvation of the
Fatherland will yet be stubborn and hard, yet we will definitely
grasp victory. We will decisively frustrate the plans of Nixon
or anyone who takes his place and continues the aggressive war!

The course of our party is assuredly correct. Our people
are heroic S
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people. OQur forces are heroic forces!

The three countries of Indochina, closely united one with
another, will fight to the last drop of blood for the freedom and
independence of their Fatherlands. The Vietndmese people will
fully carry out its internmational duty toward the fraternal
peoples of Laos and Cambodia!

_ To the current Segsion of the Politburo I wish successful
work. I have completed the presentation of the report.

it .
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ARMED FORCES GENERAL STAFF OF THE U.S.S.R . - i
CENTRAL INTELLIGENCE ADMINISTRATION [GRU] .

REFORT

by 'Hoéng Anya, Central Committee Secretary,
Vietnamese Workers Party
' at .
20th Plenary Sessiocn of the Central Committee, VWP
End of December 1970, Early January 1871

(Tz'ansiatiaxz from Vietnamese)

Moscow = 1971

[in rectangular .stamp on this and all subsequent pages:]
PUBLICATION RIGHTS DENIED

Camrades!

Today, at the 20th Plenary Session of the Central Commitbee
of our Party, in the name of the Politburo and Secretariat of
the Central Committee, I am reporting to you regarding the basic
features of our activities in 1970, over the period that extends
from the 18th Plenary Session of the Central Committee of the
Vietnamese Workers Party [CC VWP] until now.

, At this Plenary Sessicn an assessment will be given of our
victories in 1970. The past year was of enormous historical
significance for eur country, both in the North and in the
South,' The Politburc met several times at the end of last
year in order to analyze the situation aver the preceding
pericd. At these sessions it wes noted that all cur successes
are the result of a correct Party policy. At the 18th, 1Sth,
end now at the 20th Plemary Sessicns of the CC VWP repeated
emphasis was placed on the guiding role of the Party in the life
&n@ struggle of our people. Our people developed a patzictic
spirit in 1970, continuing with great enthusiasm to carry out -
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the socialist revelution in Socuth Vietnam, Lacs and Cambodia.
The major victories achieved in all these theaters of military
action are a service of our Party, our people. Over the past
year we have achieved great successes in ecgnomics and other
areas.

Along with this, at the 20tk Plemary Session it will be .
necessary for us to discuss important issues related to our
long-term activities, and reach decisions on these issues. As
before, the main item of our activity must be cazrying cut
revolutien im both parts of cur country. At the same time, a
great deal of attention must be given to the revolutions in
Cambodia and Laocs. In my report I will deal with problems such
as :

= the'situation in the party

- the situation in South Vietnam, Laos and Cambodia

= preparation for the next, Fourth VWP Congress.

. .In 1970 we attained many glorious victories and achieved
significant successes in issues related to administering the
building of socialism in the North, and carrying out revolution

in the Scuth. The igsue.related te the guiding role and
activity of the Party in current conditions was one of the
central ones during the past year. Much attention was given to
it at the 1Bth and 19th Plenmary Sessions of the CC VWP. It must
be noted that a series of important issues in this plan was
decided in previous Plenary Sessions, but some issues remained
ux_xrasolw‘red. At thig Plemary Session we are continuing the

- discussion of all questions relating to the tasks and role of
the Party in the current stage of revolutionaxry develeopment in
the North and South of our country. At this Plenary Sessiom it
will also bg necessary for us te plan measures directed toward
strengt;hening' the guiding role of the Party, increasing its
authority among the people, developing plans for long-term
economiC reconstruction in the D.R.V. and evelviag the
revolutionary struggle in Seouth Vietnam.

In the past year of our Party it was necessary to decide
cocaplex issues of an econcmic, political and military nature.
After Comrade Ho Chi Minh’s death, many difficult problems
demanding resolution presented themselves to our party’s
leadership. Demonstrating collective leadership, our comrades

from the Politbureo directed their efforts at solving these
problems. . .

. In 1970 we carried out very large-scale and important work,
politically, -militarily and diplomatically. In this regard the
solidia_fication of our Party’s cadres was given particular
attention, since this 'is a pledge and necessary condition for
working ocut a correct policy and putting it into practice at the
appropriate time. Overall in the past year we were successful -
in giving comprehensive attention to all party organizations, -
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indicating deficiencies to them in a timely way. This resulted

. in a qualitative improvement im party ranks. There was
: significant strengtheming in the ranks of our cadre .workers_m;c
_ boldly carried the Party’s ideas to the masses. :

TR

Along with this, it must be mentioned that of late in many
Party organizatiens, Perty cells and even in the central
apparatus, we observe, as before, disorder g,n@ lack of unity,
although to a certain extent these have diminished. In 1971 we

" will have to give considerable effort to restoring full unity in

the Party. In order to achieve this, it must be ocur ceamstant
coricern te increase the vigilance of all Party members. The
unity issue in the Party, as before, will be one of the most
important in the activities of all Party orpanizations. Without
this unity, we will not have the strength te resolve any of the
iggues before us. If there is no unity inm the central ergans,
then there will be no unity locally. And viee versa: the
situation in lower-level Party organizaticns will have an-.

- influence on the central apparatus,

The contradictions that we have had from as far back as the
i8th Plenary Session of the CC VWP have been manifested in a
great variety of ways, and have a negative effect on our

- economice, politieal and military courses. Even at the 18th

Plenary Session of the CC VWP, many comrades were not in

" ag-eement with the policy eof our Perty, and some of them

centinue to hold to their own positions. Therefore, at this
Plemary Session it will be necessary for us to take active
measures to eliminate all contradictions that still exist.

. It is all the more necessary that we eliminate existing
contradictions in that during its forty-year history our party

has always been united, and this unity was what secured all our .

victories. If we wish to continue to be victoriocus and achieve
still further successes, we must restore full unity in the

Party.

Today,. at the 20th Plenary Sessiem of the CC VWP, the

' matter of Party unity is before us with particular urgency. We

mist :gesolve it in Leninist fashion. 1In ozder teo eliminate
ccnfl:.cl;ing cpinions, it is essential to strengthen the
collective leadership. Our Party is the ruling party and it

; possesses all the conditions to inculcate a single correct
 couxrse. We are moving along the path of building scecialism in
. the North and carrying out revolution in the Souch. Therefore,

I must again repeat that the Party unity issue is an issue of
first importance,-

A number of comrades even in previous Plenary Sessions
wpressed disagresement with our pelicy on various issues: the
role of the Party, forms and methods of Party work, and sc on.
However, under current conditions the issve of the Party’s
leading role cannot and cught not be discussed. From now on w
should direct our efforts toward increasing the Party’s
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aut’hérity among the masses. This will also serve the cause of
strengthening unity within the Party. .

In 1970 we had gome major victories in milicary, political
and diplomatic relations. .We significantly strengthened Party
ranks f£rom the bottom upwards. Our line in the area of-
ideological development is the correéct eme, and it fully accords
with the decisiens made at che 3rd Congress. We may make bold
ko say that the 30th Plenary Session of the CC VWP is being
conducted in a situation where our Party has been significantly
strengthened in qualitative and organizational terms.

Along with this, there still exist forces that are bringing
dissent into our ranks, attempting to deflect the Party Erom the
true path. We must wage a decisive fight agaimst thenm,
increasing discipline and vigilance by every possible means in
the Party, and increasing communist' self-knowledge. We must
root out any growths of opportunism, and destroy this harmful
ideclogy in our Party. Restoration of Party unity will in large
measure depend on eliminating all opportunistic tendencies. We
have made good studies of examples of the fight against
epportunism, since in every Parcy there is a stage at which
opportunistiec forces appear. These forces strive to break the
unity in the Party, and force it to depart from the correct
path. We have comrades whe do not see opportunism ags anything
‘that threatens the Party. They consider that this is normal
diversity of opinion, characteristic of any Party. This is a
"very superficial and dangerous point of view which can cause us
to deviate seriocusly if it is not headed off in time. In shoret,
we must purge the Party of everything that interferes with its
carrying out its duties,

(At present, the industrialization of the economy is a large
and important task that is before us. If we achieve a
restoration of Party unity, then we will carry out this task.
We must determine in specific terms who is straying in regard to
what, who is not in agreement with our general line regarding
what, in order to determine the correct measures to combat all
the deviations. We must know exactly who is daring to criticize
our line, and decisively rebuff these individuals.

Along with chis, we should check on how those who
constantly subject our line to criticism are dealing with their
own direct responsibilities, How are they providing leadership
in the areas of economics, politics, and on the diplomatic
front? Do they have sufficient grounds for the criticism

directed at us? Are they acting in accord with the principles
of Marxzism-Leninism?

While rebuffing those that heap criticism on us, it is
necessary to emphasize that our basic policy is correct.
However, we, like all people, may permit mistakes. But these
mistakes must be analyzed and eliminated, and we must not just
occupy ourselves with criticizing them. These mistakes are notr
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so major that they could have an effect on the entirety of our

. course. - They are of a private nature, they are natural. For

. example, we permitted a series of errors in administering
. agricultural cooperatives. But overzll, the cooperative
. movement in the country is developing normally; certain

successes have been achieved in agriculture. We noted the .
mistakes in time and plammed a specific path toward eliminating
them. Thus, we make note of permissible errors and strive to
prevent their repetition. Why do scme comrades say that we are
pursuing an incorrect policy in agriculture?

Marxism teaches that agricultural collectivizatiom is an
extremely important condition for develcpment of & socialist
eccnomy. In any country where this issue is given little
attention, there will be great difficuleties in the economy. Aand
in ocur country, where colonialists left us a heritage of a
backward economy, this matter is particularly importamt. With

‘all ocur effort we must develop agriculture, placing it om a

collective bagig. It will be necessary te develop a strong

network of ecooperatives in the entire territory of South
Vietnam. '

... The cooperatives need to be provided with tecknolegy, which &
will ensure they will deyelop successfully. Our leadership is

iving a great deal of attention te issues 0f cooperative
farming, and is continuing to seek ways to boost agriculture.
At the present time, cocperatives have been created in 78.8% of
the farming regions. of the DRV. '

Agriculture has enormous significance in our country,
because it supplies food to the North vVietnamese population and
to the patriotic ferces of South Vietnam. In additiem, we must
do our intermational duty by helping patriotic forces in Laos
and Cambodia, which alsc implies large expenditures. Therefore,
administracion of agriculture om the part of the Party must be
precise, logical and comprehensive, :

. Many comrades do not understanéd this, and criticize ocur
policy in the area of agriculture. They criticize us in general
terms, and do not get specific about what mistakes have been
permtted dnd how they ars to be corrected. I wish once again
to repeat that no one is insured against making mistakes. 1In a
number,9f instances we permitted failures, and in some areas not
everything is working out favorably with cooperative farming.

We know about the mistakes that have been allowed to happen, and
we are taking measures to correct them in a timely way. We have
been occupied with. agricultural cocperatives for a long time. A
lot of attention was devoted to them at the 15th, 16th and 17th
Plenary Sessions of the €C VWP. The D.R.V. is a major
rear-echelen area for South Vietnam; therefore, development of

agriculture in the North will de much to promote our successes
in the South. .

v
S NN

1

We would have had even more difficulties if it were not for

5000189

ot e
By e ot S P




c06548527

T R 4 R

me 2T G LYY EN [(5.y ' @007/025
o

the help from brotherly socialist countries, which permits us
successfully to restore agriculture.

The Politburc and Secretariat are unflagging in their
efforts to monitor the work of all the organizations that relate
to agriculture. They have given instructioms to scientific
erganizationz to actively participate in boosting agrieulture.

Once again I wish to emphasize that the administration of
the Party by the Pelitburc and Central Committee is correct.
Qur Party is a Marxist one, and therefore we are capable of
noting, analyzing, admitting and correcting our mistakes. We do
not fear our errors; we fear something else: division in the
Party. At present there is a dispute abeut whether our Party’s
course is correct or net.

Overall we are providing corract guidance to the aconomy,

‘and are correctly comducting external and intermal policy. But

our cemrades still have deficieneies in their working methods,
which creates certain difficulties for us., These difficulties,
however, are not insurmountable., The mistakes, in the main, are
not crucial ones. The matter of mistakes and inadequacies is
very important, and we must discuss it in detail, in order to
select the correct path toward eliminating all deficiencies.

. For a long time many camrades have been speaking out
against our basic policy in agriculture. As a result of this, a
struggle is .going on constantly in our Party leadership. .This

‘started as far back as the 17th Planary Session, continued in

the 18th, and reached its height in the 19th Plenary Session of :
the CC VWP. i

. 0f those present here, many cemrades are not in agreement
with our policy. What dc they wanc? What route do they wish to
go? How to resolve the growing problems? We consider that this
ig facticnal, revisionist activity.

. In the forty years of our Party’s history, there have never
been such strong disagreements. We are the ruling party, and in
order to carry out our functions in administering the national
masses, we must above all be united.

In 1970 the Politburo undertook the major task of ccmbating
opportunism and other deviations, against all the opponents of
our economic and military policy. We feel that our military
policy in South Vietnam is absolutely correct. Our course in
Laos and Cambodia is also correct.

This conclusion is based on an analysis of conditions. 1€
we conduct a-fight only in South Vietnam, we will encounter
great difficulties.  The more than one-million-man-strong army
of the American aggressors and their stooges is a large force,
and dealing with it will not be all that easy. All the more
since all of this force is concentrated in one place - South
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Vietnam. We are experiencing great difficulties at the fronts,
and opportunism in the military leadership 1s going to compound
those difficulties. .

Revolution in South Vietnam is currently entering its final
stage, the stage of military victory. We must not overestimate
the enemy’s. forces, but we have no right to underestimate them.
The enemy's forces are very large and in a military sense we are,
weaker than they. Therefore we must carry out a people’s war
strateqy. Our military forces are not large; we have
insufficient modern weapons to fight a war effectively.
Meanwhile, the U.S.A. has enormous military and economic
potential. Therefore, we must not £ight cpen_ba;tles.agaa.gst
the enemy’s strong army. However, we are achieving victories,
and these wictories are the result of a struggle by the entire
peogle.

Along with thig, in order te achieve victory at the frent,
we must accompany our armed struggle with a diplomatic struggle.
We must recall the words of Ho Chi Minh: °We must achieve
complete victory over the American aggressors.® This precept of
our leader ecan be carried out only when there is unity in the
party. Therefore, we severely judge all opportumists whao
interfere with cur moving toward victory.

We severely judge those who intend to solve the Vietnamese
prekilem enly militerily, who wish to invade South Vietnam with
an army 2,000,000 strong and fight there without interruption.
Do we have enough human resocurces? Yes, but we do not have a
necessity to create such large-scale military forces in order to
solve the Vietnamesze problem militarily.

‘We meed to remember that we have alrsady horne significant
personnel losses, and that we are constantly losing people.
Therefore, we ask all those who are criticizing our policy: do
you want still greater personnel losses?

We are obligated to, and we must, carrxy out Ho Chi Minh’s
precept. But we will have to de this nobt in an unthinking
manner, and not allowing buge personnel lossés. We must
consiider three forms of struggle: militazy, political an
diplomatic. :

Of course, inm South Vietnam we do have the option of
concentrating @ large number of divisions in more important
- Ssectors and surrounding the enemy in those areas. But does it
make sense to do this, when the enemy has enormous firepower?
No. fThe lives of our warriors are dear to us. We must analyze
with the greatest care and weigh every step. Once again I
emphasize that our military policy is correct.

_But what do the opportunists want? They wish to introduce 3
foreign troops onto our territory® and move along with them to '
cccupy¥ Lao’ and free South Vietnam. But we cannot and we ought.
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not to go this route, as this policy will result in unheard-of
Lesses for us.

Our victories are g-eat ones. But we must not forget that
these victories cost us a great dezl. The military aspect of
the struggle is very important, But we will be on an incorrect

- course if we overestimate it, resulting in renewed personnel
losses. If you recall, during the Tet offensive and the general
uprising in January-February 1968, we lost about 100,000 pecple.
And if we organize such offensives twice each year, then how
many people will we lose?

Therefore, we must not try to break the enemy with a single
blow. It is necessary to conduct a lengthy conflict, exhausting
the enemy‘s’ forces, destroying him piece by piece. Similtaneocus
with this, we are required to activate a struggle on the
political and diplomatic froncs.

Such is eur peint of view on the military issue., If we are
not united on this matter, then we will not be victoriocus. Can
it be that our militdry policy is not understandable to some
conrades? In that case, we ask them to think over this policy
once again, and they will understand that our military policy is

: co§;ect. We can be proud that we are carrying out such a
policy. . .

Despita the fact that we did not mount any major cffensives
, in 1970, we did succeed in achieving large victories, destroying
§ significant numbers of the enemy. Along with this, we aveoided
; large losses on our side. - This is alsoc a great victory for our
strategic policy. '

Now, another matter. When we published the names of 368
American pilots who were shot down and taken captive in the
territory of the D.R.V., the opportunists began saying that this
was a concession to the Americans. This is not so. 'This was no
concession, but rather z blow to Nixon in the political gense.
By this means we achieved a let. The opportunists alse say that
we are moving teoward concessions to the Americans and toward
negotiations in Paris. This is also net true. Our course in
the negotiations is the right one. :

-t T

Thus, overall we are pursuing the correct line, although we
have permitted scme mistakes to be made. But the opportunistic
political factieon is grasping at these small mistakes in order
Lo show that the whole policy of our Party is errcneocus. Its
members say that we fear difficulties and losses. This is not
so. We do not fear difficulties and losses, but ane other thing
must be allowed for - our people already have been conducting
continuoug armed confliet for 25 years. During that time, very
many people have perished. If we truly feared difficulties and
losses, as the opportunists maintaizn, we would not have started
an armed conflict against the Americans. But one must see the
connection between the victories and the losses, and ebjectively
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assess the situation.

i Naturelly, we have had mistakes in milieary policies in.
' South Vietnam, Laos and Cambodia, in policies of economic
development in the D.R.V., in policies related to boosting the
well-being of the populace. We are particularly concerned about
improving the people’s living conditions. One must allow for
the fact that ocur options are limited im this area, and ‘
therefore this problem has not yet been solved. But along with
all other. factors, it is the opportunists who interfere with our
solving it. ‘

~ We clearly ses all the errors of the opportunistic faction,
and at this Plenary Sessiom, having snalyzed their views with
the greatest care, we are doing decisive battle with them. We
lesve them the right and option te recognize their mistakes and
correct them. Then they again will be able to serve the Party
and the people. '

Comrades! In the past year the Politburo and Secretariat of
the CC VWP have done major work in administering the Party as
regards building socialism in the North and conducting a
struggle for liberation in the Seuth. . By our victories we are
cbiigated to the creative leadership on the part of the
Politburo. With this leadership and our determination to chase
the American aggressors out of Vietnam, we ars surz to achieve
still mors majcr victeries.

. It will be necessary for us to dirsct still greater efforts
ek the long-term development of socialism iz the D.R.V., and
developing revolution in South Vietnam, Laos and Cambedia.

Along with this, it is. necessary to fight decisively against all
manifestations of opportunism in the Party, and achieve full

ﬁz in it. This is our main task for the period directly

4. SITUATION IN SOUTH VIESTNAM, LAOS AND CAMBODIA

In 1870 we continued the military successes achieved in
15€8 and 1969 in all theaters of military action. Along with
this, in 1970 an aggravation of the situation in Indochina was
noted, resulting in a revolution in Cambodia and an incursion of
American and Saigonese forces inte its territory.

. . The situation was tense in South Vietnam in 1970. By their
actions the Americans showed that the U.S.A. does not intend te
leave South Vietnam., However, pressured by public opimion, the
Nixon administration was forced to remove part of their forces
from there. , Several other countries who are participating in
the war against us were also forced to act im this way.

i Dur:g.ng the past year, the Americans were busy with making
their *Vietramization® plan a rezlity. This comsisted of
transferring to the puppet forces the task of fighting againmst
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patrzotlc faorces. Thus the Americans have put into prac;ice the
przncxple of “using Vvietnamese to k;ll Vietnamese," ‘"using
Asians to kill Asians.®

The U.S5.A. began-“Vietnamizaticna with the Mekong River
Valley. There they intend ta create a base for developing
“Vietnamization® in other areas. It was fot by chance that the
Mekong River Valley was chosen., This area is rich in rice,
feeding all of Seuth Vietznam with this basic preduct. If the
Mmericans and their puppets do not have a strong base in the
Mekong River Valley, they will encounter great economic
difficulties, which will be reflectad in the course of mzlztary

operations. Therefore, they have concentrated great forces in
this region to hold it fizmly.

We, for our part, have undertakes significant efforts te
thwart Abrams’s intentioms, and gverall we were successful in
this. The Americans ard their puppets suffered large lesses in
the Meskong River Valley, and werz not able to put their
*Vietnamization® plans into effect. 1In addition, im 1970 the
Americans were forced to disperse their forces and move a part

of their troops into Cambedia, thus creating additional
difficulties for themselves, .

Overzll, the Americans sufﬁared a defeat in ;nculcatzng
their plans to *Vietnamize” the war,

The main efforts of our troops im 1970 were concentrated in
-the Mekong River Valley, in the Saigon area and in the morthern
part of South Vietnam. In all these areas we inflicted
significant losses on the anemy.

Along with this, in 1970 we encountered significant
difficulties. These difficulties mainly resulted from the
incursion of American and Saigonese forces into Cambodia. fThe
enemy succeeded in seriously disrupting our transportation

system on Cambod;.n ter:ztory. which affected the supplying of
our troops in South Vietnam.

At present, Abrams is developlng new plans ke conduct
military operations against us during the dry season of 1971,
and alsc for further ®*Vietnamization.® But these plans of the
enemy will also meet defear, since we are strong. As before, we
must direct our efforts ac defeating the plans for
“Vzetnam;zatlon“ of the war, and inflicting maximum losses on
the enemy in live férces and military supplies.

The South Vietnamese theater of militaxy actions continues
to remain the basic one. We must give it our main attentien,
Therefore, in South Vietnam we intend to concentrate large-scale
forces and direct powerful strikes at the ememy. Camrade Chan

Van Kuang will report to you in greater detail regarding our.
plans in SGuth V1etnam
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I wish only te say a few words regarding the Americans.
Abrams made a big mistake by making an incursien inte Cambodia.
He scon realized this, and the Americens were forced to pull
their troops out of there, leaving puppet troops in Cambodia. .-
Sincs the Americans and the puppets are using significant forces
in Cambodia, favorable conditions have been cz;‘eated.ﬁor us in
South Vietnam. Later on even the Americams, _u}cludmg seme
prominent military figures, expressed the opinion that
introducing U.§. forces into Cambodia was a mistake, and that
the Mmericans in South Vietnam suffered a defeat. We have

‘spoiled the Americans’ plans to "Vietnamize® the war.. Now it is

sppropriate to make efforts to consclidate and further develop
the successes achieved., At the present time, the situation is
moving inte a favorable direction fer us. The enemy is
experiencing significant difficulties, militarily, pelitiecally
and diplomatically.

1370 was a year in which we undertock large-scale milicary
offensives. Tt was still anether evidence that our Party is
providing correct leadership in regard to solving the Indochina
problem. It is necessary to note, however, that in South
Vietnam in 1970 we had serious failures. In certaln areas we
suffered large lesses in manpeower. Over 10 years of armed
conflice in- South Vietnam, we have lest 410,000 people,
including 230,000 killed"or migsing im actien.® In 1970 we lost
100,700 people. The majority of personnel losSses were suffered
as a result of bombing and artillery fire of the enemy. K

In 1970 we met with serious difficulties in supplying our
troops with weapons, ammnition and food, since.the enemy
conducted continuous bombings of our transport lines in Laocs,
Cambodia and South Vietnam. Not having the option of using
previously built transport routes, in 1970 we copened a new
supply route in the area of the Chiong Shou Mountains.® By this
mean:s we can carry ocut deployments of personnel, weapons and

food to all theaters of military action in Lacs, Cambodia and
Soutia Vietnam. ‘

In 1870 the enemy concinuously inflicted blows on our home
supply bases, fearing an offemsive by us toward the sites of
highsst priority to us. His assumption that we have large-sezle
concentrations of troops im rear-echelon bases was correct. We
do i1 fact have large potencial pessibilities to strike blows at
enemy sites. But the enemy’s attacks on our home supply bases

did significant harm to persomnel and equipment, and complicated
our offensive effores.

. ___Supplying ocur trcops in .1970 was additicnally made .
difficult by the fact that earlier we could use the sea route,
while after the uprising in Cambodia, we were deprived of this
option.® 1In addition, we intended to carry out a part of our.
deployments by air, using airfields in Cambodia for this. But
for now we have not decided to do this, fearing that our
aircraft will be attacked and shot down by American aviation.
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Therefore, at present, as before, we continue to deploy on land

through Laos. And right new we still have significant »

difficulties in deploving personnel, weapons, ammunition and

food.

Iz 1970 the amount of weapeons, ammunition, military

" hardware and food deployed to the fronts in South Vietnam,

Cambodia and Lacs came to 273,000 tons, while in 1971 we arxe
continuing to deploy more than 300,000 tons of loads just to
South Vietnam. This volume is very great. and in order to
canvert our estimates into real life, we are going to have to
laber strenuously and seriously. We must. mobilize significant
forces to carzy out this assignment.

If we succeed in 1971 in spoiling the enemy’'s plans for
"Vietnamization® of the war and "pacification® of the South
Vietnamese populace, we shall consider that we have scored a
huge victory. Overall, all our successes in 1971 will depend on
solving supply problems. Reports on that matter will be given
by comrades from the CC Military Division and the Vietnamese
People’s Army [VPA] commznd in South Vietnam.

Along with seolving the problem.of home-base supplying of
our troops in South Vietnam, we must discuss the issue of the
quantitative makeun of “VPA troops assigned for use in the South.
At the present time, eight divisions of our regular troops
(overall total of 110,000 men) are in South Vietnam,
participeting directly in military actions. In 1971 we expect
to increase the number of our regular troops.there to 200,000
men. Allewing for this, the overall number of Pecple’s
Liberation Forces in South Vietnam is 430,000 men. In order to
send 200,000 more men to South Vietnam, we are going ke have to
do an additional mobilizationm. But in that case we will have to
reckon that if the U.S5.A. resumes bombing of the D.R.V., we will

have to have a sufficient quantity of troops in Narth Vietnam tao
deflect these bhlews.

'

Thus, we must be able to ensure the South’s needs for
troops, and the North’s needs for defense. If we can be sure
that the Americans will not resume bombing of the D.R.V., then
we can direct all our efforts at carrviag out revolution in
South Vietnam. At the moment, however, we have no such
assurances, since the enemy periedically carries out bombing
raids in several areas of the D.R.V. :

Te conduct the fight successfully in the South, we mustc
answer two questions: regarding the numbers of our troops used
there, and supplying them. The Politburo and Central Ccmmittee
of our Parcy is giving a very great amount of attention to these
two issues, in order to decide them in the shortest time
possible. However, as I have already said, we are encountering
great difficulties. To overcome these difficulties we.fmust .
apply a very great effort. We must recall thaz 1971 for us will
be a year of decisive victories. It will be a difficult year.
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We know very well that the enemy has major advantages over -us:
eviation, modern weapons and military technology. We must
¢ounteract him with our ability to conduct a pecple’s war., - As I
have already told you, Comrade Chan Van Kuang will report to you
en this in detail, on behalf of the CC VWP Military Section and
the VPA Command in South Vietnam.

In additien, the enemy has available large-scale
diversionary forces which copstantly strike blows ak our :
heme-supply bases in South Vietnam, and alsa are active in the
I.R.V. These forces represent a great danger to ug; their
sctivities bring great harm militarily and politically. We must
devote the most serious attention to rebuffing the enemy's

diversionary forces.

To conduct a leng-term revolutionary struggle in South -
Vietnam, we must enlarge our material and personnel resources.
Therefore, it will be mecessary to carry out an additiomal
nwebilization among the North Vietnamese population. B

Thus, the basic problems in South Vietnam are deployment
#nd the human resources issue. We must do everything to selve
these two largest preblems. It is from this that is derived the
need to increase rear-echelon defenses and, most importantly,
the major supply zmar: North Vietmam. The Americans and their
puppets ara making greater and greater efforts to destroy our

. home bases, depriving us of material and human resources.

kbrams understands very well that if he succesds in inflicting a
knockout blow to cur home-base rear, he will achieve an enormous
édvantage in the theater of military cperations.

Our losses fxom enemy aircraft are great. But nometheless,
the enemy does not have the strength using only aviatien to
cause us sufficient harm teo have ruinous conseguences for us.
Eut if the enemy, using his diversionary forces (as well as -
cther troops) sheuld undertake an offemnsive into the North, we
will suffer great loss, Therefore, we must increase ocur
vigilance, and rebuff all the aggressor’s machinations. In our
¢pinion, the enemy could undertake such an incursion by .
land-based forces and marines with powerful support by aviation

and the navy. We imagine that the enemy will not txy to invade -

tha entire texrritory of North Vietnam, but only those areas
where important transport routes run that lead to Laes, Cambedia
and South Vietnam. Along with achieving his military goals, the
enemy reckons that the incursion will apply political pressure
€n us, demoralize the people, and force them to refuse to fight
for the liberation of the, South.

Now I wish to devote some. time teo yet another issue: the
Captured American pilots. The overall number of American pilots
imprisoned in the D.R.V. is 735. As I already stated, we .
published the names of 368 pilots. .This:is our diplomatic move.
If the Americans agree to withdraw their troops from South
Vietnam, as a start we will return these 368 men to them, and
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if the Americans do withdraw their trcops, we will turn over the
remazning ones ts them. The matter of 1mpr;soned American
pllots, in view of what was said earlier, is of very great
significance for us.

Overall, speaking of the situation in South Vietham, I wish
to emphasize that it is very favorable for us, although we are
encountering significant difficulties. We try to do everythin
that depends on us to achieve sven greater successes in South
Vietnam.

After the reactionary revolt of March 18, 1970 in Cambodia,
and the incursien of American and Saigonese forces into its
territory on April ‘30, 1970, the situation became more
complicated for us. At the present time, we Nave more than
three lelSlOnS of our troops on Cambodian seil. The enemy in
Cambodia is strong and we must exert gignificant efforts in
order te attain an advantage there. Cambodia for us is a very
mecrtant region, and the development of events in South Vietnam
depends in large measure on the situation in Cambodia.

The enemy has no intention of yielding the initiative to us
in Cambodia. The Americans have concentrated significant
contingents of puppet South Vietnamese troops tnere, Following
its policy of "Vietnamization® of the war, the American high
command wishes to ensure itself of success im this area,
Therefore, it is doing all it can not to allow penetration of
_our. troops into South Vietnam. A particularly dense covering
force made up of puppet troops has been created along the entire
border between South Vietnam and Cambodia, where more than 50

battalions of Saigonese troops arae concentrated. That is a
great forca.

On tha other hand, it must he noted that the Americans and
their puppets, having started the aggression in Cambodia, have
gotten bogged down there. The American high command, after a
series of defeats, was forced to remove its troops £rom
Cambodia, but for now they have allowed South Vietnamese troops
to remzsin there. 1In our view, at the present time the americans
have no opportunity to expand aggression once more in Cambodia.

IE they attempt to do this, they will bog down even deeper in
war.

According to the Americans’ caleulatiens, the task of
puppet South Vietnamese troops in Cambodia is te ensure the
success af °"Vietnamization® of the war, and alse toc help Lon Nol
to fortify the reactionary regime in the country.

AL the present time Lon Nol is in contrel of only some of
the cities. As for the farming areas and the strategically
significant roads, they are under our control. We have
succeeded in isolating Pnom Penh from other areas of the
country, and have cut Route 4 from Pnom Penh to Sihanoukville.
This road is very important to the Lon -Nol government; the .
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Cambodian capital is supplied via it.

A8 a result of our decigive actions in the Fnom Penh area,
a threatening. situation has been created for the enemy. The
enemy tried to mount a counterattack on Routes 3, 6 and 7, but
we did not allow them an opportunity to do this. The .
large-scale operation begun by Lox Nol’s forces in the fall of
1970 came teo naught, and Lon Nol was forced to withdraw his
forces from Paom Penh. .

Presently Lon Nol is preparing to go on the counterattack
and seize a number of important strategic areas that are undex
cur control. However, the enemy is encountering significant
fifficulties in implementing his plans. These difficulties were
rot eliminated even after the Americans thrust in Saigomese
puppet troops to aid Lom Nol. The enemy’s situation in Cambodia
is deteriorating with each passing day.

Our base axeas in Cambodia have been considerably
strengthened and enlarged of late. Here we have a strong
concentration ef our troops, more than three divisions, as I
already saild. These forces suffice to carry out successful
milicary actions. ] . .

We must devobte greab attention ko C@mbo&ia. since in large
measure our successes in South Vietnam will depend on how
e¢ffectively we cperate im Cambodia.

We feel that the main efforts should ba concentrated on
surrounding Prnem Penh and isolating it from other areas of the
country. Capturing Pnom Penh, as was intended earlier, is not
eppropriate. It is sufficient to surround it and mebilize the
masses of the people to revolt and overthrow Lon Nol's regime.

The matter of Cambodia is vayry important. To reselve it
successfully, we must increaze our milikary efforts and our
material aid te local patriotic forces. Just as in South
Vietnam, what will ensure successes in Cambedia is uninterrupted
supplying of troops. If we have defective deployments, we will
encounter very great difficulties. )

We smust strengthen the revoluticnary base in Cambodia and
lead this country along the road to socialism. That is our
Party’s policy. )

The situacion in Cambodia favors us. The Americans are
axperiencing defeats, We must do our duty and help the Khmer
people to threw off. their puppets. For this, we must increase
t'.k}e number of ocur troops on Cambodian seil ke 70,000. Along
with patrioctic Cambodian forces, the overall number of the ,
-.iberation forces will amount to 140,000 men. These forces will

‘he fully sufficient to defeat Lon Nol’s army of slightly more

than 100,000. We must achieve victory over Lonm Nol, because all’
¢f our failures in Cambodia will have a negative impact on
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Overall T can report te the Plenary Session that we have
achieved significant successes in Cambodia. Not long ago I mek
with the leaders of the patriotic Cambodian forces. They highly
value our assistance and welcome all measures’ that- we undertake
for the purpose of overthrowing the puppet regime of Lon Nol.

Expanding the scale of military actions in Cambodia, the
Americans hoped that we would no longer be able to operate
successfully in South Vietnam, deprived of base areas on.
Cambodian soil. But their calculations tuened out to be
unjusts.tied In addition, the Americans themselves encountered
great difficulties and were forced te remove their troops from -
Cambodia, back to South Vietnam.

Thus I can say that militarily and politically we have a
great advantage over the enemy in Cambodia.

In Laocs, the situation becomes more complicated each day.
Souvanna Fhouma has gone over ccmpletely to the pro-american
position. The Americans are concentrating efforts with the
purpese of attacking l:.berated areas and capturing key
positions. Following a series of successful operations by us in
18970, the Americans ard concerned about the fakte of their
puppets. They were forced to yield Saravan, Attope and several
other important reglons teo us. They strengthened Vientiane'’s

. defenses, fearing that we might capture it. The Americans
" increased air strikes directed at our rear-echelon bases, so as
to dep*:.ve us of a chance to attack. They concentrated a large
aviation force im Thailand (including B-52 bombers), usiag which
they expect to x.nfllct powerful blows. These are far-reaching

plans, but, in our opinion, the Americans will not be able to
carry them out.

, Cne very important region, both for us and the Americans,
is Sieng Kuang, and therefore the situatiom in that area will
constantly remain tense.

At tha start of 1970 we had about 50,000 men in Laos. - But
.after the incursion of American and Saigonese forces into
Cambodia, we were forced to redeploy some of our forces there.
Rowever, despite the fact that our forces in Laos were reduced,

we succeeded in achieving a series of convincing victories ever
the enemy.

Ak the Prasent time we are experiencing significanc
d:.ff:.cult:.es in Laos. "But it is essential that we attain
v:.ctcry thers over the enemy, which will reflect posicively on
the situatien in Cambod:.a and South Vietnam. As in South
v:.etnam and Cam.uodla, in Laos we are having great difficulties
in ensuring deployment of troops and supply icems. If we solve

.this problem, we can carry out ef gctive military acx:ﬂ ons on
Lactian soil.
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Thus, the gituation on all fromts ig favorable for us, but
along with that we are experiencing considerable difficulties
everywhere. In part they are caused by ebjective cenditions,.
and in part they are the fault of certain military leaders who
allowed serious mistakes to be made in their operations. For
example, many comrades are expressing disagreement with our
pelicy in Laos. They feel that it 1s necessary to solve the
Lactian problem militarily as quickly as possible. This is an’
incorrect peint of view. The-problem of Laos is very complex
ggﬂ the need is to approach its solutien rationally, without

stae. .

Not long ago we had a three-sided meeting with Cambodian
and Laotian leaders. At this meeting we discussed measures for
long-term coordination of efforts in the battle against the
American aggressors and their puppets. We. came to the general
conclusion that the situation in Indochina is developing te our
benefit, and that we are capable of fighting successfully
against the enemy. ~

That conclusion refutes the viewpoint of the opportunists
who call for a summons for help from foreign governments. Why
drag foreigm troops into Indochina? Our opinion is that there
is no need for it. We feel that introduction of fcreign troops,
and their participation in military operatioms in amy of the
countries in Indochina will enly complicace the situation,
bringing us no benefit. We ourselves must deal with the enemy.

For.that it is essential to improve the management of troops,

requlate supplies, increase the responsibility of every
camunist for the business entrusted to him, try to eliminate
th? consequencss of old errors, and not permit new ones to he
made.

We must adjust the close interaction between theaters of
military action in South Vietnam, Laos and Cambodia. THis will
bring us success. We must strengthen and further develop the
successes achieved, and achieve new victories.

3. PREPARATTION FOR THE ATH VWP CONGRESS AND INTERNAL PARTY
TASKS :

Recently the Pelitburc of the CC VWP issued a directive to
the Seeretariat to cremte an organizational committee whose job
is to prepare for the 4th Congress of our Party. At the recent
exranded Secretariat meeting we discussed issues related to
preparation fer the Congress.

Today, on behalf of the Pelitburo aand CC VWP Secretariat, I
shall report to the Plenary Sessiom on the process of
preparation for the Congress.

Ten years have passed since the 3xd Congress of our Party
took place. Under wartimé conditions we did not have any
Opportunity to hold the next Party Ccngress. Now, in our
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opinion, the time has come te held a Party Congress, .To ensure
: its success, it will be necessary tc complete major work in

: lower-level party organizations. Nocw I will devote some time to
details of issues of preparing for the Congress.

@o19/025

The. Politburo has made a decision to create an
organizatienal committee for preparation for the Congress with
the following makeup:

. Le Zuan - committee chairman
Chiong Tin -~ deputy .chairman

Pham Van Dong - deputy chairman
Pham Hung - deputy chairman

Le Duc Tho - committee member

To Hiu - committee member

Hoang An - committee member

Suang Thui - committee membaxr

Le Van Liong - committee member
10 Chan Van Kuang - commibtee member

L
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If the proposed candidates are approved at teday’s Plenaxy
Sesgion, then the organizational committee will commence its
work at once.

We assume that at today’s Plana“y Session it will be
necessary for us to examine those LSSHES which will be included
for discussion at the Congress. This issues include the
follow:.ng.

First,. the matter of the aceount report at the Congress.

- We believe that this report will be ready by March 1971.
.Cemrade Le Zuan will compile the report.

Second, changing several articles in the charter of the
VWE. This is a very important matter, and it must be discussed
very thoroughly.

Third, regarding the act:.v:.ty of the Communist Party in
South Vietnam. We regard it as appropriate to announce openly
in the ,Press that the two Parties have merged, the VWP and the
Party in South Vietnam.®

Fourth, regarding unity of action of the three Indochina
Parties: the Vietnazmese, Laotian and Cambodian oxnes.

And finally, issues regarding the foreign pcl:.cy course of
our Party, and elections of Party leadership.

After all these mat-ers have heen discussed at the Plenary
Session and specific decisions have been made on them, the
Polithurg will determine when the Congress will be held.

The issue of heolding the 4th Congress is extremely
lmcrcant, and we must prepare with the greatest care for it.
Every issue must. be st:ud:.ed and discussed thoroughly. If we do
not think through each issue properly, this will have a negative
impact on the efforts of the Congress.

But before the Congress it is crr.t::.cally essential that we
settle the matter of some comrades' ppportunistic acrcivities.

¢
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This is a very important matter. All the victories we have
achieved are the result of correct policy on the part of the
leadership ef cur Party, with the decisions of the 3xd VWP
Congress having been translated inco real life creatively and
consistently. o

0f late in our Party there have arisen opportunists who are
interfering with our going along the path indicated. There are
not meny of them, but they are dangerous. The opportunist
faction does great harm to our Party. I have already reported
te the Plenary Session that thers is disunity between us and the
orportunists. Opportunists speak out against our agrarian
pclicies, our military policy, and the foreign policy line of
our Party.

We feel that the foreign policy of our Party is eorrece.
Ovr Party is independent. It depends on nc cne, neither on
large nor small parties of other natiens. We have our own
program, - our own way that we are going, holding high the
Merxist~Leninist banmer. There is nothing unclear in our
fereign policy.

Because the U.S.A. has undertaken aggression against us, we
are forced to reguest aid from brotherly naticns and parties, in
order to fight still more successfully sgainst the American
invaders. We have some disagreements with other brotherly
parties, mainly relating to Marxist-Leninist theozry issues. In
numercus meetings with represeantatives of those parties with
vhom we have disagreements, we. have presented te them our point
of view on many issues of Marxism-leninism. The goal of foreign
policy efferts at the present time is to promote reestablishmene
of unity in the international commmnist and workers’ movement.

Many comrades do not understand our policy and criticize us
for our position in relatioms with China and the Soviet Union.
and on other issues. In particular, we do not feel that the
present leaders of the Soviet Uniom are revisienists, or that
they threaten the unity of the international communist and
workers’ movement. As for China, we agree on the need to carry
out a "great proletariam cultural revolution,® but are not in
agreement with the methods of carrying it out. Scme comrades
also criticize us for this disagreement. E

One needs to consider that if, under present conditions, we
da not have, and will not have, a united viewpoint, we will
encounter gredt difficulties. Therefore, I wish to repeat what
matters it is on which we have disagreemencs.

, First of all, regarding the collectivization of
agriculture. What route te take? Take the route we have
already chpsen, cor another route? We feel that the route
selected is the correct one. If we do not demonstrate
flexibility in solving problems of cooperation, we will not be
able to revitalize agriculture. This ought not teo raise doubts.
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But if we go the route of creating large cooperative
enterprises, we will not solve the praoblems facing us. In order
to create large enterprises, technology and mechanization are
needed. But at the present time we eannot pz:ovzde coope:at:z.ves
with large-scale agricultural technology. Big cooperatives need
electrification, and nght: now we cannot supply electr:.c power
to all of the cooperatives.

We are follewing the Dath of peasant collectivization. But
this needs to be done skillfully, baving beneath one’s feet a
solid base and appropr:,at;e conditions.

But for now we do not have thess conditions. We must still
do much work in order to create 2 solid base for
collectivization of agr:,culture and creating of large-scale
cooperatives.

Secondly, regarding the matter of relations with Cambodia,
China and other brotherly parties such as those of  Rumania and
Poland: Comrade Le Van Lyong will report to you in greater
detail on this,

But I in my report wish once more to amphasize that the
existence of opportumst:.c tendencies in our Party will do us
much hazm. The cpportunists - ‘speak out against our policy. We
feel that before the Congress it will be essential to work with
comrades who do not understand our pol;x.cy, and explain their
mz.stakes to them, so that they will realize and correct them,

We feal that it will be necessary to dec:.de the issues of
contradictiong in tHe Party on the basis of principle. In
connection with that, at this Plenary Sessiocn we must discuss
the following four questions: regarding the reasons why
deviations arose; regarding ideoleogical battle against
opportunists; the results already achieved in this stzuggle; and
regarding several organizational measures directed toward
re-establishing unity in the Party.

Disharmeny im our Party plays into the hands of the enemy.
It is an urgent pricrity for us to eliminate the existing
contradictions and carry out 2 decisive campaxg-n against the

apportun:.sts, otherwise a threatenmg siktuation will be created
in the Party.

I can eite many examples which Show the harm caused to us
by the opportunists, For one. many of the senior military
leaders that belong to the opportunist faction do not carry out
orders by thleir superiors, which has a negative impact on the
cenduct of military operations. For example, after the American
and Saigonese. forces invaded Cambodia, the Politbura decided to
use large-scale forces to strike z blow against the enemy in the
Tay Ninh area, in order to pratect our troops that were
operating in Cambodia, But the military leaders in thac ragmn
held differing opinions, and their act:.ons. which contradicted
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ttose cf the Politburo, created significant difficulties for us
ard lowered the effectiveness of our armed forces’ actions. We
subjected these comrades to severe but just criticism; but &
fzvorable moment was allowed to slip away. This is a very .. .
obvious example of what serious consequences ¢an result from
such actions. : '

At present 16 members of the CC VWP are numbered in.the
opportunist faction. They cofstantly criticize our Party’s
policy. Some of them distribute published works in which they
evpound their cpportunistic views. Thiz does great harm to the
Party. In addition to criticizing us, they do not carry out
instructions and directives of higher autherity.

The Politburo and Secretariat of the CC VWP has exerted
much effort to get these comrades to understand and admit their
mistakes. As far back as before the 18th Plenary Session of the
VWP, we held many discussions with these comrades, showing them
their errors: seme of them admitted they had been wrong.
Ecwever, many continued to defend thelr erreneous views at the
l8th Plenary Session. They spoke ocut against Plenary Session
decisions, and by their actioms they continued to cause harm to
the Party. With each passing day they made new mistakes, moving
along a path of factional activity and by doing so vielating the

gnity of our Perty. -

At the i9th Pienary Session, the factional activity in the

_ Party reached its height. The cpportunists continued to speak

out against our poliey. In particular, Le Liem’ and a number of
others spoke out against the policy of the Party in the sphere
of culture. We feel that the creativity of those among us who
produce literature and art should reflect the heroism of present

- days, the self-sacrificing struggle of the Vietnamese people

against the aggressors and the splendid work at the fromt of
agricultural reconstruction., It should dramatize ocur successes
and summon us te overcome difficulties. But not everything is
done as it ought to be, and many comrades feel that in
literature and art all is well,

. We must gubject these comrades to the severest possible
criticism, bhecause under present condiktions literature and art
play an enormous propagandistic and educatiomal role. If we are
not timely in showing these comrades their errors, then they
will go even further in their delusions.

Thus, we aze faced with some larce assignments in combating
all devzgtians, and all opportunistic ctendencies. We must carry
on the fight not only in the central apparatus, but locally as
will. We consider it to be apprepriate that all the cC
secretaries be asgsigned to regions for which they are
responsible. Then we will be able to increase contrel of all
party organizatcion activities. ’

Qverall I must note that at the present time we are faced
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with great difficulties that must be evercome. There ares many
unresalved issues related to principle in the internal life of
the Party. Therefore, we ought to strive to have svexry
communist, every leading worker increase his respeomsibility for
the work entrusted to him, exerting all hls efforts to do his
revoelutignary duty. : '

Undez present:-day conditiens, :.ntarnal Party wcz:k has
greater significance with every pa551nq day. Each Party cell,
each Party crganizatxon, Party comnittes, must be permeatad with
the high revolutionary splrmt, clarifying to themselves our. '

fnurse and actively converting the Party’s policy into real
ife,

Any individual who disagrees with us on something may
openly express his opinion. We will hear him out, discuss his
point of view and accept it if it turms out to be correct, or
else show that comrade how he has errsd.

We must exert every effort tao cbtain victery over the enamy
throughout the entire Indochina peninsula. We must strike blows
against the Americans until they withdraw all their troops from
this region. We must destroy -the puppet forces of South
Vietnam, LaDs and Cambodia. The peoples of Indochina must be
free and in close friendship. Having closed ranks, we will
commence the building of 2 new life. AaAnd for this, I repeat .
again, it is essential that there be umity in the Party. We o '
must restore it, or otherwise we not only cannot complete our
tasks; we will suffer great harm.

We must follow the precepts of Ho Chi Mznh. operating in
Marsxist fashion. We must restore unity in the Party based on
principla. It is essential that we eliminate all the
consequences of errors and obviate the chance they will be
repeated or that new failures will be permitted., We must
conduct a battle on all fronts - military, political,
diplomat;c, and ideological - against the enemy and agaxnst )
opportunist elements within the Party. This will require very
great force, but we will achiesve success.

Once again we nmst talk with the 16 comrades who do nct
agree with us on any issues and show them their errors. If we
do not work ocut this disharmeny in time, it will emerge into the
open and becaome accessible to wide-spread publicity. A few days

from now these 16 comrades must present to us written

explanations of their pesitions and then we will decide how to
deal with them.

The fclloW;ng camrades belong to this group: Le Liem, )
en Khan Toan , Ea Hui Zuap®, Bui Cong Ching®®, Nguyen Van
Vln , Song Hao®, and a number of others. They all affirm that
our Party's. policy is incorrect. Naturally, any member of the

Party may freely express his cplnlon, but their behavior passes
all boundaries of free expression.
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At this 20th Plenary Session we will not move toward
compromise with them, as was dene at the 1%th. We will engage
them in decisive combat. ’

We simply must achieve full uniky in the Parcy and
leadership. It is particularly important to eliminate
disharmeony right new, when we are intending to issue a summons
to a 4th Congress of cur Party. We must come ko the Congress
with unified opinions om all basie mattezs.

I think that we certainly will achiesve successes, beth in
restoring Party unity and in battling against the American
aggressors and their puppets.

In the brochure there are 29 pages of text RKES/I-268, a title
»age and cover order no. 00/118§.

FOOTNOTES
L. What is meant are the D.R.V. and South Vietnam [note by GRU].

1. Probably what is meant ars Chinese troops. The possibility
of bringing them into the D.R.V. was discussed numercus times
note by GRU). -

3. According to American data, Peopls’s Army losses in South
Vietnam from 1961 te 1571 totaled about 700,000 killed [note by

GRU] .

é. The Chiong Son Mountaing are located in the central area of
fouth Viestnam [pote by GRU).

&. Before the revolution in Cambodia, the D.R.V. used the port
of Sihanoukville [note by GRU]. :

€. It is apparent that what is meant 1s the People’s
Fevolutionary Party of South Vietnam, which in effect is the
South Vietnamese branch of the VWP and manages the activities of
the NFO [note by GRU].

7. Candidate for membership in the CC VWP, assistant minister of
education [note by GRU].

8. Candidate for membership in the CC VWP, director of the
Academy of Social Sciences of the D.R.V. [note by GRU).

9. Member of CC VWP [note by GRU].

' 10. Candidate for membership in the CC VWP ([nate by GRU].

1l. Candidate for membership in the CC VWP, lieutenant general,

ghaéﬁn&n]an of the committee for unification of the country [note
14 . .
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13, Member L
Political Aggitz}e CC VWP, lieu

the D.R.V. [notas by GRU)

5000208

000209



	2016-1-100 (1).pdf
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24
	Page 25
	Page 26
	Page 27
	Page 28
	Page 29
	Page 30
	Page 31
	Page 32
	Page 33
	Page 34
	Page 35
	Page 36
	Page 37
	Page 38
	Page 39
	Page 40
	Page 41
	Page 42
	Page 43
	Page 44
	Page 45
	Page 46
	Page 47
	Page 48
	Page 49
	Page 50
	Page 51
	Page 52
	Page 53
	Page 54
	Page 55
	Page 56
	Page 57
	Page 58
	Page 59
	Page 60
	Page 61
	Page 62
	Page 63
	Page 64
	Page 65
	Page 66
	Page 67
	Page 68
	Page 69
	Page 70
	Page 71
	Page 72
	Page 73
	Page 74
	Page 75
	Page 76
	Page 77
	Page 78
	Page 79
	Page 80
	Page 81
	Page 82
	Page 83
	Page 84
	Page 85
	Page 86
	Page 87
	Page 88
	Page 89
	Page 90
	Page 91
	Page 92
	Page 93
	Page 94
	Page 95
	Page 96
	Page 97
	Page 98
	Page 99
	Page 100
	Page 101

	2016-101-208 (1).pdf
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24
	Page 25
	Page 26
	Page 27
	Page 28
	Page 29
	Page 30
	Page 31
	Page 32
	Page 33
	Page 34
	Page 35
	Page 36
	Page 37
	Page 38
	Page 39
	Page 40
	Page 41
	Page 42
	Page 43
	Page 44
	Page 45
	Page 46
	Page 47
	Page 48
	Page 49
	Page 50
	Page 51
	Page 52
	Page 53
	Page 54
	Page 55
	Page 56
	Page 57
	Page 58
	Page 59
	Page 60
	Page 61
	Page 62
	Page 63
	Page 64
	Page 65
	Page 66
	Page 67
	Page 68
	Page 69
	Page 70
	Page 71
	Page 72
	Page 73
	Page 74
	Page 75
	Page 76
	Page 77
	Page 78
	Page 79
	Page 80
	Page 81
	Page 82
	Page 83
	Page 84
	Page 85
	Page 86
	Page 87
	Page 88
	Page 89
	Page 90
	Page 91
	Page 92
	Page 93
	Page 94
	Page 95
	Page 96
	Page 97
	Page 98
	Page 99
	Page 100
	Page 101
	Page 102
	Page 103
	Page 104
	Page 105
	Page 106
	Page 107
	Page 108




